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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Physicswallah Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Physicswallah Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the *Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section
133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except that the backup of the books of
account and other books and papers for certain applications as explained in note 44(i), in
electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis
and the Company does not have server physically located in India for the daily backup of the
books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode with respect to one
of the application;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and serial number (vi)
of paragraph (i) below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2024 ;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

ii.

iii.

iv.

The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the note 48(vi) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belicf, other than
as disclosed in the note 48(vii) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v.  Nodividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which does not have the feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) facility, as described in note 44(ii) to the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements. Consequently, we are unable to comment whether audit trail feature operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software or was tampered

with.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 10 1049\W/E300004

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 24212230BKCYWY9005
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 24, 2024
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Annexure ‘1' to the Independent Auditor’s report referred to in paragraph 1 of “Report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date.

Re: Physicswallah Private Limited (‘the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

()

(i)

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property plant and equipment and investment property,
except for certain property, plant and equipment, where quantitative details and situations thereof
is in the process of being updated by the management.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management during
the year, hence, we are unable to comment on the discrepancies, if any.

() There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year ended
March 31, 2024.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for
inventories lying with third parties. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the
management is reasonable and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate.
Inventories lying with third parties have been confirmed by them as at March 31, 2024. The
management has not maintained detailed records for the inventories lying at certain locations
and its reconciliation with physical inventory at the year end, therefore we are unable to comment
on the discrepancies, if any.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the financial statements,
the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the
audited/ unaudited books of accounts of the Company. The Company do not have sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from financial institutions during

the year on the basis of security of current assgts of the Company.
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(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to its subsidiary companies and others as follows:
(Amount in Rs. lacs)

Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year
- Subsidiaries 8,080
- Employees 907
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above
cases
- Subsidiaries 10,926
- Employees 792

During the year, the Company has not granted any loan, advance in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or security to any firms or limited liability partnership.

(b) During the year, the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans, investments and
guarantees to its subsidiary companies or any other parties are not prejudicial to the Company's
interest. However, in respect of loan granted to one of the subsidiary, loan is repayable on
demand and repayment schedule of principal and interest has not been stipulated in the
agreement.

(¢) In respect of loan granted to one of the subsidiary, the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has not been stipulated in the agreement. Hence, we are unable to make
specific comment on the regularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect
of such loan.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in nature of loans granted to its subsidiary
companies or any other parties which is overdue for more than ninety days.

() There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to its subsidiary companies or
any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or
fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

(f) As disclosed in note 7(c) to the standalone Ind AS financial statements, the Company has
granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment to one of its subsidiary company as stated below:

(Amount in lacs)
Particulars Subsidiary Company

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on demand 3,476

Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total loans 30%
0
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections 185 and
186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the educational services, and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same.

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases of tax deducted at sources, professional tax and labour
welfare fund.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(2) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.
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)

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv)

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company,
the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(2) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the note 32 to the Ind AS standalone
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of
section 177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.
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(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 42 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

() In respect of the other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Scheduled VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been
disclosed in note 39 to the standalone Ind AS financial statements.
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(b) There is no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the
Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 39 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049 W/E300004

(o

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 24212230BKCYWY9005
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 24, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
STANDALONE Ind AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PHYSICSWALLAH PRIVATE
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS standalone financial statements
of Physicswallah Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these Ind AS standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
standalone Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS standalone financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind
AS standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS standalone
financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Standalone Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Standalone
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS standalone
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS standalone financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS
standalone financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference
to Ind AS standalone financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICALI

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

[~

L
per Vineet Kedia
Partner
Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 24212230BKCYWY9005
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 24, 2024




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: Us0900UP2020PTC129223

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5(@a) 19,684.77 11,694.16 1,199.89
Capital work in progress 5(a) - 475.71 -
Goodwill 5®) 2,405.79 2,405.79 -
Other intangible assets 5(b) 4,893.55 2,146.61 124.53
Intangible assets under development 5(c) 31.85 47.53 560.72
Right-of-use assets 11 66,498.45 42,266.31 3,863.25
Financial assets
i. Investments 7(2) 37,164.19 28,832.06 1,365.00
ii. Loans 7(c) 8,027.42 - -
iii. Other financial asscts 7(g) 22,194.13 15,873.25 5,767.29
Deferred tax asscts (nct) 30 7,831.98 1,915.09 2.19
Non-current tax asset (net) 15 1,681.92 1,130.89 138.58
Other non-current assets 8 1,317.95 1,523.87 241
Total non-current assets 1,71,732.00 1,08,311.27 13,023.86
Current assets
Inventorics 6 4,779.26 2,134.03 520.81
Financial asscts
i. Investment () 14,414.83 20,546.24 2,389.05
ii. Loans 7(c) 3,687.52 2,573.85 49.98
iii. Trade reccivables 7(d) 1,680.54 580.22 13.06
iv. Cash and cash equivalents () 2,777.01 3,039.00 610.51
v. Bank balances other than (iv) above () 2,582.54 45,549.16 3,398.39
vi. Other financial assets 7(g) 32,830.00 1,063.24 305.11
Other current asscts 8 1,794.86 1,409.89 483.64
Total current assets 64,546.56 76,895.63 7,770.55
Total assets 2,36,278.56 1,85,206.90 20,794.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 9 600.00 600.00 600.00
Other equity 10 (86,616.24) 8,914.47 9,834.99
Total equity (86,016.24) 9,514.47 10,434.99
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
i. Borrowings 13(2) 1,64,845.35 92,500.07 -
ii. Lease liabilities 12 61,078.50 37,521.23 3,195.61
iii. Other financial liabilities 13(c) 7,785.13 299.42 -
Provisions 14 889.08 253.46 57.16
Total non-current liabilities 2,34,598.06 1,30,574.18 3,252.77
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
1. Borrowings 13(2) 3,322.77 3,076.96 -
ii. Trade payables
- Total outstanding ducs of micro and small cnterprises; and 13(b) 1,824.62 1,468.81 6.32
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 13(b) 7,188.47 2,672.67 108.60
iii. Lease liabilities 12 9,628.81 5,436.81 566.95
iv. Other financial liabilitics 13(c) 8,259.53 3,822.70 56.35
Provisions 14 946.27 400.60 -
Current tax liabilities (net) 15 - - 4.60
Other current liabilitics 16 56,526.27 28,239.70 6,363.24
Total current liabilities 87,696.74 45,118.25 7,106.06
Total equity and liabilities 2.36,278.56 1.85,206.90 20.794.41
Summary of material accounting policies 24
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements. 1-48

As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Fi cg. No.: 101049W/E300004

per Vin edia
Partner
Membership No. : 212230

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 24, 2024

Ve |
Prateek Boob
Director

DIN: 07113666

For and on behalf of the Board of Directflrs‘iif T
Physicswallah Private Limited i

-~

Place: Noida
Date: September 24, 2024

Place: Noida

Date: September 24, 2024

/Rahul Verma
Copfpany Secretary
embership No. A46710

Place: Noida
Date: September 24, 2024




Physicswallah Private Limited
CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Notes For the year ended For the year ended
i March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Income
Revenue from operations 17. 1,53,647.63 73,476.28
Other income 18 7,872.39 2,909.89
Total income -1,61,520.02 76,386.17
Expenses
Direct expenses 19 18,099.01 6,832.90
Purchase of traded goods sold 20 5,079.93 3,173.00
Change in Inventories 21A (1,057.16) (1,206.69)
Cost of raw material and components consumed 21B 4,809.24 2,853.43
Employee benefits expenses 22 1,02,102.54 40,521.15
Finance costs 23 5,905.19 2,049.73
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 21,128.37 8,005.08
Net loss on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value 25 77,658.81 6,713.77
Other expenses 27 34,562.39 15,550.40
Total expenses 2,68,288.32 84,492.77
Loss before exceptional items and taxes (1,06,768.30) (8,106.60)
Exceptional items
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary 28 6,338.58 -
Loss before tax (1,13,106.88) (8,106.60)
Tax expenses
Current tax 30 - 1,452.00
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 30 (6,009.60) (1,879.98)
Total tax expenses /(credit) (6,009.60) (427.98)
Loss for the year (1,07,097.28) (7,678.62)
Other comprehensive income
A. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 33 368.33 (130.83)

Income tax effect on above 30 (92.70) 32.93
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax 275.63 (97.90)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,06,821.65) (7,776.52)
Loss per equity share (nominal value per share of INR 1 each (March 31, 2023: INR 1)):
Basic 29 (178.50) (12.80)
Diluted 29 (178.50) (12.80)
Summary of material accounting policies 24
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial 1-48
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (1,13,106.88) (8,106.60)
Adjustments:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 9,813.24 3,024.71
Depreciation on right of use assets 10,722.81 4,041.72
Amortisation of other intangible assets 592.32 191.79
Provision for diminution in value of investment in subsidiary 6,338.58 -
Impairment/write off of intangible assets & goodwill - -
Net loss on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value 75,646.58 6,713.77
Net loss on remeasurement of derivative assets & liabilities 2,012.23 -
Share based payment to employees 10,683.91 3,816.57
Settlement of compensation options (964.71) =
Provision for inventory obsolescence (429.65) 825.65
Dividend income - (13.77)
Liabilities written back - (9.49)
Loss on salc of plant, property and equipment - 16.51
Interest income (4,730.48) (2,126.41)
Finance costs 5,789.81 1,877.74
Unwinding of interest on deferred consideration 64.22 15.50
(Profit)/loss on salc of investments (2,237.34) (279.71)
Operating profit before working capital changes 194.64 9,987.98
M in working capital:
Increase in inventories (2,215.58) (2,438.87)
Increase in loans (139.35) (22.63)
Increase in trade receivables (1,100.32) (567.16)
Increase in other financial assets (6,850.77) (4,311.11)
Increase in other current assets (346.16) (926.25)
Increase in trade payables 4,871.61 4,026.56
Increase in other financial liabilities 5,777.83 1,444.75
Increase in provisions 1,549.62 466.07
Increase in other current liabilities 28,286.57 21,476.01
Cash generated from operations 30,028.09 29,135.36
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds and interest) (551.03) (2,444.31)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 29,477.06 26,691.05
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress) (18,371.61) (13,974.27)
Purchase of intangiblc asscts (2,244.97) 53.25
Interest received 4,518.84 1,840.38
Acquisition of subsidiarics (8,834.52) (33,239.90)
Dividends received - 13.77
Acquisition by way of slump sale - (1,500.00)
Loan given to related parties (8,425.13) (3,501.24)
Repayment of loan given by related parties - 1,000.00
Purchase of investments (79,694.88) (73,540.41)
Proceeds from sale of investments 88,063.64 55,662.37
Maturity of bank deposits 59,119.68 1,08,012.00
Investment in bank deposits (49.099.84) (1,50,040.06)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (14,968.80) (1,09,214.11)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of preference shares - 79,108.25
Procceds from borrowing - 10,000.16
Payment of intcrest portion of lcase liability (5,015.62) (1,753.41)
Payment of principal portion of lease liability (5,924.94) (2,087.78)
Interest paid (774.20) (70.83)
Repayment of borrowings (3,055.50) (244.84)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (14,770.25) 84,951.56
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (261.99) 2,428.49
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,039.00 610.51
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,777.01 3,039.00
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks (refer note 7(e))
on current account 2,246.06 459.83
in deposit account (with original maturity of 3 months or less) - 2,402.70
Cash on hand (refer note 7(e)) 469.22 136.23
Cash in transit (refer note 7(e)) 61.73 40.24
2,777.01 3,039.00
Notes:
Reconciliation of lease liabilities arising from financing activities
Amount
As at April 01, 2022 3,762.56
Cash flows (3,841.18)
Non cash changes 43,036.65
As at March 31, 2023 42,958.03
Cash flows (10,940.55)
Non cash changes 38,689.84
As at March 31, 2024 70,707.32

Summary of material accounting policies

See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements.
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{Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Swunmary of significant accounting policics

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

(2) Equity share capital
Number of shares Amount
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
As at April 01, 2022 6,00,00,000 600.00
Issue of equity share capital 13 0.00
As at March 31, 2023 6,00,00,013 600.00
Issue of equity share capital - =
As at March 31, 2024 6,00,00,013 600.00
(b) Other equity
Reserve and Surplus Other
T Comprchensive Total
Retained carnings | Securities Premium General Reserve Stock Options ! Em[}loyee s income
option reserve
As at r\pl i101, 2022 9,834.99 - o - = - 9.834.99
Loss the year (7.678.61) - - - - - (7,678.61)
Stock options issued during the year (refer note 10(v)) - - - 2,963.23 - - 2,963.23
Compensation options granted during the year ( reter nmc 38) - - - 3,8160.57 - 3.816.57
Compensation options granted to employ i - - = - 76.05 - 76.05
Issuc of cquity share capital - 0.15 - - - - 0.15
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans (net of tax eflfect) - - - - - (97.90) (97.90)
As at March 31, 2023 2,156.38 0.15 - 2,963.23 3.892.62 (97.90) 8,914.47
Loss for the year (1.07.097.29) = e = - (1.07.097.29)
Compensation options granted during the year (refer note 38) - - - - 10.683.91 - 10,683.91
Compensation options granted to employ E idi - - - - 1.571.74 - 1.571.74
Forfeiture of vested compensation options - - 10.10 - (10.10) - -
Settlement of compensation options - - = - (964.71) - (964.71)
Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans (net of tax effect) - - - - - 275.63 275.63
As at March 31, 2024 (1.04.940.91) 0.15 10.10 2.963.23 15,173.46 177.73 (86,616.25) |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the tinancial statements,

For and on behalf of the Board of Drrettor;
wallah Private Limited {

Physi

U\

P ycﬁ Boob

Director
DIN: 07113666

Place: Noida

Date: September 24, 2024

Place: Noida

Date: September 24, 2024

Rahul Verma
Company Secretary

Membership No. A46710

Noida

cptember 24, 2024
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Physicswallah Private Limited (“the Company™) is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in India and has its
registered address at plot no. B-8, tower A 101-119, Noida One, Noida Sector 62, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Dadri, Uttar Pradesh.
The Company is principally engaged in the business of education by providing online and offline coaching and study material for
test preparation of various competitive exams such as NEET, JEE, etc.

These Standalone Financial Statements (“Financial Statements™) were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors on September 24, 2024.

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS”)
prescribed under Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value and amortised cost (refer accounting policies on financial instruments and Share-based payments).

The Company has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted
in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which
was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition have been summarized in Note 46.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR”) and are rounded
to the nearest lacs upto two decimal places, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Summary of material accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or cash or cash
equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose
of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Current liabilities include the current portion of
non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.
Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 months for the purpose of classification
of assets and liabilities as current and non- current.




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

b. Fair value measurement

Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or

indirectly observable
Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be
re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management or its expert verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant

documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

c. Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue primarily from coaching classes and related sale of products like study material and merchandise.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer (transaction price) which is the amount
of consideration received from the customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).
Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, each deliverable that is
considered to be a separate deliverable is accounted separately. Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations,
the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the standalone selling prices. Where the standalone
selling prices are not directly observable, these are estimated based on expected cost plus margin or residual method to allocate
the total transaction price. In cases of residual method, the standalone selling price is estimated by reference to the total transaction
price less the sum of the observable standalone selling prices of other goods or services promised in the contract.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sale of services

Revenue from services provided under fixed price contracts is primarily recognized over a period of time in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered, thus income from coaching services is recognized over the period of delivery. Where
courseware is not considered a separate component under a contract, revenue from the composite course is recognized over the
period of the coaching or the contract period, depending upon the terms and conditions. The customer pays the fixed amount
based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the
payment exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognized.

Sale of products

Revenue in respect of sale of courseware and other physical deliverables is recognized at a point in time when these are delivered,
the legal title is passed and the customer has accepted the courseware and other physical deliverables.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

d. Trade receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects group’s
unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognized initially
at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the

effective interest method, less loss allowance.
e. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method or an
approximation thereof, such as the first in first out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labor, other direct costs and related production overheads. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Provisions are made for slow-moving and
obsolete stock.

f. Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current
and deferred taxes are recognized in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

g Jeturns with respeg&t’dgs'r_ifﬁlaiiéns in which applicable tax regulations

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in thg ‘
QMthat a taxation agthority will accept an uncertain tax treatment.

are subject to interpretation and considers whether i
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and
income tax provision

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except when the tax incurred on a purchase of assets is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset.

Expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except when the tax incurred on a purchase of services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is expensed off in statement of profit and loss.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of other current/ non- current
assets or other current liabilities in the balance sheet.

g. Property, plant and equipment
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognized as at April 1, 2022, measured as per the Previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such

property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, if any. Property,
plant and equipment is depreciated on a written down value basis to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non- refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are capitalized on the carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when future
economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the-€ompany and cost of the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of property, plant angdagguipment are requirt _zﬁg;b,e_;;eblz;ced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
i ‘*‘ ; i lount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is

separately based on their specific usefy#
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(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

derecognized when replaced. All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work in progress’.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date of
disposal or retirement.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The management has
determined the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment based on the consideration of useful lives as prescribed
under part C of Schedule 11 of the Act. Estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Assets Useful life
(in years)
Computer and Peripherals 3
Plant and Machinery 15
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Office equipment 5
Leasehold Improvements 3t09

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use
the assets beyond the lease term.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets
Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Costs associated with

maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred.

Research and development costs

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled
by the Company are recognized as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use or sale

management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

there is an ability to use or selil the software

it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are
available, and

e the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the sof e include employee costs.
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Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria above are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Amortization methods and periods

Amortization of intangible assets begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. Software, licenses
acquired and internally generated software are amortized d on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives which are as
follows:

Intangible Assets Useful life
(in years)
Brand 10
Trademark 3-10
Content 2-3
Intellectual Property Right 3-20

~

Mobile Application
Internally generated content
Internally generated product
Software

WA MU

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another

asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of
an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Impairment testing of non-financial assets

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored.

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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i Provisions and contingencies
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

J- Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing cost includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

k.  Retirement and other employee benefits
Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits.

For defined benefit plans (gratuity), the liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount ratc to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the [air
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in the subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the employee
renders related service. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond.its periodic contributions.
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The Company provides for liability at period end on account of un-availed earned leave and Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’)
as per actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as employee benefit payable under other financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the code

came into effect on May 3, 2023. However, the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

L. Share-based payments

Equity-settled transactions

Employees of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement
of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Performance conditions which are market conditions are taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of the
awards. Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the
award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share.

m. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into INR, the functional currency of the Company, at the exchange rates at the
rates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange

at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functlonal currency using the exchanoe rates atlhendgte when the falr value- fS’dEtel mmed The gain or loss arising on translatxon
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fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive
Income (OCI) or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
° Debt instruments at amortized cost
° Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
° Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
° Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables and is most relevant
to the Company.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI
A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and
b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as
at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

The equity securities which are not held for trading, and for which the Company has made an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to recognize changes in fair value through OCI rather than profit or loss as these are strategic investments and the
Company considered this to be more relevant.

The Company has measured for its investment in subsidiaries at cost in its financial statements in accordance with Ind AS 27,
Separate Financial Statements. Profit/ loss on sale of investments is recognised on date of sale and is computed with reference to
the original cost of the investment sold. The investments are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, policy for
impairment of non-financial assets is followed.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

° The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e  The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
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Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime
ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of
profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets
measured as at amortized cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in

the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include borrowings, compulsorily convertible preference shares, lease liabilities, trade and
other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in-the-statement of profit and loss.
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Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (‘CCPS’)

The preference shares issued by the Company is a financial instrument classified as a financial liability in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability. After initial recognition as a financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss, all subsequent changes in CCPS are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Derivative financial Instruments

The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. A derivative is a financial
instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

- its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial
variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the “underlying”);

- it requires no initial net investment or an initial investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts
that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors; and

- it is settled at a future date.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

0.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the standalone balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the standalone statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

p- Leases

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for coaching centers and office premises. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the
use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes aright-of-use asset (“ROU™) and a corresponding lease
/ leascs "f‘i,th a term of twelve months or less (short-term

X
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leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets
and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowi ng rates
in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ri ght
of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the standalone balance sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

q. Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Company elects whether to measure the noncontrolling interests in the acquiree
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their acquisition date fair
values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are
measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as on the acquisition date. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement
are recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. If the initial accounting for a business
in whi fft’he combination occurs, the Company reports provisional

combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
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the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These
adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

When the consideration transferred by the Company in a business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against Goodwill/capital reserve. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the conﬁngent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Other
contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value recognized in profit
or loss.

r.  Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

s. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The Company operates in a single operating segment and geographical segment.

t. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Company to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods. There are no assumptions and estimation
uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year.

u. Exceptional Items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the financial statements. Significant impact on the financial
statements arising from impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates, gain/ loss on disposal of subsidiaries and
associates (other than major lines of business that meet the definition of a discontinued operation) and provision for advances are
considered and reported as exceptional items.
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v. New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31
March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The
Company has applied these amendments for the first-time.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the
correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Company’s standalone financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for
entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and
adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s standalone financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases. The Company previously recognised for
deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset
in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for
offset as per the requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet.

(iv) Deferred Tax related to leases and decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities - Amendments to Ind AS 101

The amendment removes the exemption provided under Ind AS 12, /ncome Taxes that exempt an entity from recognising a
deferred tax asset or liability in particular circumstances. As per the amendment this exception is now not available to first time
adopter, as the at the date of transition to Ind ASs, a first-time adopter is now required to recognise a deferred tax asset to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with: (a) right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities; and (b) decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the
cost of the related asset.

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind
AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34. However, these do not have any material impact on the financial statements of
the Company.
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3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
* Capital management Note 36
» Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 35

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods

covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies

judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the standalone financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

The Company measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black Scholes Options Pricing model
to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This
estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for
estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 38.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the defined benefit
obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Those mortality tables tend to change only
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the country. Further details about gratuity,(ob‘l‘igén_io‘h’s‘alje given in Note 33.
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using internal valuation techniques. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and
volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product
type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision matrix is
initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the
service sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLSs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The
Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Company’s trade receivables and contract assets is
disclosed in Note 7(d).

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives
recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a
sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note 45.

Intangible asset under development

The Company capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually
when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model.
In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation
of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.

Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates.

4. Recent pronouncements and standards issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time totimé; For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendmen existing standards 2 Zp«p‘l’cable to the company.
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5(a) Property, plant and equipment *

Computer and Plant & Furniture and T Office Leasehold Capital work in
a . 5 Vehicles N Total
Peripherals Machinery Fixtures Equipments  Improvements progress

Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022 (deemed cost)* 634.20 - 79.80 70.47 243.86 171.56 1,199.89 e
Acquisition through business combination (refer note 43) 31.94 - 5.23 - 3.74 - 40.91 3
Additions 5,775.40 - 1,410.83 40.31 3.221.43 3,047.04 13,495.01 475.71
Adjustments/reclassifications (607.92) - (54.97) - 662.89 - =
Disposals (34.66) - - - (0.57) - (35.23) -
As at March 31, 2023 5,798.97 - 1,440.89 110.78 4,131.34 3,218.60 14,700.58 475.71
Transfer - = S = e = = =
Additions 4,059.81 157.14 2.092.40 23.83 4.144.05 7.326.62 17,803.85 -
Disposals = = g - - - - (475.71)
As at March 31, 2024 9.858.78 157.14 3.533.29 134.61 8.275.40 10,545.22 32,504.43 -
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 - - - - = = - _
Charge for the year 1,747.67 - 141.86 30.07 540.61 564.50 3,024.71 -
Adjustments/reclassifications (194.75) - (3.38) (0.01) 198.13 0.01 - =
Disposals (18.23) - - - (0.06) - (18.29) -
As at March 31, 2023 1,534.69 - 138.48 30.06 738.68 564.51 3,006.42 -
Charge for the year 4,052.91 22.65 574.98 29.51 2,385.96 2,747.23 9,813.24 3
Disposals - - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 5.587.60 22.65 713.46 59.57 3,124.64 3.311.74 12,819.66 -
Net carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022 (deemed cost)* 634.20 - 79.80 70.47 243.86 171.56 1,199.89 -
As at March 31, 2023 4,264.28 - 1,302.41 80.72 3,392.67 2,654.09 11,694.16 475.71
As at March 31, 2024 4,271.17 134.49 2,819.83 75.04 5,150.76 7,233.48 19,684.77 -
*Cost as at April 01, 2022 is calculated as shown before :

Computer and Plant & Furniture and . Office Leasehold Capital work in

. . . Vehicles . Total
Peripherals Machinery Fixtures Equipments Improvements progress

Gross carrying amount as per previous GAAP 963.44 - 89.70 82.20 219.42 183.00 1,537.76 -
Accumulated depreciation (278.89) - (6.76) (11.73) (29.05) (11.44) (337.87) -
Adjustments/reclassifications (50.35) - (3.14) - 53.49 - - -
Deemed cost 634.20 - 79.80 70.47 243.86 171.56 1,199.89 -

Ageing of capital work in progress

As at April 01, 2022

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended
As at March 31,2023
Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended
As at March 31, 2024

whose timelines have been deferred.

*The Company has elected to carry the value of its Property. Plant and Equipments as recognised in its previous GAAP financials i.e. their carrying value, as deemed cost at the transition date i.e.
per the option permitted under Para D7AA of Ind AS 101 for the first time adoption.

April 01,2022 as

Amount in capital work in progress for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

475.71 - - - 475.71

475.71 - - = 475.71

" The long term borrowing includes a loan from HFDC bank is secured by hypothecation of furniture & fixtures and other fixed assets and second charge on fixed deposits
The Company has neither revalued nor impaired its property, plant and equipment during the year ended March 31,2024 and March 31. 2023.

Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2023 includes assets under construction at various offices and head office which are pending installation. There are no projects which have either exceeds their budget or

(This space has been lefi blank intentionaily)
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5(b) Goodwill and other intangible assets **

Content IPR Brand Trademark Software M(_)bll,c Total Goodwill
Application
Gross carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022 (deemed cost)* 115.81 - - - 6.07 2.65 124.53 -
Acquisition through business combination (refer note 43) 389.90 - 1,258.05 - - - 1,647.95 2,511.77
Additions 297.25 43425 - 0.07 7.95 - 739.52 =
Disposals - - = = - - - =
As at March 31, 2023 802.96 434.25 1,258.05 0.07 14.02 2.65 2,512.00 2,511.77
Additions 1,724.12 63.04 - 48.50 424,99 - 2,260.64 =
Adjustments/reclassifications (refer note 7a(i)) 1.078.61 - - - - - 1,078.61 =
Disposals = = = - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 3,605.69 497.29 1,258.05 48.57 439.01 2.65 5,851.26 2,511.77
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01, 2022 e = = = - - - =
Charge for the year 141.03 15.54 31.02 0.01 2.34 1.85 191.79 -
Impairment - - 173.60 - - - 173.60 105.98
Disposals 5 - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 141.03 15.54 204.62 0.01 2.34 1.85 365.39 105.98
Charge for the year 402.79 45.26 108.30 16.16 19.01 0.80 592.32 =
Impairment - - - - - - - -
Disposals = = = - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 543.82 60.80 312.92 16.17 21.35 2.65 957.71 105.98
Net carrying amount
As at April 01, 2022 (deemed cost)* 115.81 - - - 6.07 2.65 124.53 -
As at March 31, 2023 661.93 418.71 1,053.43 0.06 11.68 0.80 2,146.61 2,405.79
As at March 31, 2024 3,061.88 436.49 945.13 32.40 417.66 - 4,893.55 2,405.79
*Cost as at April 01, 2022 is calculated as shown before :
Content IPR Brand Trademark  Software M?bll_e Total Goodwill
Application

Gross carrying amount as per previous GAAP 119.30 - - - 6.40 5.55 131.25 -
Accumulated amortisation (3.49) - - - (0.33) (2.90) (6.72) -
Deemed cost 115.81 - - - 6.07 2.65 124.53 -

permitted under IND AS 101 for the first time adoption.

5(c ) Intangible assets under development

** The Company has neither revalued nor impaired its goodwill and other intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023.

*The Company has elected to carry the value of its intangible assets as recognised in its previous GAAP financials, as deemed cost at the transition date i.e. April 01, 2022 as per option

2023.

Software Content Trademark Total
Cost or valuation
As at April 01, 2022 - 560.72 560.72
Additions - - 47.53 47.53
Written off during the year - (467.28) (467.28)
Capitalised during the year - (93.44) - (93.44)
As at March 31, 2023 - - 47.53 47.53
Additions 31.85 - - 31.85
Written off during the year - - - =
Capitalised during the year - - (47.53) (47.53)
As at March 31, 2024 31.85 - - 31.85
Ageing of intangible asset under develoy t
Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of
Less than 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2-3 years
year years
As at April 01, 2022 - - - - -
Projects in progress 47.53 - - - 47.53
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2023 47.53 - - - 47.53
Projects in progress 31.85 - - - 31.85
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 31.85 - - - 31.85

There are no overdue or cost overrun projects compared to its original plan and no intangible assets under development which are temporarily suspended, on the above mentioned reporting
The company has neither revalued nor impaired its intangible assets except for impairment relating to TopTak Education and interally generated content during the ye

ar ended March 31,
. P

(This space has been lefi blank intentionally)
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6. Inventories

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investment in iNeuron
Less: transfer from iNeuron investment to Intangible asset (Content)
Total investments in subsidiaries

& Edutech Private Limited amounting to INR 500,70 lacs (March 31. 2023 Nil. . April 01. 2022 Nil).

(6.869.53)
(1.078.61)
37.164.19

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01, 2022
Raw materials
In hand 1.994.60 406.53 -
Stock-in-trade
In hand 34874 2.525.77 320.81
In transit 31.93 2738 =
5,175.26 2,959.68 520.81
Less: allowance for inventorv obsolescence (396.000) 825.63) -
Total inventories 4.779.26 2.134.03 520.81
7(2). Financial assets
Investments - Non Current
As at Asat As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01. 2022
Inv in equity i (ung; d) (Fully paid equity shares) (refer note (1)) below 37.164.19 28.832.06 1.363.00
Total non current investments 37.164.19 28.832.06 1.365.00
i) Investments in subsidiaries (at cost)
Face Value per . As at = As at . As at
hare RS March 31. 2024 e March 31, 2023 ML April 01, 2022
Investment in equity Instruments - at cost
iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited (referred to as "iNeuron") INR 10 25.661 +.801.33 25.661 4.801.33 - -
Knowledge Planet Holdings Limited (referred to as "Knowledge Planet")* AED 10 1006 4.771.32 1000 2.131.47 - -
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited (referred to as "Penpencil")* INR 10 9.999 1.645.63 9999 1380.62 9999 1.365.00
Preponline Futurist Private Limited (referred to as "Preponline”) INR 10 Loop 127.53 Looo 127.53 - -
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited (referred to as "Utkarsh")* INR 10} 1.06.576 17.295.00 106576 1724430 - -
Xvlem Leaming Private Limited (referred to as "Xvlem")* INR 108 4.567 13324.71 - - - -
Investment in preference shares - at cost
iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited (referred to as "iNeuron”) INR 10 18.753 3.146.81 18.753 3.146.81 - -

* Amount as on March 31. 2024 includes share based payment expense on options granted to employees of Knowledge Planet Holding Limited amounting to INR 1215.19 lacs (March 31. 2023 - INR 60.43 lacs. April 01. 2022 Nil). employees of Penpencil Edu
Services Limited amounting to INR 265.01 lacs (March 31. 2023 - INR 15.62 lacs. . April 01. 2022 Nil). employecs of Xvlem Learning Private Limited amounting to INR 1(4).21 lacs (March 31. 2023 Nil. April 01. 2022 Nil). and employees of Utkarsh Classes

e Fair value of
- x . : . w No. of shares . " 5 . Deriyative derivative at initial
Name of entity, nature of business and details of purchase consideration Date of acquisition acquired Y% acquired % with minority interest| instrument (Refer
note below)
iNeuron. engaged in the business of providing online skilling and upskilling courses in a varicty of technology January 01. 2023 25.661.00 32.68% 67.33%]|  Put option with the (330.94)
domains including data science. artificial intelligence. web development etc. through the website and other channels sharcholders of
including mobile applications. minority interest
The Company exercises control over iNeuron as it has current ability to direct the relevant activities and is also
|exposed to variable returns generated by iNeuron and has ability to use its power to affect iNeuron's retums from
its involvement. Thus. investment in iNeuron is classified as investment in subsidiary.
L in subsidiary d at : INR 7.948.14 lacs
Knowledge Planet. provides coaching services for students in Class 9 till 12, For 9th and 10th grade stadents. they | 2o o1 2023 LR ) —— it - -
run Foundation program. with the objective of laving a strong Science & Maths foundation for higher classes and
competitive exams. For Science students in Class 11 and 12. they provide Comprehensive Engincering & Medical
Entrance Exam program to help students excel in Board exams and Competitive exams such as IIT JEE and NEET.
Investment in subsidiary measured at : INR 3.556.13 lacs
March 31. 2023 100000 10.00% 90.00%| Call option with the 27247
Preponline. engaged in the business of (i) operating an online e-leaming platform offering live as well as recorded Company and put
classes for preparation of competitive exams as well as sale of course materials and (i) publishing and selling option with the
ines. books. . legal datat paper. periodicals. jourals. other literary works books/ course shareholders of
materials/exam papers. ‘minority interest
The Company excreises control over Preponline as it has current ability to direct the relevant activities and is also
exposed to variable returns generated by Preponline and has an ability to use its power to affect Preponline’s
returns from its involv . Thus. & in P1 line is classified as investment in subsidiary.
) in subsidiary d at : INR 127.53 lacs '
Utkarsh. engaged in the business of providing hing for petiti inations in India March 31. 2023 1.06.576.00 3L.00% 49.00%| Forward contract to 7.274.50
conducted by central government. various state and other itiv inations such as purchase remaining
NEET/JEE. etc. Entity is an omni channel exam preparation platform. stake
Inv in sut d at : INR 17.243.25 lacs
June 17. 2023 4.567.00 60.35% 39.65%| Forward contract to (5.874.00)
Xylem. engaged in the business of providing online. hybrid and offline test preparation services for NEET. IT-JEE. purchase remaining
PSC and other competitive exams. stake
I in subsidiary d at : INR 13324.71 Lacs
As at As at
Carrying amount of financial liability and gain/loss on subseq is set out below: March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At the beginning of the year 7.016.03 -
Derivative asset/(liability) ised on acquition of subsidiari (5.874.00) 7.016.03
Net loss/(ain) on remeasurement of financial liability designated at FVTPL (unrealised) (refer note 25) (2.012.23) -
Reversal of Derivative liability on impairment of Ineuron (refer note 28) 530.94 -
At the end of the year (339.26) 7,016.03
Notes:
(a) The fair value of derivative i shall be sub Iy d through of profit and loss at each reporting date. (Refer note 34 for fair value of derivative on balance sheet date)
(b) The investment value above is adjusted with the fair value of the derivative instrument as on the transaction date.
7(b). Investments - Current
As at As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 Avril 01, 2022
Investments in Quoted Equity at fair value through profit and loss (refer (i) below) - 1.29 1.157.89
Investment in Quoted Mutual Funds Fair value through profit and loss (refer (ii) below) 10.841.32 20.544.96 1231.16
Investment in Quoted Non-convertible debenture through profit and loss (refer (iii) below) = =
Total current investments 20.546.24 2.389.05
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(i) Investment in equity instruments: quoted

Equity shares at fair value through profit or loss

3M INDIA LTD

Aarti Drugs Limited

Abbott India Ltd

Adani Wilmar Limited

Ajanta Pharma Ltd

Asahi Songwon Colors Limited
Asian Paints Ltd

Astral Limited

Aurobindo Pharma Limited

Axis Bank Ltd

Bajaj Finance Ltd

Bajaj Finserv Ltd

BEML Limited

Bhageria Industries Limited

Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited
Bharti Airtel Limited

Cartrade Tech Limited

CESC Limited

Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Companv Ltd
Cipla Limited

Coastal Corporation Limited.

Coforge Ltd

Computer Age Management Services Ltd
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electrical Ltd
Dalmia Bharat Sugar And Industrics Limited
Den Networks Limited

Dixon Technologies India Ltd

Dodla Dairv Limited

Dr Lal Pathlabs Ltd

Eicher Motors Limited

Fine Organic Industries Ltd

Force Motors Limited

FSN E-Commerce Ventures Limited
Garware Technical Fibres Ltd

Grasim Industries Limited

HCL Technologies Limited

HDFC Bank Limited

HDFC Life Insurance Companv Limited
HIL Limited

Himatsingka Seide Limited

Hindalco Industries Limited

Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited
ICICI Bank Limited

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Companv Ltd
India Nippon Electricals Limited
Indigo Paints Ltd

Info Edge India Ltd

Infosvs Limited

Infosvs Ltd

Intellect Design Arena Ltd

J.Kumar Infraprojects Limited

JSW Steel Limited

Jubilant Ingrevia Ltd

Jubilant Pharmova Limited

Kirloskar Ferrous Industries Limited.
KNR Constructions Ltd

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

KSB Limited

L&T Technologv Services Ltd
Lincoln Pharmaceuticals Limited
Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
Manali Petrochemicals Limited
Maruti Suzuki India Ltd

Metropolis Healthcare Ltd

Mphasis Ltd

Navin Fluorine International Ltd

NCL Industries Limited

Nestle India Ltd

Newgen Software Technologies Ltd
Orient Electric Ltd

Page Industries Ltd

Persistent Svstems Ltd

Phoenix Mills Ltd

Polv Medicure Ltd

Rajapalavam Mills Limited.

Rallis India Limited

Rama Phosphates Limited.

Reliance Industries Limited -
Rubfila International Limited.

S. P. Apparels Limited

Salzer Electronics Limited

Sequent Scientific Ltd

Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd

Tata Consultancy Services Limited
Tata Consumer Products Limited
Tata Steel Limited

Tech Mahindra Limited

Time Technoplast Limited

Titan Companv Ltd

Valiant Organics Limited

Vedant Fashions Ltd

Wipro Limited

Total investments in quoted equity shares

No of Units Amount
As at Asat As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01. 2022 March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01, 2022

- - 31 - - 6.11
- - = - 10.26
- - = - 7.79
- - - - 18.36
- - - - 374
= - - - 10.38
- - ~ - 18.97
- - = = 13.86
- - - - 10.36
- - & - 16.76
- - & - 10.31
- - el = 12.28
- 426 183 i 29 333
- - 4975 - - 11.07
- = 4414 - - 15.86
- - 2.102 - - 15.87
- - 333 - - 1.93
- - 16.090 - - 12.20
- - 2272 = - 16.32
- - 2732 - - 27.81
- - 4499 - - 1594
- - 170 - - 7.58
- - 259 = - 6.00
- - 1327 - - 4.96
- - 3.056 - - 14.70
- - 27.066 - - 9.99
- - 177 - - 7.63
- - 538 - - 241
- % 191 = - 499
- - 769 - - 18.90
- - 156 - - 6.25
- - 1312 - - 1337
- - 384 - - 6.49
- - 272 - - 7.68
- - 981 = - 16.32
- - 1357 - - 15.79
- - 3510 - - 5161
- - 3.755 - - 20.21
- - 319 - - 12.68
- - 4.026 - - 6.06
- - 3.884 - - 22.12
- - 641 - - 1532
- - 8.057 - - 58.84
- - 195 - - 259
= - 3.035 = - 12.90
- - 497 - - 7.98
- - 139 = - 6.27
- - 843 2 - 16.07
- - 2319 N - +H.22
- - 470 - - 445
- - 7536 - - 12.58
- - 2.100 - - 1539
- = 1.668 - - 7.50
- - 4355 - - 295
- - 7.270 = - 15.62
- - 918 - - 2.61
= . 920 - - 16.14
- = 1.320 - - 17.42
- - 85 - - 434
= = 4.020 = = 12,49
- - 2,050 - - 16.53
- - 14572 = - 15.79
- - 168 - - 12.70
- - 183 - - 3.73
- - 370 = - 12.49
- - 154 - - 6.29
- - 6.877 - - 1222
- - 132 - - 22.94
- - 674 - - 3.4
- - 937 - - 3.01
- - 12 - - 5.18
- - 262 i - 1249
- = 236 S - 2.60
- - 337 - - 3.20
= = 1.096 - - 9.88
- - 6.114 & - 14.55
= - 3315 - - 14.29
& & 604 - - 1591
- = 1L101 - - 10.23
o = 2.820 - - 9.64
- & 8390 - - 15.46
e = 2251 - - 3.01
- - 603 - - 3.73
- - 428 - - 16.01
- - 2.139 - - 16.63
e - 1.558 - - 20.37
= = 1041 - - 15.61
- = 21.835 - - 13.95
- - 886 - - 2247
= - 1.260 - - 11.60
= - 390 - - 3.77
= o 2.631 - - 13.57
- 1.29 1,157.89




wallah Private Limited

: USO90OUP2020PTC129223
Notes to § Jaak Financial §
(All amounty are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(ii) Quoted mutual funds
Mutual funds at fair value through profit or loss

No of Units Amount
As at As at As at Asat As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01. 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01, 2022
Tata Money Market Fund Growth Direct Plan 57361 - - 2.503.79 - -
HDFC Low Duration Fund Growth Direct Plan 20.87.627 - - 1.183.35 = =
ICICI Prudential Savings Fund Growth Direct Plan 1.48.691 - - 742.79 - =
UTI Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 25378 - - LO04.43 - =
Axis Ultra Short Term Fund Growth Direct Plan 1.94.30.249 = e 2.759.29 . .
ICICI PRU Equity Arbitrage Direct-Growth 13.05350 - - 437.09 - =
Aditva Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan 6.48.259 693417 - 2.209.21 -
Axis Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan - 2.M.277 - - -
DSP Liquidity Fund Growth Direct Plan - 1.69.157 - - -
Kotak Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan - 55334 - - -
SBI Liquid Fund Growth Direct Plan - 1.42.860 - - =
SBI Arbitrage Opportunities Fund Regular Plan Growth 4440 4440 - 1.38
ICICI Prudential Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth - - 436.294 - 50003
Motilal Oswal MOSt Shares NASDAQ-100 ETF e - 204917 - - 238.13
Truc beacon AIF = - 334509 - - 493.00
Total investments in quoted mutual funds 10.841.32 20.544.96 1.231.16
) Quoted non-convertiable debentures and commercial paper
Non-convertible debentures and commercial paper at fair value through profit or loss
No of Units Amount
As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01. 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
360 One Portfolia Managers 18M NCD 11 Apr 2025-INE196P07120 Lo - - 1.003.39 - -
Manipal Education and Medical Group India Private-INE487N07011 150 - - 1.589.75 - -
Piramal Enterprise Ltd 301D CP 30-SEP-24-INE140A141RY 106 - - 478.64 - -
Shriram Finance Limited SR 9.00%SFLNCDS2024 9 NCD-INE721 AO7RJ3 500 - - 501.73 - -
Total investments in quoted non-convertiable debentures and commercial paper 3.573.51 N B
7{c ). Loans
Non-current Current
Secured and considered good As at Asat As at As at As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01. 2022 March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01, 2022
Loan to related parties (refer note 32)* 7.450.82 - - 347555 2501.24 -
Loans to employvees 576.60 - - 211.96 72.61 49.98
Total loans 8.027.42 - - 3.687.52 2.573.85 49.98

*The aforesaid loan carries interest rate 9% p.a for both the subsidiaries Pen Pencil Edu Services Private Limited and Xylem Leaming Private Limited. Loan given to Pen Pencil Edu Services Private Limited is repavable on demand & to Xvlem Leaming Private

Limited has a moratorium of 12 months.
No loans or advances have been granted to promoters. directors or KMPs.

Amount of loan or advance in the nature of loan outstanding Percentage to the total Loans and Advances in the nature of loans
at Asat

March 31. 2023

s at

As at

April 01. 2022 March 31. 2024

Pen Pencil Edu Services Private Limited
Xvlem Learning Private Limited

March 31, 2024
3.475.55
7.450.82

As at
March 31. 2023

As at
April 01. 2022

2501.24 -

30%

64%

97%

10.926.37

2.501.24 - 93%

97%

0%

As at
March 31. 2024

Unsecured
Trade receivables - billed considered good
Trade receivables - unbilled considered good

Trade receivables - related parties (refer note no 32)
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts
Total trade receivables

Break-up of trade receivables

1333.11
109.11
376.85

(138.53)

As at
March 31. 2023

163.87
247.16
169.19

As at
April 01, 2022

13.06

1.680.54

580.22

13.06

As at
March 31. 2024

Trade receivables (Unsecured - considered zood)

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total trade receivables

Impaimment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade receivables - credit impaired

Total trade receivables

Movement in allowance for credit losses of receivables

1.680.54

As at
March 31. 2023
580.22

As at
April 01, 2022
13.06

(138.53)

13.06

1.680.54

13.06

As at
March 31. 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Opening Balance

Provision for expected credit losses
Reversals/Adjustments

Closing Balance

Trade receivables ageing
As at March 31, 2024

Unbilled dues

Current
but not due

Outstanding for following periods from date of invoice

0-6 months

6 months - 1 year

1-2 years 2 -3 years

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Reccivables - credit impaired

109.11

1.226.72

207.62 137.10 -
119.73 18.80 -

168054

Total

109.11

327.35

1.819.07

Trade receivables ageing
As at March 31, 2023

Unbilled

Current
but not due

O

utstanding for following

riods from date of invoice

0-6 months

6 months — 1 year

1-2 years 2 -3 yeary

More than 3
years

Total

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit ris
Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

Disputed Trade Reccivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

247.16

313.92

19.14 - -

580.22

Total

580.22




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223
Notes to Standal Financial § for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR lacs. unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables ageing
As at April 01, 2022

Current Qutstanding for following periods from date of invoice

" - =D NRATE -3 vebrs " i
but not due 0-6 months 6 months ~ 1 year 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 Total

Unbilled
years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered pood - - 13.06 - - - - 13.06
Undisputed Trade Reccivables - which have significant increase in credit rish - - - - - - B =
Undisputed Trade Reccivables - credit impaired - - - - - - - 5
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - - a.
Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - = z

Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - = = o
Total - - 13.06 - - - = 13.06

Notes:

i. There are no non-current trade receivables as on March 31. 2024. March 31. 2023 and April 01. 2022,

ii. No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is 2 partner. a
director or a member. '

iii. Trade receivables arc non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 days.

iv. Due dates have been considered from invoice date.

v. The receivable is "unbilled” because the Company has not yet issued an invoice: however. the balance has been included under trade receivables (as opposed to contract assets) because the Company has an diti right to

7(e ). Cash and cash equivalents

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Balances with banks:
i. Current accounts 2.246.06 459.83 603.13
ii. Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 240270 -
Cash on hand 469.22 136.23 7.38
Cash in transit 61.73 40.24 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 2.777.01 3.039.00 610.51
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Balances with banks:
i, Current accounts 2.246.06 459.83 603.13
ii. Deposits with original maturitv: of less than three months - 2.402.70 -
Cash on hand 469.22 136.23 7.38
Cash in transit 61.73 40.24 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 2.777.01 3.039.00 610.51
7(f). Other bank balances
_ As at As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 2.580.51 45353.15 3.389.04
Interest accrued but not due deposits with maturitv' more than 3 months but less than 12 months . 2.02 196.01 9.35
Total other bank balances 2.582.54 3.398.39
7(z). Other financial assets
Non-current Current
As at As at Asat As at As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01. 2022 March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01. 2022
Unsecured. considerced zood
Bank deposits# 10.191.11 549434 28313.97 - -
Interest accrued but not due on deposits 20.75 43.78 230.27 - -
Securitv deposits 4.183.88 229.17 368.88 62.37 -
Derivative asset* 7.798.39 7.546.97 - - - s
Other receivables™* - - - 3.916.87 1.000.87 305.11
Total other financial assets 22.194.13 15.873.25 5.767.29 32.829.99 1.063.24 305.11
*Refer Note No 7(a)i)

**Qther receivables (current) includes INR 3.446.00 Iacs. INR 952.00 lacs and INR 229.00 lacs receivable from pavment gatewav comapnics as at March 31, 2024, March 31,2023 and Apnil 0. 2022 respectively.,
#Bank deposits includes deposits amounting INR 4.000.00 lacs (March 31. 2023 INR 4.006,00 lacs. April 61, 2022 Nil } and INR 4.500.00 lacs (March 31. 2023 INR 1.500.00 lacs. April 01. 2022 Nil ) lien marked against term loan and overdraft facilitv respec

8. Other assets

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at As at Asat

March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01. 2022 March 31. 2024 March 31. 2023 Avnril 01, 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 1.298.95 1.466.06 241 - - -
Prepaid expenses 19.00 57.81 - 918.75 768.89 104.98
Balances with statutory/ government authorities - - - 366.53 - -
Advance to suppliers - - - 479.57 609.89 69.53
Advance to employees - : - - 30.01 3111 0.60
Other advances - = = - - 308.53

Total other assets 1,523.87 2.41 1,794.86 1,409.89 483.64




Notes to Standal Financial S for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al

9 Share capital

wvallah Private Limited
U80900UP2020PTC129223

amounts are in INR Iacs except for number of shares, unless otherw ise stated)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Authorised shares 8
7.00.00.000 cquity shares of INR | cach 700.00 700.00 700.00
(March 31. 2024, March 31. 2023 and April 01. 2022 : 7.00.00.000 cquity shares of INR 1 cach)
70.00.000 0.001% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") of INR 10 cach 700.00 700.00 -
(March 31. 2024, March 31, 2023 700.00.000 CCPS of INR 10 cach and April 01, 2022 : Nil)
1.400.00 1,400.00 700.00
Issued shares, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
600.00 600.00 600.00

6.00.00.000 cquity sharcs of INR [ cach

(March 31, 2024 : 6.00,00.000 cquity shares of INR 1 cach)
(March 31, 2023 : 6.00,00.000 cquity shares of INR 1 cach)
(April 01,2022 : 6.00.00.000 cquity shares of INR 1 cach)

13 cquity sharcs of INR 1 cach* 0.00 0.00 -
(March 31, 2024 : 13 cquity sharcs of INR 1 cach)
(March 31, 2023 : 13 cquity sharcs of INR | cach)
(April 01, 2022 : Nil cquitv shares of INR 1 cach)
600.00 600.00 600.00,

* During the year ended March 31. 2023. the Company issucd 13 cquity shares of INR 1 cach. fully paid-up at a premium of INR 1.124 per share. Each holder of cquity share is cntitled to onc vote for cvery sharc held in the meeting of equity sharcholders. The
dividend proposcd by the board of dircctors is subjcet to the approval of the sharcholders in the cnsuing annual gencral meeting. Holder of these cquity shares has the right to require the Company to undertake a buyback of Investor sharcs or any portion thercof at
the fair market value (of the shares) if the Company will not be able to provide an Exit Option (IPO or Third-Party Sale).

on of number of equity shares

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Numbers Amount Numbers Amount
At the beginning of the period 6.00.00.013 600 6.00.00.000 600
Change during the year » = 13 .
At the end of the period 6.00,00,013 600 6.00.00,013 600

B. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares
As on March 31. 2024, the Company has issucd cquity shares having a par value of INR 1/- per share. Each holder of cquity sharc is cntitled to onc vote for cv ery sharc held in the mecting of cquity sharcholders. The Company declares and pays dividends in|

Indian Rupees. The dividend proposcd by the board of dircctors is subjeet to the approval of the sharcholders in the cnsuing annual general mecting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of cquity sharcs will be entitled to reccive remaining assets of the Company. after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity sharcs held by the

sharcholders.

C. Details of sh: holdings more than 5% shares
As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at April 01, 2022
entage age of 2
Number Pcrunt.ngc of Number Pcrtcni'lgn o Number Pcl‘ccnl'lg(‘ of
Holding Holding Holding
Equity shares of INR 1 each fully paid
Alakh Pandey 3.00.00.000 30%| 3.00.00.000 50%! 3.00.00.000 30%]
Pratcck Boob 3.00.00.000 30% 3.00.00.000 30%; 3.00.00.000 50%
6.00.00.000 100% 6.00.00.000 100%] 6.00.00.000 100%|
As per records of the Company. including its register of sharcholders:i bers and other declarations reccived from sharcholders regarding beneficial interest. the above sharcholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
D. Aggregate number of shares allotted as fully paid by way of bonus shares (during five years immediately preceding the reporting date):
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
No. of equity sharcs allotied as fully paid bonus sharcs by capitalization of surplus in the statement of profit and loss - - 5.99.00.000 - - -
= = 5.99.00.000 - - =

The Company has allotted 5,99.00.000 fully paid up cquity sharcs of INR 1/- cach pursuant to 399:1 bonus sharc issuc approved by the board resolution passed on March 21. 2022, by capitalising the amount of INR 599.00 lacs of surplus in the statement of
profit and loss of the Company.

E. Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of sharcs reserved for issuc under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company. refer note 38.
For details of sharcs reserved for issuc on conversion of CCPS. refer note 13(a) regarding terms of conversion/ redemption of preference sharcs.

F. Details of sharcholding of Promoters in the Company

Name As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 Change during the % change during
Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding year the year

Alakh Pandey 3.00.00.000 50.00% 3.00.00.000 50.00% - 0%

Pratcck Boob . 3.00.00.000 50.00% 3.00.00.000 50.00% - 0%

Name As at March 31, 2023 As at April 01, 2022 Change during the % change during
Number of shares % Holding Number of shares % Holding year the year

Alakh Pandey 3.00.00.000 50.00% 3.00.00.000 50.00% - 0%

Prateck Boob 3.00.00.000 50.00% 3.00.00.000 50.00% - 0%




Physicswallah Private Limited |
CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223 ‘
Notes to Standal Financiai §; for the year ended March 31, 2024 |
All amounts are in INR Iacs except for number of shares, unless otherwise stated) |

10 Other equity

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Relained camings (1.04.763.18) 205847 9.834.99
General reserve 10.10 - -
Employce stock options reserve 15.173.46 3.892.62 -
Sceuritics premium 0.15 0.15 -
Stock option 2.963.23 2.963.23 -

8,914.47 9,834.99

i) Retained carnings

A. Surplus in statement of profit and loss

Balance at beginning of the year 2.156.38 9.834.99 658.63

Add: Profit for the year (1.07.097.29) (7.678.61) 9.775.36

Less: Bonus sharc issucd during the year - - (599.00)

Closing balances (1,04,940.91) 2,156.38 9,834.99

B.Other comprehensive income

Balance at beginning of the year (97.90) - -

Add : Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans( net of Income tax effect) 275.63 (97.90) -

Closing balances 177.73 (97.90) -

Closing balances of retained carnings (1,04,763.18) 2,058.47 9,834.99
ii) General reserve

Balance at beginning of the year - - -

Add : Transfer from employee stock option reserve 10.10 - -

Closing balance 10.10 - -
iii. Employce stock options reserve (refer note 38)

Balance at the beginning of the year 3.892.62 - -

Add: Compensation options granted during the ycar 10.683.91 3.816.57 -

Add: Options granted to employecs of subsidiary companics 1571.74 76.05 -

Less: Transfer to general reserves (10.10) - -

Less: Scttiement of compensation options (964.71) - -

Closing balance 15,173.46 3.892.62 -
iv’ Securities premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 0.15 - -

Add: Premium on issuc of equity shares - .15 -

Closing balance 0.15 0.15 -
v) Stock Options

Balance at the beginning of the year 2963.23 - -

Add: Issucd during the vear - 2.963.23 -

Closing balance 2,963.23 2,963.23 -

Nature of reserves:

a) Retained carnings
Retained camings arc the profits/(loss) that the Company has camed/incurred till date. less any transfers to general reserve. dividends or other distributions paid to sharcholders. Retained camings include re-mcasurcment loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans. net of
taxcs that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢ amount transferred /apportioned rep: isin d: with (The C ics Act. 2013) wherein a portion of profit is apportioncd to general reserve. before a company can declare dividend.

¢) Other comprehensive income
Other Comprehensive Income Reserve represent the balance in equity for item to be d in Other C hensive Income. OCl is classificd into
1) Items that will not be reclassificd to profit & loss
ii) item that will be reclassificd to profit & loss.
Actuarial Gain and losscs for defined plans are recognized through OCI in the period in which they occur. R arc not reclassificd to profit or loss in subscquent periods.

d) Employee stock options reserve (refer note 38)
Employee stock options reserve is used to recognise the valuc of equity settled share based payments provided to employces as a part of their remuncration.

¢) Seccurities premium
Sccuritics premium is uscd to record the premium on issuc of shares and can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act. 2013.

f) Stock Options
During the year ended March 31. 2023. the Company had acquired "OniyIAS Nothing Elsc”. Pursuant to busincss purchase agreement. proprictor of entity shall be given certain stock options of the company amounting to INR 2.444 lacs on the datc of thel
transaction. Every 10 stock options shall be converted into onc cquity share upon payment of excreise price of INR 1 per option. The Company acquired 51% sharcholding in "Utkarsh" and pursuant to sharc purchase agreement. the crstwhile promoters of catity.
have been issued certain share options excrcisable at any time after the acquisition date. Every | stock option shail be converted into one cquity share upon payment of excreise price of INR 1 per option. The Company has recognised the fair value of such)

options on the acquisition date amounting to INR 319 lacs.




Physicswallah Private Limited
CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1T a) The company has lease contracts for office premiscs and coaching centers. Leases generally have lease term between 1 to 9 years. Generally the company is restricted from 2 assigning and subleasing the leased assct. There are several lease

contracts that includes extension and termination options which are further discussed below.
b) The company also has certain leascs of INR 918 lacs with lease term of 12 months or less and low value. The company applics the”Short term lease” and "lease of low value assets” recognition exemption for the leascs.

Right-of-use assets

Building
Gross Carrying value
As at April 01, 2022 * 3,869.93
Addition 42.457.84
Disposal (16.91)
As at March 31, 2023 46,310.86
Gross Carrying value
As at April 01, 2023 46.310.86
Addition 37.279.29
Disposal (3.290.69)
As at March 31, 2024 80,299.46
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2022 * 6.68
Depreciation charged for the year 4.041.72
Disposal (3.84)
As at March 31, 2023 4,044.56
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2023 4,044.56
Depreciation charged for the year 10.722.81
Disposal (966.36)
As at March 31, 2024 13,801.01
Net Balance at April 01, 2022 3,863.25
Net Balance at March 31, 2023 42,266.30
Net Balance at March 31, 2024 66,498.45
* The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach for accounting of leases as per Ind-AS 116
12 Leases
Lease liabilities movements during the year ended:
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opcening balance 42.958.03 3.762.56
Addition 36.143.55 41.296.15
Accreditation of interest 5.0 1.753.41
Pavments (10.940.. iS) (3.841.18)
Adjustment on account of modification of Icascs (190.46) (129D
Derecognized during the year (2.278.86) -
Closing balance 70.707.32 42.958.03
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Leasc liabilitics 61.078.50 37.521.22 3.195.61 9.628.81 5.436.81 566.95
Total lease liabilities 61.,078.50 37.521.22 3.195.61 9.628.81 5.436.81 5§66.95
The effective interest rate for lease liabilitics 8.5% p.a. with maturity till 9 years
13 Financial liabilities
13(a) Borrowings
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Term Loan
From bank (sccured) (refer note (a) below) 3.376.88 6.678.20 - 3.322.77 3.076.96 -
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") (refer note 25)
Secries A 0.001% CCPS (refer note (b) below) 64.230.00 33.540.06 - . - - -
Series A1 0.001% CCPS (refer note () below) 97.238.46 52.281.82 - - - -
Total borrowings 1.64.845.35 92.500.07 - 3.322.77 3.076.96 =

(a) Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowing :
Term loan from HDFC bank was taken during the vear ended March 31. 2023 and carrics interest @, 8.50% p.a. The loan is repayable in 35 monthly instalments of INR 315.67 lacs cach along with interest from the year ended March 31. 2023,

The loan is sccured by hypothecation of furniture & fixturcs and other fixed asscts and sccond charge on fixed deposits held with HDFC bank amounting to INR 4.000.00 lacs. During the year. the rate of interest has been increased to ‘@ 8.96%
p-a. and the balance is now repayable in 24 monthly instalments of INR 315.67 lacs cach along with the interest from the vear ended March 31, 2024,

(b)Terms of conversion/redemption of Series A CCPS

During the year ended March 31. 2023, the company issued 26.66.634 compulsorily convertible cumulative preference (CCPS) of INR 10 cach fully paid-up at 2 premium of INR 1.115 per share. These CCPS carry cumulative dividend «
0.001% p.a. The company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing annual general mecting. The holders of the Serics A CCPS
shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the Sharcholders (including the holders of Equity Shares). Each Scries A CCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes cqual to the number of
wholc or fractional cquity shares into which such Serics A CCPS could then be converted.

Optional Conversion: On the conversion date. the Serics A CCPS shall be converted into equity shares at the conversion price determined as provided in agreement. The Series A Conversion Price initially shall be INR 1.125 (Rupees One
Thousand Onc Hundred Twenty Five only) and cach Scries A CCPS converting into | (one) equity Share. and shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the agreement.

Mandatory conversion: All of the Series A CCPS shall mandatorily be converted in such manner and into such number of fully paid Equity Sharcs as is determined pursuant to the relevant clauses of the agreement upon the expiry of a period
of 20 (twenty) vears from the date of issuance of such Serics A CCPS or such other period as may be permissible under applicable Law. The Serics A Conversion Price initially shall be INR 1.125 (Rupees One Thousand One Hundred Twenty
Five only) and cach Serics A CCPS converting into 1 (one) Equity Share. and shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the agreement.

In the cvent of liquidation of the Company before conversion/ redemption of CCPS. the holders of CCPS will have priority over cquity shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of capital

Holder of CCPS has the right to require the Company to undertake a buyback of Investor shares or any portion thercof atthe fair market value (of the shares) if the Company will not be able to provide an Exit Option (1PO or Third-Party Saic).

(¢)Terms of conversion/redemption of Series A1 CCPS
During the year ended March 31, 2023. the Company issucd 40.00.000 CCPS of INR 10 cach fully paid-up at a premium of INR 1.218 per share. CCPS carry cumulative dividend @ 0.001% p.a. The Company declares and pays dividends in

Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing annual gencral meeting. The holders of the Serics Al CCPS shall be entitled to receive notice of and vote on all
matters that arc submitted to the vote of the sharcholders (including the holders of Equity Shares). Each Series A1 CCPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the number of whole or fractional cquity shares into which such
Scries A1 CCPS could then be converted.

Optional Conversion: On the Conversion Datc. the Series Al CCPS shall be converted into cquity shares at the conversion price determined as provided in agreement. The Series Al conversion price initiaily shall be subscrip‘lion price i.c. INR
1.228 and cach Series Al CCPS converting into | (onc) equity sharc. and shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the agreement.

Mandatory conversion: All of the Serics A CCPS shail mandatorily be converted in such manner and into such number of fully paid cquity shares as is determined pursuant to the relevant clauses of the agreement upon the expiry of a period of
20 (twenty) years from the date of issuance of such Serics A1 CCPS or such other period as may be permissible under auvlu.;xbk Law. The Scries Al conversion price initially shall be subscription price i.c. INR 1.228 and cach Scrics Al CCPS
converting into | (one) cquity Share. and shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the ag,ru,m;m 3 N

In the event of liquidation of the Company before conversion/ redemption of CCPS. the holders of CCPS will Imu pnotm oy
Holder of CCPS has the right to require the Company to undertake a buyback of Investor shares or any portion/

shares in the payment of dividend and repayment of capital.
<tLvalie (of the shares) if the Company will not be able to provide an Exit Option (IPO or Third-Party Salc).
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13(b)_Trade payables

As at
March 31. 2024

As at
March 31. 2023

As at

April 01, 2022

1. Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 37 for details of ducs to
micro and small enterprises)

ii. Total outstanding duces of creditors other than
micro cnterprises and small enterpriscs

Total trade payables

Note:

i. Trade payables includes amount payable to related partics of INR 946.72 lacs (March 31. 2023 INR 511.25 lacs and April 01. 2022: Nil) (refer note 32)

ii. For explanations on the Company’s credit risk management processes. refer to Note 33,

Trade payables ageing schedule:
As at March 31, 2024

1.824.62

7.188.47

1.468.81

2.672.67

6.32

108.60

9,013.09

4,141.48

114.92

Unbilled Dues Not due

Outstandin

g from date of invoice

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro
eaterprises and small enterprises

Disputed ducs of micro enterprises and small
cnterprises

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterpriscs
and small enterpriscs

430.93 3

2.602.53 -

1319.33

4.550.19

3.00 1.36

%)
=
%)
b7
©
&

1.824.62

7.188.47

Total 3,033.46 -

5,869.52

99.35

10.76

9,013.09

As at March 31, 2023

Unbilled Dues Not due

Outstandin

g from date of invoice

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Disputed dues of micro cnterprises and small
enterprises

Disputed ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises z

21145 -

729.19 =

1.257.36

1.935.98

1.468.81

2.672.67

Total 940.64 -

3,193.34

4,141.48

As at April 01, 2022

Unbilled Dues Not due

Outstanding from date of invoice

Less than 1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Total outstanding ducs of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterpriscs -
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Disputed dugs of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises =

6.32

108.60

6.32

108.60

Total

114.92

114.92

Terms and conditions of trade payables
i) Trade payablcs arc non-interest bearing and arc normally settled on terms of 30 days.
i) For terms and conditions with related partics. refer to Note No 32.

iif) The Company has reccived information from Creditors regarding their status under the Micro. Small and Medium Enterpriscs Development Act. 2006 and hence disclosure relating to amounts unpaid together with interest paid / payable have

been disclosed in note no 37.

13(c) _Other financial liabilities

Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Deferred purchase consideration (refer note (a) below) - 169.42 - 488.57 750.62 -
Emplovee benefits pavable (refer note (b) below) 125.00 25.00 - 4.228.94 937.56 23.75
Interest accrued but not duc on term loans - = - 3877 5350 -
Pavable in respect of capital goods - - - 2.760.66 1.550.08 32.60
Franchisce deposit 111.00 105.00 - - - -
Derivative liability (refer Note No 7(a)(i) 7.549.13 - - 588.52 530.94 -
Sceurity Deposit Refundable - = z. 154.07 - -
Total other financial liabilities 7,785.13 299.42 - 8,259.53 3.822.70 56.35

(2) During the year ended March 31. 2023, the Company had acquired Entity "OnlylAS Nothing Elsc". for an aggregate consideration of INR 3.900.64 lacs. Pursuant to the business purchasc agreement. out of the above mentioned deferred
purchasc consideration. an amount of INR 186.85 lacs (March 31. 2023 INR 93.00 lacs (including accrued interest)) payable on December 31, 2024 representing current portion and an amount of INR Nil (March 31. 2023: INR 169.00 lacs
(including accrued interest)) representing non-current portion of the aggregate liability. to the proprictor of entity. The Company has recognised such deferred consideration at its fair value as on the date of acquisition using the cffective interest

rate method.

During the year ended March 31. 2023, the Company acquired 32.68% shares in "iNcuron” for an aggregate consideration of INR 7.948.14 lacs. Pursuant to the share acquisition term agreement. the Company paid deferred purchase
consideration of INR 400,00 lacs (including acerued interest) on January 01. 2024. During the year ended March 31, 2024. the company has made the complete payment and no amount is payable in respect of aforesaid transaction.

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company acquired 100% shares in "Knowledge Planet” for an aggregate consideration of INR 2.071.04 lacs. Pursuant to the share acquisition term agreement. out of the mentioned purchase
consideration an amount of INR 301.71.00 lacs (March 31. 2023: 285.00 lacs). including accrued interest. is payable on March 31. 2024 representing current portion of the liability to the founder of Knowledge Planct. The Company has
recognised such deferred consideration on its fair value as on the date of acquisition using the effective interest rate method.

(b) The amount of INR 125.00 lacs is payable to the founders of OnlylAS against the employment terms as per the cmployment agreement dated December 31, 2023. The current portion includes amount of INR 402.29 lacs pavabie to the

founders of Knowledge Planet against the cmployment terms as per the employment agreement dated March 31, 2023
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14

15

Provisions
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Provision for cmplovee bencfits
i. Provision for gratuity (refer note 33) 889.08 253.46 57.16 237 - -
ii. Provision for compensated absences - = = 943.90 400.60 -
Total provisions 889.08 253.46 57.16 946.27 400.60 -
Tax asset/liabilitv (net)
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01,2022
Advance tax (net of provision) 3.133.01 2.581.98 138.58 - - -
Less:- Provision for Income Tax (1.451.09) (1.451.09) - - - (4.60)
Total tax asset/liabilty (net) 1,681.92 1,130.89 138.58 - - (4.60)
Other liabilities
Current
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Contract liabilitics (refer note (a) below) 51.825.09 26.048.59 4.463.05
Statutory ducs (including provident fund and tax deducted at source) 4.648.66 2.065.66
Pavable to related partics 38.80 68.86
Other pavables 13.74 36.62 -
Total other liabilties 56,526.29 28,239.73 6.363.24
Note (a) Contract liabilities
Current
Asat As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023 April 01, 2022
Advances from customers 51.825.09 26.048.59 4.463.03
Total contract liabilties 51,825.09 26,048.59 4.463.05

M of contract liabiliti

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31,2023

Opening contract liabilitics 26.048.59 4.463.05
Amount recognised in revenue (25.443.17) (4.463.05)
Amount received in advance during the year 51.219.67 26.048.59
Closing contract liabilities 51,825.09 26,048.59

Contract liabilitics represent the amount received against the company's future performance obligation to transfer cither goods or services.

(This space has been lefi blank intentionally)
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17.

a)

b)

Revenue from operations
Revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations

Sale of services 1,37,958.66 66,485.57
Sale of products 15,176.43 6,655.06
Other operating revenue
Advertisement income 512.54 335.66
Total revenue from operations 1.53.647.63 73.476.29
Disaggregated revenue information
Sale of services
Income from coaching services 1.37.958.66 66.485.57
1,37,958.66 66,485.57
Sale of products
Traded goods - Students 11,764.60 6,385.21
Traded goods - Distributors 3.411.83 269.85
15,176.43 6,655.06
Other operating revenue
Advertisement income 512.54 335.66
512.54 335.66
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1.53.647.63 73.476.29
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over the time 1,36,280.32 65,578.14
Products/services transferred at point in time 17,367.31 7,898.15
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1.53.647.63 73.476.29
Revenue by geography
India 1,53,647.63 73,476.29
Outside India - -
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1.53.647.63 73.476.29
Contract balances
Current
As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Trade receivables 1.680.54 580.22 13.06
Contract Liabilities 51,825.09 26,048.59 4,463.05

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. As at March 31, 2024 Rs. 138.53 lacs (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil; April 01, 2022: Rs. Nil)

was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue. A receivables is right to consideration that is
unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue of ongoing services at the reporting date yet to be invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue.
Unbilled revenues are billed in a term of 365 days. A sum of Rs. Nil (previous year Nil) has been recognised as provision for expected credit losses on unbilled revenue during the

c) Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

d) Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue as per contracted price 1,53,647.63 73,476.29
Adjustments:
Discount* - -
Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1.53.647.63 73.476.29

*As the company's contracted price is the price net of discount. Additional disclosure related to discount not given above.

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting period and an
explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. As at March 31,2024, the aggregate amount of transaction price~allocated to remaining
performance obligation as per requirment of Ind As 115 was INR 51,825.09 lakhs ( March 31, 2023: INR 26,048.59 lakhs) out of which, -approximately’ 83% ( March 31, 2023:

98%) is expected to be recognised as revenues within one vear and the balance beyond one vear.
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19

20

21A

21B

Other income

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest income earned on
Deposits with bank 3,955.13 1,929.38
Loan to subsidiary 384.88 88.88
Loan to employees 5.68 4.38
Debt instruments 52.08 -
Financial assets carried at amortised cost 332.71 108.15
Others
Net gain on sale of investment in mutual funds 2,237.34 274.66
Unrealised gain on mutual funds 74.68 174.88
Cross charge income (refer note 32b) 359.60 18.59
Rental Income 4.68 -
License income (net of cost) - 232.60
Dividend income - 13.77
Net gain on sale of investment in equity shares - 5.05
Gain on settlement of forward contract* - 15.61
Liabilities written back - 9.49
Miscellaneous income 465.62 34.44
Total other income 7.872.39 2.909.89

* The company had taken a forward contract for payment of consideration under acquisition agreement, which was subsequently settled by the company due to cancellation of

agreement with the countervailing party.

Direct expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Professional fees 8,113.95 3,835.52
Server expenses 4,398.77 1,494.06
Student support services 3,852.27 45479
Student test expenses 1,588.23 1,048.53
Loading & Unloading Charges 145.77 -
18.099.01 6.832.90
Purchase of stock-in-trade
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Study material 5.079.93 3,173.00
5.079.93 3.173.00
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade and finished goods
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Stock:
Stock-in-trade 1.727.50 520.81
1,727.50 520.81
Closing stock
Stock-in-trade 2.784.66 1,727.50
2,784.66 1,727.50
Net increase (1.057.16) (1.206.69)

Cost of raw material and components consumed

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year

Cost of raw material and components consumed

406.53 =
6,397.31 3,259.95
(1.994.60) (406.53)
4.809.24 2.853.43
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22 Employee benefits expense

23

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 82,940.24 34,336.78
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 33) 2,168.08 885.48
Share based payment to employees (refer note 38) 13,509.52 3,816.57
Gratuity expenses (refer note 33 1,006.33 65.47
Staff welfare expenses 2.478.37 1.416.85
1.02.102.54 40.521.15

The Code on Social Security, 2020 ('Code") relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefits received Presidential assent in September 2020. The
Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules/interpretation have not vet
been issued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a
preliminary assessment, the entity believes-the impact of the change will not be significant.

Finance costs

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Interest expense on:

-Lease liabilities 5,015.62 1,753.41

-Borrowings 717.88 124.33

-MSME payables 56.32 -
Interest on late deposit of:

-Income tax - 122.09

-GST and others - 25.36
Unwinding of interest on deferred purchase consideration (refer note 43) 64.22 15.50
Bank charges 51.16 9.04

5,905.19 2,049.73

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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26

27

27a

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Depreciation on right of use assets 10,722.81 4,041.72
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 5a) 9.813.24 3,024.71
Amortization of other intangible assets (refer note 5b) 592.32 191.79
Impairment of goodwill (refer note 43(a)(ii)) - 105.98
Impairment of other intangible assets (refer note 43(a)(ii)) - 173.60
Impairment/write off of intangible assets (refer note 5¢) - 467.28

21,128.37 8.,005.08

Net loss on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
CCPS (refer note 13(a)) 75.646.58 6,713.77
Derivative assets & liabilities 2,012.23 -
77,658.81 6,713.77

Carrying amount of financial liability and gain/loss on subsequent measurement is set out below:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At the beginning of the year 7.016.03 =
Derivative asset/(liability) recognised on acquition of subsidiaries (5,874.00) 7.016.03
Net loss/(gain) on remeasurement of financial liability designated at FVTPL (unrealised) (refer no (2,012.23) -
Reversal of Derivative liability on impairment of Ineuron (refer note 28) 530.94 -
At the end of the year (339.26) 7,016.03

Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advertisement and publicity expenses 15,637.05 6,667.355
Legal and professional charges 2,207.67 906.82
Power and fuel expenses 2.236.91 744.80
Housekeeping charges 1,839.97 723.03
Software subscription expenses 1,374.46 614.28
Travelling and accommodation expenses 1,752.80 581.13
Freight and forwarding charges 1.816.21 804.66
Security expenses 1.089.50 333.04
Office expenses 1,032.00 525.49
Repairs & maintenance expenses:
Building 937.60 1,066.39
Plant and machinery 118.74 =
Others 2.93 9.50
Provision for doubtful debts & advances 204.79 -
Rates and taxes 671.95 375.66
Commission expenses 453.50 322.37
Technology expenses 702.51 397.20
Lease expenses 918.51 137.56
Payment gateway charges 243.78 492.48
Communication cost 520.13 132.18
CSR expenditure (refer note 39) 126.24 140.36
Packaging material cost 488.39 262.61
Payment to auditor (refer note 27a below) 163.50 80.00
I.oss on sale of plant. property and equipment (net) - 16.51
Insurance charges 2.58 157.82
Miscellaneous expenses 20.63 58.96
34.562.39 15,550.40
Payment to auditors:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As auditors:
Audit fee T 150.00 80.00
Out of pocket expenses - . s 13.50 -
163.50 80.00
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28 Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Impairment of investment in subsidiary (net of reversal of derivative liability on the date of

acquition amounting INR 330.94 lacs)

29 Earnings per share (EPS)

6,338.58

6,338.58

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equityholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. The Company has issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") and employee stock options that would

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Profit for the year
Net profit for calculation of basic/diluted EPS (a)

(1.07,097.29)

(7,678.61)

(1.07.097.29)

(7.678.61)

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic/diluted EPS (c)

Basic and diluted earnings per share (INR) (a/c)

6,00,00,013

(178.50)

6,00,00,010

(12.80)

As at March 31, 2024 ordinary shares issuable against 169,825 stock options (March 31, 2023 : 22,583), 3,695,623 employee stock options plan (March 31, 2023
2,385,379) were excluded from the diluted weighted average humber of

:1,132,776) and 6,666,654 compulsorily convertible preference shares (March 31, 2023 :

ordinary shares calculation as their effect is anti-dilutive.

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Weighted average
number of shares

Equity shares of face value of INR 10 per share:
As at April 01, 2022

Changes in equity shares during the year

As at March 31, 2023

Changes in equity shares during the year

As at March 31, 2024

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

6,00,00,000
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6,00,00,013

6,00,00,013
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" For the year ended For the year ended
30 Income tax y
A. Major components of income tax (expenses)/income are
Recognised in profit and loss
Current tax - 1.452.00
MAT credit entitlement - =
Deferred tax (credit)/charge (6.009.59) (1.879.98)
Total (6.009.59) (427.98)
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Tax impact on
-Fair valuc of cquity instruments through other comprehensive income (92.70) 3293
Total (92.70) 32.93
B. Reconciliation of effective tax rate For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Loss before tax (1,13,106.88) (8,106.59)
Tax using Companv's domestic tax rate 25.17% (28.466.74) 25.17% (2.040.27)
Effect of expenses permancently disallowed under the Income Tax Act.
1961:
Net loss on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value 19.545.17 1.689.72
Impairment loss on investment in subsidiary 1.595.29 -
CSR expenditure (refer note 39) 3177 3533
Interest expense on MSMED pavables 14.18 -
Others 1.363.44 (1.94)
Taxes on income at different rates/exempt income - (110.82)
Income tax recognised in statement of profit and loss (5,916.89) (427.98)
As at As at As at
Deferred t. 1. t
RO e March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022
Deferred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
Investment at fair value through OCI - - -
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability (asset) (39.78) 32.93 =
(@ (59.78) 32.93 -
Deferred tax related to items recognised in profit and loss:
Deferred tax assets (gross)
Lease liabilitics 17.795.62 10.811.68 -
Fair valuation of financial asscts 196.91 263.87 -
Provision for inventorics 108.13 207.80 -
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 521.60 130.68 -
Fair valuation of financial liabiliti 241.22 940.92 219
Property. plant and cquipment 409.51 164.80 -
(b) 19.272.99 12.519.75 2.19
Deferred tax liabilities (gross)
Right of usc asscts (16.736.33) (10.637.58) -
Others (16.68) - -
(<) (16.753.01) (10,637.58) -
Unabsorbed depreciation and tax losses 537177 - -
(d) 5.371.77 - -
Deferred tax assets (net) (N = (2a)Hb)Hc)Hd) 7.831.98 1.915.09 2.19
Less: MAT credit entitiement - - -
Total deferred tax assets (net) 7.831.98 1.915.09 2.19
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D. Movement in temporary differences

As at March 31, 2024

Balance as at

Recognised in profit or

Recognised in OCI

Balance as at

April 01. 2023 loss March 31,2024
Deferred tax assets (net)
Leasc liabilitics 10.811.68 6.983.94 = 17.795.62
Financial asscts 263.87 (66.96) - 196.91
Inventorics 207.80 (99.66) - 108.13
Provision for gratuitv and compensated absences 130.68 390.92 (92.70) 428.90
Financial liabilitics 940.92 (699.70) = 241.22
Unabsorbed losses for the current vear = 337077 = 5.371.77
Property. plant and cquipment 164.80 244.70 - 409.51
Total 12,519.75 12,125.01 92.70 24.552.06
Less: Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Right of usc asscts (10.637.58) (6.098.75) - (16.736.33)
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 3293 3293
Other - (16.68) (16.68)
Total (10,604.66) (6.115.42) = (16,720.08)
Deferred tax assets (net) 1.915.09 6.009.59 92.70 7.831.98
As at March 31, 2023

Bal. as at Recognised in profit or o i Balance as at

April 01, 2022 loss e March 31.2023
Deferred tax assets (net)
Leasc liabilitics - 10.811.68 - 10.811.68
Fair valuation of financial asscts - 263.87 - 263.87
Inventorics - 207.80 - 207.80
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences - 130.68 - 130.68
Financial liabilitics 2.19 938.73 - 940.92
Unabsorbed losses for the current year - - - -
Property. plant and cquipment - 164.80 - 164.80
Total 2.19 12.517.56 - 12,519.75
Less: Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Right of usc asscts - (10.637.58) - (10.637.58)
Provision for gratuitv and compensated absences - - 3293 32.93
Others - - -
Deferred tax assets (net) 2.19 1.879.98 3293 1.915.09
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Segment information

The Company's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business activities carried on by the Company. Chief xecutive Officer (CI1:0) has been identified as
the Chief Operating Decision Makers ('CODM') and evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of the various performance indicators of
the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there are no separate reportable business segments as per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. The Company operates in one
reportable business scgment i.e. engaged in the business of education by providing online and offline coaching and study materials and is primarily operating in India and
hence, considered as single geographical segment.

Related party disclosures

List of Related Parties

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS -24 'Related Party Disclosures', names of the related parties, nature of related party relationship, transactions and outstanding
balances where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the period are:

Nature of relationship ) Name of the party

Entities where control exists
Subsidiary Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited (w.e.f. March 30, 2022)
Subsidiary Preponline Futurist Private Limited (w.e.f. March 31, 2023)
Subsidiary Knowledge Planet Holdings L.imited (w.e.f. March 31, 2023)
Subsidiary iNeuron Intelligence Private .imited (w.e.f. December 31, 2022)
Subsidiary Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited (w.e.l. March 31, 2023)
Subsidiary Xylem Learning Private Limited (w.e.fJune 17, 2023)
Others PW Foundation (w.e.f. February 25, 2022)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Director Alakh Pandey
Director Rajat Pandey
Director Gaurav Choudhary
Director Prateek Boob

Relatives of KMP with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Relative of KMP Ekta Kabra
Relative of KMP Sonal Mundhra (Finance controller)

Disclosure of transactions between the Company and related parties are as under:

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent 1o those that prevail in arm's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and
interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables for the year ended March 31,
2024, March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31, 2022. The Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March
31,2023: Nil. March 31,2022: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which
the related party operates. There are no commitments with related parties.

Mature ol tramssetion For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Remuneration paid*

Alakh Pandey 550.12 457.62
Rajat Pandey 3112 31.12
Prateck Boob 180.12 180.12
Gaurav Choudhary 27.55 23.80
Sonal Mundhra 61.46 61.31

*Provision for gratuity and compensated absences has not been considered, since the provisions are based on actuarial valuations for the Group’s entities as a whole

Reimbursement of expenses
Alakh Pandey 5.11 9.96

Legal and professional expenses
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited - 2448

Miscellaneous income

Knowledge Planet Center LLC 333.18 -
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 8.46 18.59
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited 1.79 -
Xylem Learning Private Limited 16.17 -
Reimbursement of expenses received

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 0.89 50.11
Ineuron Intelligence Private l.imited 23.51 -
Xylem Learning Private Limited 1.14 -
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Office expenses
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited - 3.06

CSR expenditure
PW Foundation 107.48 140.36

Purchase of shares
Xvlem Learning Private Limited 6.850.50 -

Knowledge Planet Holding 1,495.97 -

Investment in subsidiaries through ESOP

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 265.01 15.62
Knowledge Planet Holding 1,154.76 60.43
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited 51.76 -
Xylem Learning Private Limited 100.21 -

Investment in subsidiaries through non compete fees
Xylem Learning Private Limited 500.00 -

Transfer of advertisement income
Alakh Pandey - 162.77

Sale of goods/services

Preponline Furturiest Private Limited 176.07 .
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 35.16 99.00
Knowledge Planet Center LLC 16.54 -
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited 99.92 -

Xylem Learning Private Limited = =

Purchase of goods/services

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 4,409.66 1,447.48
Ineuron Intelligence Private Limited 1,652.06 513.32
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited 53.51 -

Loans given
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 770.00 3,500.00
Xylem Learning Private Limited 7,310.00 -

Repayment of loans given
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited - 1,000.00

Interest income received on loan ;
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 22841 88.88
Xylem Learning Private Limited 156.46 -

Rental Income
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 5.10 0.85

Salaries, wages and bonus
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 87.89 -

(*) Provision for gratuity and compensated absences has not been considered, since the provisions are based on actuarial valuations for the Company as a whole.

C The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:

Asat As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

Loan given

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 3,270.00 2,500.00 -
Xylem Learning Private Limited 7,310.00 - -
Interest accrued

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 205.55 124 -
Xylem Learning Private Limited 140.82 - -

Trade payables

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited 884.64 206.89 NSNS
Ineuron Intelligence Private Limited - 304.39 =/ -
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited 62.08 - 2] -

—
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Other payables
Alakh Pandey
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited

Trade receivable

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited
Preponline Futurist Private Limited
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited
Knowledge Planet Center LLC

Xylem Learning Private Limited

Other receivable

Knowledge Planet Center LLC

Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited
Xylem Learning Private Limited

Advance to suppliers
Ineuron Intelligence Private Limited

Equity share capital
Ekta Kabra
Prateek Boob

38.80

149.68
126.07
83.42
16.54
1.14

333.18
9.99
2.12

19.08

82.87

(This space has been left blank intentionally)

68.88

101.56
57.97
9.66

0.72

681.82
681.82
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33 Employee benefits expense
The disclosures required under IND AS 19 "Employee Benefits "as given below:

a. Defined contribution plans:
The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees' as follows:
Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund
Employee State Insurance Plan

Contribution to Defined contribution plans, recognized as expense is as under:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Company's contribution to provident fund and other funds 2,168.08 885.48
2,168.08 885.48
b. Compensated absences:
The principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given below:
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Discounting rate (p.a.) 7.10% 7.35%
Future salary increase ( p.a.) 10.20% 10.00%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated terms of the obli gation.

¢. Defined benefit plan:
The Company operates the post-employment defined benefit plan :-

The employees' gratuity fund defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using by projected unit credit method in case of gratuity

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit obligation

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net defined benefit liability- gratuity 89145 253.45
Total employee benefit liabilities 891.45 . 253.45
Non current 237 0.81
Current 889.08 252.64

(i) Reconciliation of the net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability and its components

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 253.45 57.16
Benefits paid (0.38) -
Current service cost 920.46 57.50
Past service cost - -
Interest cost 86.25 7.97
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in other comprehensive income (368.33) 130.83
891.45 253.45

Balance at the end of the year

ii) Expense recognised in profit or loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 920.46 57.50
Interest cost 86.25 7.97
1,006.71 65.47
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iii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Actuarial (gain)/loss on defined benefit obligation (368.33) 130.83
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan assets - -
(368.33) 130.83
iv) Actuarial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):
As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Financial assumptions

Discount rate 7.10% 7.35%
Future salary growth 10.20% 10.00%
Demographic assumptions

Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) Ult 1ALM (2012-14) Ult
Retirement age 58 58
Attrition Rate (p.a.) 28% 28%

The principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds. The estimate of
rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, taken into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the
employment market.

As at March 31, 2024, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 5.74 year (March 31, 2023: 13.47 year)
v) Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation
by the amounts shown below.

For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1%) (47.96) 51.98 (14.86) 16.16
Future salary growth (1%) 45.40 (44.23) 14.03 (13.31)
Attrition rate (1%) (36.37) 37.54 (12.28) 12.75

Although the analysis does not take into account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

vi) Maturity profile
The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the employees as at the valuation date:

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1 Year 237 0.81
2-5 years 541.09 12481
6-9 years 538.27 185.65
10 years and above 298.25 103.26

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

34 Fair valuation

(i) Fair values hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as 2 whole:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics. This includes quoted financial instruments, government securities, borrowings and mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2: Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This includes derivative financial

instruments.

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from
observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. This includes unquoted equity shares.

(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Carrying value Fair value Level
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit and loss
Investments 14,414.83 20,546.24 2,389.05 14,414.83 20,546.24 2,389.05 Level 1
Derivative assets 7.798.39 7.546.97 - 7.798.39 7.546.97 - Level 3
22.213.23 28.093.21 2,389.05 22,213.23 28.093.21 2.389.05
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at fair
value through orofit and loss
CCPS 1,61,468.47 85.821.87 - 1.61.468.47 85.821.87 - Level 3
Derivative liabilities 8.137.65 530.94 - 8.137.65 530.94 - Level 3
1,69,606.12 86.352.81 - 1.69.606.12 86.352.81 -
A. Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value
Inter-relationship
Significant ———

Fair value hierarchy

Valuation Technique

unobservable inputs

unobservable inputs
and fair vale
measurement

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in mutual funds
Investment in exchange traded fund (ETF)
Investment in equity shares

Level |
Derivatives measured at fair value
Derivative asset

Level 3
Derivative liability
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Compulsorily convertible preference shares

Level 3

Market valuation technique: Investments traded in active markets are
determined by reference to quotes from the financial institutions; for
example: Net asset value (NAV) for investments in mutual funds declared
by mutual fund house, quoted price of equity shares in the stock
exchange etc.

Fair value of derivatives for acquisition of remaining shares in subsidiaries
has been determined using appropriate method with the assistance of
valuation expert.

Fair value of Compulsorily convertible preference shares ("CCPS") has
been determined using appropriate method with the assistance of
valuation expert

There have been no transfers in either direction for the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and April 01, 2022
The Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

B. Significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value and sensitivity of the closing values at March 31, 2024 to such inputs is as below:

Not Applicable Not Applicable

Applicable

Applicable

Applicable Applicable

Valuation
Technique

Significant

Description .
LK unobservable inputs

Range

Sensitivity of the input to fair value

Derivative assets [INR 7,798.39 lacs (March

Any significant change in the inputs to fair value does not result in any

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares |Discounted

i ricing /olatility 3.8% -49.33% N T e S
31, 2023 : INR 7.546.97 lacs) & Derivative Option pricing Volatility haed iy change in the fair value of the Derivative assets and liabilities.
e , . .+ |model & Monte = - = . -
liability [INR 8,137.65 lacs (March 31, 2023 Carlo Simulati Any significant change in the inputs to fair value does not result in any
- INR 530.94 | arils muation Growth Rate 6.9% - 6.96% : : -y P
R 30.94 lacs) change in the fair value of the Derivative assets and liabilities.

Any significant change in the inputs to fair value does not result in any
WACC 25.50%|change in the fair value of the Compulsory convertible preference

shares.

(CCPS) [INR 1.61.468.47 lacs (March 31,
2023 : INR 85,821.87 lacs)]

Cash Flow & Option
pricing model

nal Value

5.00%
shares.

Any significant change in the inputs to fair value does not result in any
change in the fair value of the Compulsory convertible preference
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(iii) Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Carrying value Fair value Level
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

Financial assets
Investments 37,164.19 28.,832.06 1,365.00 37.164.19 28,832.00 1.365.00 NA
Loans 11,714.93 2,573.85 49.98 11,714.93 2,573.85 49.98 NA
Cash and cash equivalents 2.777.01 3,039.00 610.51 2,777.01 3,039.00 610.51 NA
Other bank balances 2,582.54 45,549.16 3,398.39 2,582.54 45,549.16 3,398.39 NA
Trade receivables 1,680.54 580.22 13.06 1,680.54 580.22 13.06 NA
Other financial Assets 42,672.97 6,598.54 5.843.23 42.672.97 6,598.54 5.843.23 NA
Security Deposit 4.552.77 2.728.61 229.17 4.552.77 2.728.61 229.17 NA

1.03.144.95 89,901.44 11.509.34 1.03.144.95 89.901.44 11.509.34
Financial liabilities
Term loan from bank 6.699.65 9,755.16 - 6.699.65 9,755.16 - NA
Capital creditors 2.760.66 1,550.08 32.60 2,760.66 1,550.08 32.60 NA
Trade payables 9,013.09 4,141.48 114.92 9,013.09 4,141.48 114.92 NA
Other financial liabilities 792.41 1,078.54 - 792.41 1,078.54 - NA
Payable to employees 4,353.94 962.56 23.75 4.353.94 962.56 23.75 NA

23.619.75 17.487.82 171.27 23.619.75 17.487.82 171.27

The Company has disclosed fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost such as cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits, trade receivables, security deposits same as carrying value because their carrying

amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

The Company has disclosed fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost such as borrowings, retention money, trade payables, security deposits, capital creditors and other current financial liabilities same
as carrying value because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liability is to finance the Company's operation. The
Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other reccivables, cash and cash equivalents, unbilled receivables and other financial assets that derived directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's senior management reviews the financial risks and
the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Company financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in.market prices ~ such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices - will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market
risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payables and long term debt. Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk

and equity price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

(i) Assets
The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind As 107, since either the carrying amount nor the future cash

flows will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates.

(i) Liabilities
The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk from the external borrowings that are used to finance their operations as the entire borrowings of the Company is at a fixed interest rate.

b) Forecign currency risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's unhedged foreign currency risk exposure in USD at
the end of reporting period :

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 rch 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Amount in USD Amount in INR lacs Amount in USD Amount in INR lacs Amount in USD _ Amount in INR lacs
Trade payables 61,297.19 51.11 39.403.01 32.40 - -
Trade receivables 71,040.07 59.23 51.412.00 42,27 - -
Advances to foreign vendors 551.92 0.46 1,062.00 0.87 - -

¢€) Price k

The Company's exposure to securities price risk arises from investments held in mutual funds and equity instruments, classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit or loss. To manage its price risk arising
from such tnvestments, the company diversifies its portfolio. Quoted (NAV) of these investments are available from the mutual fund houses and quoted price of equity shares in the stock exchange.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
(primarily trade receivables) and from its other activities including derivative contracts. The Company generally deals with parties which has good credit rating/ worthiness or based on Company internal assessment.
The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of following types of financial assets

- Cash and cash equivalents,
- trade receivables,

- loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, and

- deposits with banks
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a) Credit risk management

The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal assessment, continuously monitoring defaults of customer and other counterparties, identified either individually or by the Company, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Internal credit assessment is performed for each class of financial instruments with different characteristics. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the

reporting date was:

As at As at As at
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Loans 11,714.93 2,573.85 49.98
Investments 37,164.19 28.832.06 1,365.00
Cash and cash equivalents 2,777.01 3,039.00 610.51
Other bank balances 2,582.54 45,549.16 3,398.39
Trade receivables 1,680.54 580.22 13.06
Other Financial Assets 42,672.97 6,598.54 5.843.23
Security Deposit 4,552.77 2,728.61 229.17
Total 1.03.144.95 89.901.44 11,509.34

(i) Loans include loans given to group companies or subsidiaries and management does not foresee any default in repayment of loans.

(i) Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.

(iii) The Company closely monitors the credit-worthiness of debtors through internal systems that are designed to assess the credit limits of customers, thereby, limiting the credit risk. The Company assesses increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due.

(iv) Other financial assets measured at amortised cost mainly include loans and advances to employees, sccurity deposits and others where the credit risk is envisaged to be minimal and recoverability of such amounts
is monitored at regular intervals. The Company has not acquired any credit impaired asset. There was no modification in any financial assets.

b) Expected credit losses

The Company has used the expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain on trade receivables and unbilled revenue, and has provided it wherever appropriate.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to nature of the business,
the Company maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis
of expected cash flows. In addition, the Company's liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios

against internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financial plans.

a) Financing arrangements

The Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Description

March 31, 2024

As at As at
March 31, 2023

As at
April 01, 2022

Expiring within one year (cash credit and other facilities)
Expiring beyond one year (bank loans)

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

b) Maturities of financial lia
The table below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivative financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant

As at March 31, 2024

5,425.00 -
& 1,500.00

Carrying amount less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than § years
Non-derivative
Lease liability 70,707.32 9,628.81 10,269.61 30,034.69 20,774.20
Trade payables 9,013.09 9,013.09 - - -
Borrowings 1,68,168.12 3,322.77 3,376.88 - 1,61,468.47
Other financial liabilities 7,907.01 7,671.01 125.00 - 111.00
Derivative
Derivative liability 8,137.65 588.52 2,322.56 5,226.57 -
2.63,933.19 30,224.20 16,094.06 35,261.27 1,82,353.66
As at March 31, 2023
Carrying amount less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 vears
Non-derivative
Lease liability 42,958.03 5,436.81 6,348.42 17,650.40 13,522.41
Trade payables 4,141.48 4,141.48 - - -
Borrowings 95,577.03 3,076.96 2.890.16 3,788.04 85,821.87
Other financial liabilities 3,591.18 3,291.76 194.42 - 105.00
Derivative
Derivative liability 530.94 530.94 - - -
1.46,798.66 16,477.95 9.433.00 21,438.44 99.449.29
As at April 01, 2022
Carrying amount less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-S years More than 5 years
Non-derivative
Lease liability 3.762.56 566.95 661.88 2,087.15 446.57
Trade payables 114.92 114.92 - - -
Borrowings - - - - -
Other financial liabilities 56.35 56.35 - - -
Derivative
Derivative liability - - - - -
3.933.83 738.22 661.88 2,087.15 446.57
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36 Capital management
For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and general reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital

management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitor the
return on capital employed as well as the level of dividend to shareholders.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, /ess cash and cash
equivalents.

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Borrowings 1,68,168.12 95,577.03 -
Less: Cash and cash cquivalents (2,777.01) (3,039.00) -
Net debts 1,65,391.11 92,538.03 -
Total capital (86,016.25) 9,514.47 -
Capital and net debt 79.374.86 1,02,052.51 =
Gearing ratio (%) 208.37% 90.68% -

No changes were made in the objectives, policics or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and April 01, 2022.

37 Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issucd an officc memorandum dated August 28, 2008 which rccommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in their
correspondence with its customers, the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in accordance with the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at March 31, 2024 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and
available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is taken in the financials as provision. The
Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

(a) The principal amount and the interest duc thercon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as at

29
the end of cach accounting year: 2,657.61 1,468.81 6.32

Principal amount duc to micro and small enterpriscs 2,588.35 1,455.88 6.32
Interest due on the above 69.26 12.93 -
Note: The principal amount due to micro and small enterprises includes trade payables &
payable in respect of capital goods to micro and small enterprises.

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to S - s
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year;

(c) the amount of intcrest duc and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest - - -
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; 69.26 12.93 -

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterpriscs Development Act, 2006.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)
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38 Employee Stock Option Plan

The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2024, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and

the grant are as below:
Employee Share Option Plan 2022

The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are as below.

On August 30, 2022, the board of directors approved the equity settled "Employees Stock Option Plan 2022" for issue of stock options to various employees of the Company. According to the scheme, the
employees will be entitled to options, subject to their continued employment with the Company. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:

Class of Share
Vesting Pattern

Conversion ratio
Vesting condition

Exercise period
Exercise Price

Equity Shares
Four-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 25% in the first year and 6.25% each quarter from the first quarter of the second year and become
fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company.

Three-year vesting term and vest at the rate of 33% in the first year and 8.3% each quarter from the first quarter of the second year and become
fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company.

Three and Half year vesting term and vest at the rate of 25% in the first year and 7.5% each quarter from the first quarter of the second year and
become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company.

Two year vesting term and vest at the rate of 50% in the first year and 12.5% each quarter from the first quarter of the second year and become
fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company.

Two and Half year vesting term and vest at the rate of 40% in the first year and 10% each quarter from the first quarter of the second year and
become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Company.

One year vesting term and vest at the rate of 100% in the first year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment
of the Company.

10:1 (i.e., 10 Options will convert into 1 Equity Share)
Options Granted under the ESOP Plan shall not vest until the expiry of 1 (one) year from the Grant Date of such Options. Unless otherwise
decided by the Administrator (which shall not be detrimental to the interest of the Option Grantee) or specified in the Grant Letter.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary (i) the ESOP Plan shall be administered by the Board, or any person, duly authorised by the Board,
each being referred to as (the “Administrator™), including in relation to issuing Shares or otherwise making allocations and grants to any
Employee (on such terms and conditions as imposed by the Administrator), and (ii) any delegation of power and/or authority by the
Administrator shall always remain subject to the Board’s power to amend, suspend, limit or revoke such power and/ or authority.

4 years

INR 1

The number of Share Options under the share option plan are as follows:

For the year March 31, 2024

For the year March 31, 2023

Weighted Average exercise

‘Weighted Average exercise

Number of Options i . Number of Options _ 5

price per share option price per share option
Options outstanding at beginning of year 3,34,95,282 1.00 - -
Add: Options Granted 83,94,390 1.00 3,35,24,912 1.00
Less: Options Exercised - - - -
Less: Settled in cash* (3,61,565) 1.00 - -
Less: Lapsed during the year (35,79,396) 1.00 (29,630) 1.00
Options outstanding at the end of year 3.79.48.711 1.00 3.34.95.282 1.00

*The Company, during April 2023, issued letters to certain employees, which entitled them to encash their vested options 361,565 at INR 337.50 per option for a consideration of INR 1,250 lakhs.
Subsequent to year end, the Company settled 1,140,016 stock options in cash at INR 225 per option for a consideration of INR 2,570 lakhs. The charge in respect of both these cash settlements has been
accounted for in the financial year ended March 31, 2024 amounting to INR 230 lakhs and INR 730 lakhs respectively. The Company does not expect to settle stock options against cash in the future.

Range of weighted average r ing contractual life, weighted average fair value and weighted average share price for the options are as follows:
For the year For the year
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Remaining contractual life for the options outstanding as of (Years) 0.78 1.50
Fair value for the options granted during the year ended (INR) 1299.00/1867.35 620.00/ 640.00
Share price for the options exercised during the year ended (INR) N.A N.A.
The fair value of options is measured using Black-Scholes valuation model. The key inputs used in the measurement of the grant date fair valuation of equity settled plans is given in the table below:
For the year For the year
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Risk free interest rates 6.96% 6.30%
Expected life
Volatility 48.00% 56.50%
Exercise price (INR) 1.00 1.00
Share price on the date of grant (INR) 1,867.35 640.00
39 Details of CSR expenditure
For the year ended For the year ended 1
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
i. Gross Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 107.48 140.36
ii. Amount of expenditure incurred during the year:- 126.24 140.36
(a) Construction/Acquisition of any asset-in cash /payable - -
(b) For purposes other than (a) above-in cash /payable 126.24 140.36
ili. Amount spent by the company during the year on:
(a) Promotion of healthcare (including preventive healthcare) , sanitation and disaster management under COVID-19 pandemic - -
(b) Contribution to Charitable Trust 126.24 140.36

iv. Shortfall at the end of the year (i-ii) (Shortfall/(Excess))

v. Total of previous years shortfall

vi. Reason for shortfall

vil. Details of Related Parties Transaction e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per Ind AS 24
viil. Recipient of CSR other than related parties:

viti. Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual obligation, the movements in the provision during *

Total
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40 Commitments and contingencies:-
Contingent Liabilities:
There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019. As a matter of caution, the Company has made a provision on a
prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

Capital Commitments:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

(i) Fair valuc of redemption liability with respect to put option available with the minority sharcholders of iNcuron - 17,240.00 -
(if) Fair value of redemption liability with respect to call option with the Company to acquire minority interest 2,514.72 898.99 -
shareholder of Preponline

(i) Fair value of forward contract entered by the company to purchase 49% stake acquisition of Utkarsh 11,706.50 11,106.20 -
(iv) Fair value of forward contract entered by the company to purchase 39.65% stake acquisition of Xylem 15,978.30 - -
(v) Agreed amount against property, plant and equipment & other intangibles assets not procurred as at year end 3,476.15 - -

41 Event occurred after the Balance Sheet date
The company cvaluates cvents and transactions that occur subsequent to the Balance shect date but prior to the approval of the financial statements to determine the necessity for recognition and/or reporting
of any of thesc cvents and transactions in financial statements for the current financial year ecnded March 31, 2024, The Company has cntered into an amended Sharcholders Agreement dated July 01, 2024 to
acquirc balance stake in Incuron Intclligence Private Limited (refer notc 43)
Also, the Company & its founders have entered into Share Purchase Agreement with GSV Ventures Funds III LP on March 27, 2024 w.r.t intent to sell some equity shares in the future period. However, the
transaction has not occurred as at March 31, 2024

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Physicswallah Private Limited
CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223
Notes to Standal Financial

for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

42 Ratio Analysis and its el

As at As at
ati Ni af ina o oyl

Ratio Numerator Denominator March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 % change Remarks

Current ratio Current assets Current liabilitics 0.74 1.70 (56.81%) Variance is primarly on account of
increase in flanncial liabilities

Debt- cquity ratio Total debt Sharcholder's cquity -2.78 14.57 (119.07%) Variance is primarly on account of
increase in current year losses.

Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = Net loss atter Debt service = Interest + Lease 1.20 827 (77.25%) Variance is primarly on account of

taxes + Non-cash operating cxpenses payments + Principal repayments increase in current year losses.
(Deprcciation & amortisation) + Finance

Return on equity (ROE) Net loss after taxes Average sharcholder's equity 279.99% (76.98%) (463.71%) Variance is primarly on account of
increase in current year losscs.

Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory 1.16 1.48 (21.44%) -

Trade receivable turnover ratio Revenue from operations Average trade receivable 135.93 247.70 (45.12%) Variance is primarly on account of
increasc in revenue and reduction in trade

Trade payable turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average trade payables 3:52 4.70 (24.99%) -

Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from operations Working capital -6.64 231 (387.04%) Variance is primarly on account of
negative working capital which is result of|
increased current liabilities.

Net loss ratio Net loss after taxes Revenue from operations (69.70%) (10.43%) 566.99% Variance is primarly on account of
increasc in current year losscs.

Return on capital employed (ROCE) Earnings before interest and taxes Capital Employed = Tangible net worth (65.04%) (4.55%) 1329.81% Variance is primarly on account of

+ Total debt + Deferred tax liability increasc in current year losses.

Return on investment (ROI) Income generated [rom Time weighted average investments 11.16% 3.10% 259.86% Variance is primarly on account of’

investments

increasc in current year losscs.
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43 Business acquisitions
(a) The Company has entered into certain business purchase agreement, details of which are as under:

(i) ONLYIAS Nothing Else Acquisition

(i)

(b)

@®

The Company had entered into Business purchase agreement with sole proprietor of ONLYIAS Nothing Else on December 31, 2022 to acquire its coaching class business under its brand, which
constitutes a business for a fair value of cash consideration of INR 1,200 lacs, fair value of deferred consideration of INR 256 lacs and fair value of share options amounting to INR 2,444 lacs. The
Company has accounted for the amalgamation under the purchase method and recognized assets and liabilities acquired at fair value. The excess of purchase consideration paid by the company
over the aggregate value of the net assets acquired has been treated as goodwill, to be amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of amalgamation.

The following table presents the purchase consideration, fair value of asset acquired and goodwill recognised on the date of acquisition (i.e. January 01, 2023).

Details of Fair value recognised on acquisition as on January 01, 2023:

Life Amount
Brand 10 years 1,080.06
Content 3 years 389.90
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 years 30.38
Total fair valuc of net assets acquired (A) 1,500.34
Fair value of purchase consideration (B) 3,900.63
Goodwill arising on acquisition (C =B - A) 2,400.29
Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 1,200.00
Deferred consideration* 256.20
Equity options 2,444.44
Total purchase consideration (refer note 7(a)) 3,900.64

*During the year, the Company has paid the deferred consideration amounting INR 100.00 lacs including interest amount of INR 9.09 Iacs.
Top Tak Education Acquisition
The Company had entered into Business purchase agreement proprictor of Top Tak Education on January 01, 2023 to acquirc its onlinc coaching business for a consideration of INR 300 lacs. The
company has accounted for the amalgamation under the purchase method and recognized asscts and liabilitics acquired at fair valuc. The excess of purchasc consideration paid by the company
over the aggregate value of the net asscts acquired has been treated as goodwill, to be amortized over a period of 5 years from the date of amalgamation.

The following table presents the purchase consideration, fair value of assct acquired and goodwill recognised on the date of acquisition (i.c. January 01, 2023).

Details of Fair value recognised on acquisition as on January 01, 2023:

Purchase consideration Life Amount

Brand 10 years 177.99
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 years 10.53
Total fair value of net assets acquired (A) 188.52
Fair value of purchase consideration (B) 300.00
Goodwill arising on acquisition (C=B - A) 111.48
Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 300.00
Total purchase consideration (refer note 7(a)) 300.00

The Company had entered into a separation agreement to terminate the said acquisition and resultantly impaired the goodwill amounting INR 111.00 lacs and brand amounting INR 178.00 lacs
recognised in the previous financial year.

The Company has entered into certain share purchase agreement, details of which are as under:

Preponline Futurist Private Limited
The Company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Preponline Futurist Private Limited, on March 17, 2023 to acquire 10% stake in its coaching business which constitutes live and
recorded classes for competitive exams along with publishing and selling of literary works and course materials for a fair vaiue of cash consideration of INR 400 lacs. Further, as part of the Share
purchase agreement, the remaining shareholders possess swap option that allows exchange of their shares at a predetermined ratio of 11.92:1 at anytime after the closing date. Detailed computation
of purchase consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 400.00
Less: Adjustment on account of derivative (272.47)
Total purchase consideration (refer note 7(a)) 127.53
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(ii) Knowledge Planet Holdings Limited
The Company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Knowledge Planct Holdings Limited, on December 28, 2022 to acquire 100% stake in its business of providing tcst preparation
scrviees to students which constitutes a business for a fair value of cash consideration of INR 1,786.44 lacs and fair valuce of deferred consideration amounting to INR 284.60 lacs. The company
has accounted for the share acquisition and recognized asscts and liabilities acquired at fair value. Detailed computation of purchasc consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 1,786.44
Fair value of deferred consideration 284.60
Total purchase consideration (refer note 7(a)) 2,071.04

During the year, the Company has made the investment of INR 1,495.97 lacs through subscription of fresh equity shares.

(iii) Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited
The Company had cntered into Share purchase agreement with Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited, on February 18, 2023 to acquire 51% stake in its coaching classes business which
constitutes a business of providing coaching for competitive exams having strong digital presence for a fair valuc of cash consideration of INR 24,000.00 lacs and fair valuc of share options
amounting to INR 518.80 lacs. Further, As part of the Share purchase agreement, the Company has cntered into a forward contract to acquire the remaining shares over a period of 4 years,
consideration of which would be based on the performance (profit after tax) of Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited. Detailed computation of purchase consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 24,000.00
Fair value of share options 518.80
Less: Adjustment on account of derivative (7,274.50)
Total purchase consideration (refer note 7(a)) 17,244.30

(iv) iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited
The Company had entered into Share purchase agreement with iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited. on December 23, 2022 to acquire 32.68% stake in its coaching classes business to students
which constitutes a business of providing online upskilling classcs through their website and mobile channels for 2 fair value of cash consideration of INR 7,053.66 lacs and fair valuc of deferred
consideration amounting to INR 363.64 lacs. Further, as part of the Sharc purchasc agreement, the remaining sharcholders posscss swap option that allows exchange of their shares at a
predetermined ratio of 4.98:1 at anytime after the closing date. Detailed computation of purchasc consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 7,053.56
Fair value of deferred consideration 363.64
Add: Adjustment on account of derivative 530.94
Total purchase consideration (refer note 7(a)) 7.948.14

The Company has paid the deferred consideration of amount INR 400.00 lacs including interest amount of INR 36.00 lacs during the year.

The performance and profitability of iNcuron Intelligence Private Limited was deteriorating with the business significantly underperforming vis-a-vis the business plan during the year ended
March 31, 2024. Further the business synergics cnvisaged from the investment could not be realised despite best cfforts of the management. Accordingly, the management has impaired the
investment of INR 6,869.53 lacs and written back corresponding derivative liability amounting INR 530.94 lacs, the net effect of INR 6.338.59 has been disclosed as an cxceptional item during
the year ended March 31, 2024.

Subsequent to balance sheet date the Company entered into a settlement agreement dated July 24, 2024 with iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited to acquire remaining stake of 67.32% for a
consideration of INR 9.15 lacs, paid in cash.

(v) Xylem Learning Private Limited
During the year, the Company has acquired 60.35% of equity share of Xylem Learning Private Limited (Xylem) on June 16, 2023, at a cash consideration of INR 6,850.50 lacs and non compete
fees of INR 500.00 lacs to founders of Xylem. Xylem is engaged in the business of providing classroom and online learning programs aimed at students between classes 8-12 for preparation of
NEET and JEE entrance examinations to medical and engineering undergraduate students. Further, as part of the share purchase agreement, the Company has an obligation to acquire remaining
stake based on the achievement of performance parameters as defined in the agreement. Accordingly, the said obligation is recognised as a derivative in the financial statements. The purchase
consideration is as follows:

Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration 6.850.50
Add: Adjustment on account of derivative 5.874.00
Add: Adjustment on account of non-compete fees 500.00
Total purchase consideration (refer note 7(a)) 13,224.50

44 (i) The Company has maintained proper books of account as required by law except that the backup of the books of account and other books and papers for certain applications uscd for the
purpose of maintenance of onlinc/oflline sales records, in clectronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in India on daily basis and the Company docs not have server
physically focated in India for the daily backup ol the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode in respect of one of the application.

(i) The feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility was not enabled for accounting sofiwarc and subs-systems, used for processing underlying transactions and the same did not operatc

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Due to the same, management is unable to verify if there have been any instances of the audit trail feature being
tampered with.
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45. Impairment revicws .
Goodwill acquired through business combinations having indefinite lives are allocated to the CGUs. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to a CGU representing the lowest level within the Company at
which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and which is not higher than the Company's operating scgment. Carrying amount of goodwill is as follows:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
ONLYIAS Nothing Elsc 2,405.79 2,405.79 -
Total 2,405.79 2,405.79 -

The recoverable amount of all CGUs was based on its value in use and was determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of the CGU. These calculations use cash flow projections over a
period of five years, based on financial budgets approved by management, with extrapolation for the remaining period, and an average of the range of assumptions as mentioned below.

The pre-tax discount rate applicd to cash flow projections is March 31, 2024: 20-32% (March 31, 2023: 21-29%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate (March 31, 2024: 45-64%, March
31,2023: 32-55%, April 1, 2022: NA) that is the same as the long-term average growth rate for the education industry.

The summary of key assumptions used in value in use calculations:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Pre -Tax Discount rate 20-32% 21-29% -
Terminal Value growth rate 5% 5% -
Revenue growth rate 45-64% 32-55% -

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Discount Rate: The above discount rate represent the current market assessment ol the risks specific to cach CGU, taking into consideration the time valuc of money and individual risks of the underlying asscts that have not been
incorporated in the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is based on the specific circumstances of the Company and its operating segments and is derived from its weighted average cost of capital (WACC).

Terminal Value growth rate: This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period. The rates are consistent with forecasts included in industry reports.

Revenue growth rate: Revenue growth was projected taking into account the average growth levels experienced in past, management's growth plans and initiatives and industry reports

The cstimation of valuc in usc reflects assumptions that arc subject to various risks and uncertaintics, including key assumptions regarding revenue growth rate, terminal value growth rate and pre-tax discount rate. It requires
significant judgments and estimates. and actual results could be materially different than the judgments and estimates used to estimate value in use.

Sensitivity change in assumptions

The calculation of value in use for above mentioned CGUs is most sensitive to revenue growth, discount rate and long-term growth rate assumptions.

As at March 31, 2023, an analysis of the calculation’s scnsitivity to a change in the key parameters (revenue growth, discount rate and terminal valuc growth rate) based on rcasonably probable assumptions on "Top Tak" resulted

in CGU recoverable amoung falling below their carrying amount, accordingly, impairment of INR 105.98 lacs is recorded in the statement of profit and loss in the previous year. For the remaining CGU's, the Company did not
identify any probablc scenario where the CGUSs recoverable amount would fall below their carrying value as at March 31,2024 and March 31, 2023,

(This space has been left blank intentionally) - .,




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs. unless otherwise stated)

46 Principal differences between Ind AS and Indian GAAP
These fin ¢ the year ended Mareh 31, 2024, have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, for the purposes of tra
the transition date and IGAAP as the previous company has GAAP. Accordingly, the Company has prepared financi ements which comply with Ind AS
March 31, 2023, as deseribed in the summary of significant accounting policics. In preparing these financial statements, the Company opening balance sheet was prepared as at April 01, 2022, the date of transition to Ind AS.

isition to Ind AS, the followed the guidance preseribed in Ind AS 101- First time adoption of I Accounting Standards, with Apri
applicable for periods ending on March 31, 2024, together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended

2 as

The tansition to Ind AS has resulted in the changes in the financial statements, disclosures in the notes thereto and accounting policics and principles. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including

the balance sheet as at April 01, 2022 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023,

The following ili provide a itication of the cllect of si; arising from the transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS in accordance with Ind AS 101:

- Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2022

tas at March 31,2023

- Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
- Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Reconciliation of standalone Balance Sheet t April 01, 2022

Particulars References As per IGAAP as Ind AS Reclassification* Asper Ind AS as
at April 01. 2022 Adijustments at April 01. 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment Note | 1.199.89 = 5 1.199.89
Other intangible asscts Note | 124.53 - - 12453
Intangible assets under development Note | 560.72 - - 560.72
Right-o Note 2 - - 3.863.25
Financial asscts
i. Investment Note 9 2292.36 - (927.36) 1.365.00
ii. Other Financial Note 2/9 5.869.11 (101.84) 0.02 5.767.29
Deferred tax assets (net) 2.19 - - 2.19
Non-current tax asset (net) 138.58 - - 138.58
Other non-current assets 241 - - 2.41
‘Total Non Current Assets 10,189.79 3.761.41 (927.34) 13.023.86
Current asscts
Inventor §20.81 - - 520.%1
Financial assets -
i. Investment Note 3/9 1.494.51 (32.82) 927.36 2.389.05
ii. Loans 49,38 - - 49.98
. Trade receivable 13.06 - - 13.06
iv. Cash and cash equivalents 610.51 = - 610.51
v. Bank balances other than (ii) above Note 9 3.398.41 - (0.02) 3.398.39
vi. Other financial asscts 30511 - - 305.11
Other current assets 483.64 - - 483.64
Total Current Asscts 6.875.43 (32.82) 927.34 7.770.55
Total Asscts 17,065.22 3,728.59 0.00 20.794.41
Equity and liabilitics
Equity
Liquity share capital 600.00 - - 600.00
Other equity Note 3 9.868.96 (3397 - 9.834.99
Total Equity. 10.468.96 (33.97) - 10.434.99
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Note 2 - 3.195.61 - 3.195.61
57.16 - - S7.16
Total Non Current Liabilities 57.16 3,195.61 - 3.252.77
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
i. Lease liabilitics Note 2 - 566.93 - 566.95
il. Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enter 6.32 - - 6.32
‘otal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and smull enterprises 108.60 - - 108.60
iii. Other financial labilities 56.34 - - 56.35
Current tax liabil s (net) 4.60 - - 4.60
Other current | 6.363.24 - - 6.303.24
Total Current liabilities 6.539.10 566.95 - 7.106.06
“Total Equity and liabilitics 17,065.22 3.728.59 - 20.793.82
Reconciliation of standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
Particulars References As per IGAAP as Ind AS Reclassification® As per [nd AS as
at March 31, 2023 Adjustments at March 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment Note | 11,694.16 - - 11.694.16
Capital work in progress Note | 475.71 = = 475.71
Goodwill Note 8 2.281.92 123.87 - 2405.79
Other intangible assets Note | 2.146.61 = = 2.146.61
Intangil ssets under development Note ! 47.53 - - 47.53
Right- assets Note 2 - 42.266.30 - 42,266.30
Financial asscts
L. Investments Note 9 28,832.09 (0.03) 28.832.06
ii. Loans = - -
Other financial assets Note 2/9 9.749.04 7.274.54 15873.25
Deferred tax 955.85 o 1.915.09
Non-current tax a 1.130.89 = 1.130.89
Other non-curient assets 1.523.87 - 1.523.87
Total non-current assets 58.837.67 42.199.10 7.274.51 1,08.311.27
Current assets
Inventories 2.134.03 - 2.134.03
Financia] assets
i, Investment Note 3 20,404.18 142.00 {0.00) 20.546.24
ii. Loans 2.573.85 = 2.573.85
iii. Trade receivables 580.22 - 580.22
iv, Cash and cash cquivalents 3.039.00 - 3,039.00
v. Bank balances other than {iv) above 45,549.16 - 45.549.16
vi. Other financial assets Note 9 8.337.74 (7.274.50) 1.063.24
Other current assets 1.414.81 (4.92) 0.00 1.409.89
Total current assets 84,032.99 137.14 (7.274.50) 76.895.63
Total asscts 1.,42,870.66 42.336.24 0.01 1.85.206.90




EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Note 4 1.206.67 (606.67) 0.00 600.00
Other cquity Note4/7 96,771.22 (87.856.75) 0.00 8.914.47
Total cquity 98.037.89 (88.523.42) 0.00 9.514.47
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabiliti
i L i S Note 2 - 37.521.22 - 37.521.22
. Borrowings Note 4 06.678.20 85.821.87 - 92.500.07
ili. Other financial labilities Note 2 1.893.26 (1.593.84) - 29942
Provisions 25346 - 25346
Total non-current liabilities 8.824.92 1.21,749.26 2 1.30.574.18
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
i. Lease liabilities Note 2 - 5.436.81 = §.436.81
il. Borrowings 3.076.96 - 3.076.96
rade payables - -
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterpri 1.468.81 - 1.468.81
- Total outstas 2,672.67 - 2.672.67
iv. Other financial liabi S Note 2 3.849.42 (26.72) 0.00 3.822.70
Provisions 400.60 - 400.60
Current tax labilities (net) - = =
Other current liabilities Note 5 24.539.39 3.700.34 (0.03) 28.239.70
Total current lial 36,007.85 9,110.43 (0.03) 45.118.25
Total equity and liabilities 1,42,870.66 42.336.27 (0.03) 1.85.206.90
0 -0.03
Reconciliation Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
Particulars References As per IGAAP for the r ended Ind AS Adj J il i As per Ind AS for the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations Note § 77.176.63 -3.700.34 - 73.476.29
Other income Note 2/3 2.626.85 283.04 0.00 2.909.89
Total income 79.803.48 - 3.417.31 0.00 76.386.17
Expenses
Direct expenses 6.832. - 6.832.90
Purchase of traded goods sold Note 9 6. 5 (3.259.95) 3.173.00
Change in Inventorics Note 9 (2.438.87) 1.232.18 (1.206.69)
Cost of raw material and components consumed Note 9 - 2,853.43 2.853.43
Employce benefits expenses Note 6 40.651.98 -130.83 - 40,521.15
Finance costs Note 2 296.32 1,753.41 - 2,049.73
Depreciation and amortisation expense Note 2/8/9 3.340.37 3.917.85 746.86 8.005.08
Net loss on of linancial i at tair value Note 4 - 6,713.77 - 6.713.77
Impairment of intangible assets Note 9 746.86 (746.86) -
Other expenses Note 2/9 21.837.80 -5.461.75 (825.65) 15.550.40
Total expenses 77.700.31 6,792.46 0.00 84.492.77
Loss before exceptional items and taxes 2,103.17 (10.209.76) (0.00) (8.106.59)
Exceptional items
Linpairment loss on investment in subsidiary - - -
Loss before tax 2,103.17 (10.209.76) (0.00) (8.106.59)
Tax expenses
Current tax 1.452.00 - 1.452.00
Deferred tax charge (credit) Note 7 (933.66) 1926.32) = (1.879.98)
Total tax expenses /(credit) 498.34 (926.32) - (427.98)
Loss for the vear 1,604.83 -9.283.44 {0.00) (7.678.61)
Other comprehensive income
A, lten not be reclassified to pro
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benelit plans Note 6 - -130.83 - (130.83)
Income tax effect on above Note 7 - 3393 - 32.93
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the vear, net of tax = (97.90) = (97.90)
Total comprehensive loss for the vear 1,604.83 (9.381.35) (0.00) (7.776.52)
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Note 9
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Reconciliation of Cash flow
Cash low statement for the year ended March 31. 2023

Particular As per IGAAP for the year ended e As per Ind AS for the year ended
" March 31,2023 e D " Maret 31,2023

Cash flow from operating 23,362.52 3,328.53 26,691.05

Cash Flow from Investing (1,09,726.61) 512.46 (L09.214.15)

Cash flow trom financing 88.792.58 (3.841.02) $4,951.56

Cash low from the operating activities get increased with the corresponding decrease in cash tlow [fom financing activities. since the rent expense is treated as operating expense as there is no
provisions regarding lease payment in previous GAAP but the payment of lease liability is treated as financing activity under Ind AS 7.

(This space has been left blank intentionally)




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to Standal Financial Stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

47 Disclosure required under Sec 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013
Included in loans and advance are certain intercorporate deposits the particulars of which are disclosed below as required by Sec 186(4) of Companies Act 2013:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 As at April 01, 2022
I, . . . Maximum amount . . Maximum amount . o Maximum amount
Name of the loance Loan given/ Outstanding . . Loan given/ Outstanding . . Loan given/ Outstanding . .
2 outstanding during . outstanding during 5 outstanding during the
(repaid) balance® (repaid) balance ) (repaid) balance
the year the year year

e 770.00 3475.55 3475.55 3,500.00 2,501.24 3,500.00 - . s
Privatc Limited
2ylent Learning Private 7,310.00 7,450.82 7,450.82 S = g . . -

Limited
* Qutstanding balance is inclusive of the accrued interest amount.

48 Other Statutory Information
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.
(ii) The Company has balance with the below-mentioned companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

Bal ding (INR in lacs)
As at As at As at Relationship with the Struck off company, if any, to be disclosed
March 31,2024  March 31,2023 April 01, 2022

Name of struck off Nature of transactions with struck-
Company off Company

Affinity Excellence Private

Limited Student support service 2.77 0.19 - Vendor

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
(v) The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. Further, the Company has also not received any deposits or advances from
any '
(vi) The Company has not advanced or loancd or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ics), including forcign entitics (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ulnmate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(vii) The Company has not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics). including foreign entitics (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) dircetly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entitics identificd in any manncr whatsocver by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiarics) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(viii) The Company does not have any transaction not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961
(such as.

scarch or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961). Further. there was no previously unrecorded income and no additional assets were required to be recorded in the books of

(ix) The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,and there are no companies
beyond the
(x) The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous financial year.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of ;’cctors of
Physicswallah Private Limited | ©

o

/\ ™ Pfateek Boob Alak Pandey Q"

¢

Rahul Verma

per Vincet Kedia

Partner Director - Company Sceretary
Membership No. : 212230 DIN: 07113666 DIN: 08755719 Membership No. A46710
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida Place: Noida Placc: Noida

Date: September 24, 2024 Date: September 24, 2024 Date: September 24, 2024 Date: September 24, 2024




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP S
Chartered Accountants Haryana, India

Fel: 41 124 681 G0

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Physicswallah Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Physicswallah Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™) comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at
March 31 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. including the consolidated statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the consolidated financial statements.
including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other
financial information of the subsidiaries. the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31. 2024. their consolidated loss and their
consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specitied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
"Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial
statements.

Other Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so. consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. I, based on the work we have performed. we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information. we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position. consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows
of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the G roup are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of their respective companies and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls. that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company., as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of their respective companies to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditors
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if; individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.
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*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis ol accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associates and joint
ventures to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncerfainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However. future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 1o continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the consolidated financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group of which we are the independent auditors. to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the direction. supervision
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements. which have been audited by other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction. supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding.
among other matters. the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
saleguards.

Other Matter

(a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information. in respect of eight
subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 36.895 lacs as at March 31 2024,
and total revenues of Rs 45,133 lacs and net cash outflows of Rs 4.899 lacs for the year ended on
that date. These financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other
auditors. whose financial statements. other financial information and auditor's reports have been
furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements. in so lar
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries. and our report
in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act. in so far as it relates (o the aloresaid
subsidiaries, is based solely on the report(s) of such other auditors.
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One of these subsidiaries is located outside India whose financial statements and other financial
information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
their respective countries and which have been audited by other auditors under generally accepted
auditing standards applicable in their respective countries. The Holding Company’s management
has converted the financial statements of such subsidiary located outside India from accounting
principles generally accepted in their respective countries to accounting principles generally
accepted in India. We have audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’s
management. Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiary located
outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments prepared by
the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below. is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other
financial information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. based on our audit and on
the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of the subsidiary companies, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter
paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of
the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the

other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries. as
noted in the “other matter’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable. that:

(a)

(b)

(d)

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. based on our audit and
on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other
financial information of the subsidiary companies. incorporated in India. as noted in the *Other
Matter” paragraph we give in the “Annexure 1™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3(xxi) of the Order.

Based on examination and that performed by respective auditors of the subsidiary companies,
proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group except that the backup of
the books of account and other books and papers for certain applications in holding company, as
explained in note 46. in electronic mode has not been maintained on servers physically located in
India on daily basis and the holding company does not have server physically located in India for
the daily backup of the books of account and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode
with respect to one of the application:

The Consolidated Balance Sheet. the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. the consolidated Cash Flow Statement
and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

[n our opinion. the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules. 2015 as amended. specified under section 133 of the Act:
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(e)

(H)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as
on March 31. 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed under Section 139 of the Act. of its subsidiary
companies. none of the directors of the Group’s companies incorporated in India is disqualified as
on March 31. 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and serial number (vi) of
paragraph (i) below on reporting under Rule 1 1(g):

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2 to
this report:

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India for the vear ended March 3 1. 2024-

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended. in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of
the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries, as noted in the *Other matter’ paragraph:

i.  The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its consolidated
financial position;

il.  The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the vear ended March 31, 2024:

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India
during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iv.  a) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 47(vi) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies).
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™). with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise. that the Intermediary shall, whether. directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
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Vi.

b) The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the
Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief. other than as disclosed in the note 47(vii) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding
Company or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™). with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise. that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries shall. whether, directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identitied in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the
other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material mis-statement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries companies. incorporated in India.

Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by respective
auditors of the subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India whose
financial statements have been audited under the Act, have used accounting software for
maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software except that holding company does not have the feature of
recording of audit trail (edit log) facility. as described in note 46 to the financial
statements. We are unable to comment whether audit trail feature operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software or was tampered with in respect
to the holding Company. However, the respective auditors of the above referred
subsidiary companies did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered in respect to accounting software.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
[CAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

_,--"‘d."

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230

UDIN: 2421

2230BKCYWX5018

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 24, 2024
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Annexure I referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date to the members of Physicswallah Private Limited as at
and for the year ended March 31, 2024

[n terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Holding Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(xxi) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order (CARO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated financial statements are:

! S. Name CIN Holding Clause number |
No company/ of the CARO |
subsidiary/ report which is
associate/ joint qualified or is
B o _ venture i adverse
I Physics Wallah Private USO90OUP2020PTC 129223 Holding i(a)(A). i(b). ii(a)
| Limited _ Company
2 Utkarsh Classes & U72900RJ2018PTC063026 Subsidiary ii(d)
| Ldutech Private Limited | Company
3 | Xylem Learning Private | US0902K1L.2020PTC066136 Subsidiary ii(d)

1

Limited

Company

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/1:300004

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230

UDIN: 24212230BKCYWX35018
Place of Signature: Gurugram

Date: September 24, 2024




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OFPHYSICSWALLAH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Physicswallah Private Limited
(hereinatter referred to as the “Holding Company™) as of and for the vear ended March 31, 2024, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding
Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group™).
which are companies incorporated in India. as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group. which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business. including
adherence to the respective company’s policies. the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements. assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement.
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below. is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, A
company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

[n our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAL

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as
it relates to these six subsidiaries, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049 W/E300004

per Vineet Kedia

Partner

Membership Number: 212230
UDIN: 24212230BKCYWX5018
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: September 24, 2024




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: USO200UP2020PTC129223

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lucs, unless otherwise stated)

The nccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached.
For S.R, Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firfii Reg, No.: 101049W/E300004

per Vineet Kedia
Pariner
Membership Na, : 212230

Place: Gurugram

Forand on behalf of the.Bouril of Birectors of

Physicswallah Priyite Limited

R
/ o

(3

Lerd

-
Priteck Bool
Director
DIN: 07113666

Place: Noida

/=~

TN Alakh Pdndey

Place: Noidn

Notes As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3ta) 27.751 17465 1.221)
Capital work in progress 5(a) - 476 =
Goodwill 5tb) 25,380 28398 1364
Other intangible assets i(e) 20.509 19,820 147
Intangible assets under development Sid ) iz 47 5601
Right-ni-use nssets I 72724 46,424 3863
Financial assets
I Investments 6(a) 2,490 - =
in. Lonns 6 (b} 1,329 12 3
it Other finnncial pssets 6N 14,814 B.588 5,708
Deferved tax assets (net) 33 7.949 2,028 3
Non-current tax asset (net) 18 2.256 2,154 146
Other non-current assels b 1,318 1,563 4
Total non current assets 1,76,552 1,26,975 13,079
Current assets
Inventories b 5313 2270 521
Financial assets
L Investment G(n) 14,783 20.546 2,389
i. Loans 6 (h) 218 51 8s
ili. Trade receivables 6(c) 601 1311 43
v Cash and cash equivalents 5 6id) 5314 4,903 673
v, Bank balamces other than (iv) abave G {e) 2,383 48,078 3471
vi- Other finnncial assets 6{h 36,655 2,087 ns
Other curvent assets 7 3.023 1.964 484
Total current assets 71510 81,242 7.971
Tutal assets 2,48.062 2,08.217 21,050 |
Equity and lisbilities
Equity
Equity share capital 9 60000 600 [ili}
Other equity n (1,25.260) (18.803) G980
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent (1,24,660) {18.263) 10,580
Non-controlling interests 14 7,425 13,247 -
Total Equity (1,17,235) (5.016) 10,580
Linbilities
Non-current liahilities
Financial liabilities
1. Lease linbilities 12 65,626 40,099 3.1%6
1. Borrowings 15{n) 1.64.883 92,500 -
iii. Other finnncial liabilities I5ic) 25293 28,652 -
Provisions 16 |10l 326 37
Delerred tax liabilities (ner) 33 - 208 .
Other non-current liabilities 7 - |83 -
Total non current liabilities 1.56,903 1,61.968 3,253
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
L Lease babilities 12 11,768 7.108 567
i, Borrowings 15(a) 3857 313 -
ili Trade payables
- Toral owstanding dues of micro and small enterprises, and 15(h) 2916 1.833
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other (han micro and small enterprises 15{l) 9,434 3353 185
v Other financial liahilities 15ic) 14,2060 3801 69
Provisions It 1076 438 -
Other carvent linbilines 17 65,077 3lol7 6.390
Total eurrent liabilities 1,08,394 51,265 7,217
Total equity and linbilities I.JH!ME 2!1'1851 17 21,050
Sumwinry of material Accounting policies 24
1-47

Ruhul Verma
Compimy Secretary
Membership No. A46710

Place: Noida
bher 24, 2024

Date: September 24, 2024

Date: Seprember 24, 2024 Dnie September 24, 2024

Date: Sey




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: USB0900UP20200TC 129223

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Laoss for the year ended NMarch 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firmn Reg No: 10 1049W/E300004

per \’infél’ifcdin
Partner
Membership No. ; 212230

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 24, 2024

For and on behalfl oftlie Boardef Directors of
Physicswallah Private Lintited

rateek Bool), TN A J,n'k.llll’:jl{(lc_\
Directar - ‘,Din:'ej,ﬂ(
DIN: 07113666 DN 08755719

Place: Noida Place: Noida

Nates March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue
Revenue from operations 19 1,94.044 74,432
Other income 20 7464 2,422
Total income 2,01,508 77,254
Expenses
Direct expenses 21 37,293 6569
Purchase of stock-in-trade 22 571 ENDT
Change tn Inventories 23 (1,475) (1,285)
Cost of raw material and components consumed 24 3449 1,853
Employee benefits expense 25 1,15,897 41,257
Finance costs 26 6,506 2.072
Depreciation and amortization expense a7 29,829 8239
Net loss on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value 28 81,664 6,714
Other expenses 30 47.039 16,572
Total expenses 327,913 86,202
Loss before exceptional items and taxes (1,26,405) (8,948)
Exceptional items
Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill 31 10,113 -
Write back of Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) lability 31 (17.235) -
Total Exceptional items {7,122) -
Loss before tax (1,19.283) (8,948)
Tax expense:
1. Current tax i3 - 1,452
i, Dreferred tax charge/(credil) 33 {6,156) (1,993}
Total tax expenses/(credit) {6,156) (S41)
Laoss for the year (1,13,127) (8.407)
Other comprehensive income
A Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement (loss) gain on delined benefit plans 36 397 (131)
Fair valuation (loss)gain on financial instruments designated as fair value through o) "
other comprehensive income
Income tax elfect i3 RN 312
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income not to be reclassified (o prafit or loss in 346 99)
subsequent periods
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the vear, net of tax 346 {99
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (1,12,781) (8.506)
Prafit for the year attributable to:
Equityholders of the Parent (1,04,057) (8. 144)
Non-controlling interests (9,070 {263)
Other comprehensive income for the vear attributable to:
Equitvholders of the Parent 335 (99)
Non-controlling interests 11 -
Total comprehensive income for the vear attributable 1o:
Equityholders of the Parent (1,03,722) (8,243)
Naon-controlling interests 44(a) {9,059} (263)
Earnings per equity share (nominal value per share of INR 1 each {March 31, 2023 INR 1 each)):
Basic 2 (173) {14)
Diluted 2 (173) (1)
Summary of material accounting policies 2-4
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 1-47

Rahul Verma
Company Secretary
Membership No. A46710

Place: Noida

Date: September 24, 2024 Date; September 24, 2024 Date: September 24, 2024




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: USN900UP2020PTCI129223

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
All amounts are in INR Iacs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended March For the year ended March

31, 2024 31,2023
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax (1,19,283) (8.947)
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax o net cash flows:
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 12,571 3
Depreciation on right of use assets 12,563 4,091
Amortisation of intangible assets 4,695 106
Ilmpairment/write oft of intangible assets including goodwill 280
Impairment/write off of intangible assets under development - 467
Net lass on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value 81,664 6,714
Allowances for dobutful receivable 479 5
Employee stock compensation expense 13,936 3,893
Pravision for inventory obsolescence (375) -
Dividend income - (14)
Net gaimn on FVTPL investments 92) (173)
Loss on sale of plant, property and equipment 131 15
Interest income {4.536) (2,060)
Finance costs 6,506 2,072
Liability wnitten back - (9
Profit on sale of investments (2,237) (280)
Exceptional items (refer note 31 {7.122) -
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes (1,120) 92,472
Mavement in working capital:
Increase in inventories (2,688) (1.692)
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (2,768) 190
Increase i other financial assets {5,052) (5,083)
Decrease/(Increase) in other current and non current assets 2299 (1,021)
Inerease in trade payable 5,543 3,832
Inerease in other linancial liabilities 146 1,068
Increase in provision I.&11 471
Increase in other current and non current liabilities 23611 22,353
Cash used in from operations 21,782 29,590
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds and interest) {397} (2.585)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A) 21,185 27,005
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including capital work in progress, capital advances
; (21,348) (13.924)
and pavable for capital goods)
Purchase of intangible assets and intangible assets under development (2,300) (669)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,545 3
Interest recejved 4,139 1,765
Investment in subsidiaries, net of cash acquired (refer note (44(d)) (1,762) (31.787)
Acquisition by way of slump sale - {4,050)
Dividends received - 14
Loan given to employees (730) (9)
Loan given to related parties (723) -
Purchase of investments (82.417) (18,864)
Proceeds from sale of investments 88,064 1,162
Maturity of bank deposits 39,120 1,08,785
Investment in bank deposits (48.900) (1,49 980)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (4,292) (1,07.552)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest and other finance charges paid (828) (227)
Proceeds from issuance of preference shares - 79,108
Proceeds from borrowing - 10,000
Repayment of borrowings (2.626) (244)
Payment of interest portion of lease liability {5.572) (1.776)
Payment of principal portion of lease liability (7.436) (2,083)
Net cash used in financing activities (C) (16,482) 84,776
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and eash equivalents (A+B+C) 411 4,229
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,903 674
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5314 4,903




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Asal
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Components of eash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand

532 162
Cash on transit 62 45
Chegue In hand 33
Balances with banks:
I, Current accounts 4,669 2,043
ii. Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 16 2,653
5314 4,903
Notes:
Reconciliation of lease linbilities arising from financing activities
Amount
As at April 01, 2022 3,763
Cash Nows (3.861)
Non cash changes 47,304
As at March 31, 2023 47,206
Cash flows (13.,028)
Non cash changes 43217
As at March 31, 2024 77,395

Summary of material accounting policies,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

As per our report of even date.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No_ 101049W/E300004

per \'inﬁ"lm

Partner
Membership No. ; 212230

Pratéek Booh
Director
DIN: 07113666

Place: Gurugram
Date: September 24, 2024

Place: Noida

Date: September 24, 2024

1-47

Forand on behalf of the-Board of Directors of
Physicswallah l’l;i.\".f(e Limited
\

_;-_\.I_ll.».li.lf_l- Pandey
/. Directtr
S~__PIN: 08755719

Place: Noida
Date: September 24, 2024

/@
-
Rithul Verma

Company Secretary
Membership No. A46710

Place: Noida
Date: September 24, 2024
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Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

Physicswallah Private Limited (“the Company” or “parent company™) is a Company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
in India and has its registered address at plot no. B-8, tower A 101-119, Noida One, Noida Sector 62, Gautam Buddha Nagar,
Dadri, Uttar Pradesh.

The Company together with its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Group’) has presence primarily in India and UAE. The
principal activities of the Group and its joint venture consist of the business of education by providing online and offline coaching
and study material for test preparation of various competitive exams such as NEET. JEE, etc,

These Consolidated Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on
September 24, 2024,

2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS")
prescribed under Section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the Act as amended from time to time Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA"),

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value and amortised cost (refer accounting policies on financial instruments and Share-based payments).

The Group has adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, First-Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted
in India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which
was the previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition have been summarized in Note 46.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Group for the year ended March 31, 2024 has incurred loss amounting to INR 1,13,127 lacs and as at March 31,2024, has a
net current liabilities of INR 36,884 lacs and negative net worth of INR 1,17.235 lacs. The Board of Directors, basis its business
plan, finalisation of subsequent funding with investors and likelihood of conversion of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
("CCPS™) into equity, does not consider an uncertainty in meeting its obligations in next twelve months, Accordingly, these
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR") and are rounded
to the nearest lacs, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if
the Group has:

* Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
* Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
e The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the
Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: ;
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¢ The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
e Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
*  The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting
rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control, Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary
and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary, Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. Ifa member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s financial
statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the
holding company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a
subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial information as of the same date as the financial
statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable
to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities. equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the holding company with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the holding company’s investment in each subsidiary and the holding
company’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related
goodwill.

¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows l'elating to transactions
between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such
as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires
recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS 12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise
from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of the Parent and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s
accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group
loses control over a subsidiary, it:

a) Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost  —
b) Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests L\
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¢) Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

d) Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

€) Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

f)  Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

2) Recognise that distribution of shares of subsidiary to Group in Group’s capacity as owners

h) Reclassifies the holding company’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained earnings, if required by other Ind ASs as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or cash or cash
equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose
of trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Current liabilities include the current portion of
non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents.
Based on the nature of operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle being a period of 12 months for the purpose of classification of
assets and liabilities as current and non- current

b. Fair value measurement

Several the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest
and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input thg-r:jé.‘sig|1i11'ta11t to the fair value measurement as a whole:




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Level I1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement js directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be
re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management or its expert verifies the
major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

o] Revenue recognition

The Group derives revenue primarily from coaching classes, hostel services, server income and related sale of products like study
material, merchandise, tablets and panel screens. Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer (transaction price) which is the amount of consideration received from the customer excluding amounts collected on
behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes). Revenue is only recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a
significant reversal will not occur.,

When two or more revenue generating activities or deliverables are provided under a single arrangement, each deliverable that is
considered to be a separate deliverable is accounted separately, Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations,
the transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation based on the standalone selling prices. Where the standalone
selling prices are not directly observable, these are estimated based on expected cost plus margin or residual method to allocate
the total transaction price. In cases of residual method, the standalone selling price is estimated by reference to the total transaction
price less the sum of the observable standalone selling prices of other goods or services promised in the contract.

Sale of services

Revenue from services provided under fixed price contracts is primarily recognized over a period of time in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered, thus income from coaching services is recognized over the period of delivery. Where
courseware is not considered a separate component under a contract, revenue from the composite course is recognized over the
period of the coaching or the contract period, depending upon the terms and conditions. The customer pays the fixed amount
based on a payment schedule. If the services rendered by the Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognized. If the
payment exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognized.

Sale of products

Revenue in respect of sale of courseware and other physical deliverables is recognized at a point in time when these are delivered,
the legal title is passed and the customer has accepted the courseware and other physical deliverables.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income
is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected
credit |osses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.
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d. Trade receivable

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business and reflects group’s
unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognized initially
at the transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less loss allowance.

e Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method or an
approximation thereof, such as the first in first out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale, Provisions are made for slow-moving and
obsolete stock.

f. Taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current
and deferred taxes are recognized in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case. the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment.
The Group measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method
provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty,

Advance taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and
income tax provision

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered. o
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except when the tax incurred on a purchase of assets is not recoverable from
the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset.

Expenses are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except when the tax incurred on a purchase of services is not recoverable
from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is expensed off in statement of profit and loss.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of other current/ non- current
assets or other current liabilities in the balance sheet.

8. Property, plant and equipment

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment
recognized as at April 1, 2022, measured as per the Previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such
property, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, if any. Property,
plant and equipment is depreciated on a written down value basis to its residual value over its estimated useful life,

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non- refundable purchase
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are capitalized on the carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when future
economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Group and cost of the item can be measured reliably. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work in progress’.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property. plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date of
disposal or retirement.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method, and is generally recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The management has
determined the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment based on the consideration of useful lives as prescribed
under part C of Schedule 11 of the Act. Estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:
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Assets Useful life
(in years)

Computer and Peripherals 3

Plant and Machinery 15

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 8

Building 40

Office equipment 5

Leasehold Improvements 3109

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of their useful life or the lease term, unless the entity expects to use
the assets beyond the lease term.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. [Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition. intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Costs associated with
maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred.

Research and development costs

Development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled
by the Group are recognized as intangible assets where the following criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use or sale

management intends to complete the software and use or sell it

there is an ability to use or sell the software

it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are
available, and

* the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software include employee costs.
Research expenditure and development expenditure that do not meet the criteria above are recognized as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognized as an expense are not recognized as an asset in a subsequent period.

Amortization methods and periods

Amortization of intangible assets begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. Software, licenses
acquired and internally generated software are amortized d on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives which are as
follows:

Intangible Assets Useful life
(in years)
Brand 10
Trademark 3
Content 4
Assembled workforce 3
Non-compete fees 3
Distribution network 3
Freemium Project 3
Customer Relationships 3
Intellectual Property Right 3
Software 3
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The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense on
intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of
an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Impairment testing of non-financial assets

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored.

Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount, The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units).

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a
reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization. if no impairment loss had been recognized.

i. Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment Joss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met. When significant parts of the investment properties are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The Group depreciates building component of investment property over 30 years from the date of original purchase.

The Group, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates the building over
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the
assets are likely to be used.

Though the Group measures investment properties using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment properties are
disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent
valuer applying a valuation model recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of
consideration from the derecognition of investment properties the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence
of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any).
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i- Provisions and contingencies
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation,

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time
is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

k.  Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred, Borrowing cost includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

. Retirement and other employee benefits
Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits.

For defined benefit plans (gratuity), the liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation,

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in the subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the employee
renders related service. The Group has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

The Group provides for liability at period end on account of un-availed earned leave and Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP") as
per actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.
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Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after
the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the
end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as employee benefit payable under other financial liabilities in the balance sheet,

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits
received Presidential assent in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Certain sections of the code

came into effect on May 3, 2023. However. the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant.

m.  Share-based payments

Equity-settled transactions

Employees of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of
profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense,

Performance conditions which are market conditions are taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of the
awards. Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified. the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the
award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted earnings per share,

n.  Foreign currency

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the holding company’s functional currency.
For each entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. The Group uses the direct method of consolidation and on disposal of a foreign operation
the gain or loss that is reclassified to profit or loss reflects the amount that arises from using this method.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the average
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. '
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange
at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss
with the exception of the following

® Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation are recognised in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or the individual
financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that include the foreign operation
and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign operation is a subsidiary), such
exchange differences are recognised initially in OCI. These exchange differences are reclassified from equity to profit
or loss on disposal of the net investment.

® Taxcharges and credits attributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

e Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are
also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration.

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
reporting date and their statements of profit and loss are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions,
For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised
in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit and loss,

Any goodwill arising in the acquisition/ business combination of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Any goodwill or fair value adjustments arising in business combinations/ acquisitions, which occurred before the date of transition
to Ind AS (April 01, 2022), are treated as assets and liabilities of the entity rather than as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation. Therefore, those assets and liabilities are non-monetary items already expressed in the functional currency of the parent
and no further translation differences occur.

Gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any foreign operation excludes translation differences that arose before the date of
transition but includes only translation differences arising after the transition date.
0. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity,




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. However, trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortized cost
° Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
° Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A *debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables and is most relevant
to the Group.

Debt instrument at FVTOCT
A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,
and
b)  The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss, On derecognition of the
asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss,




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Amounts in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Group may make an irrevocable election to present
in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value, The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement
of profit and loss,

The equity securities which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial recognition
to recognize changes in fair value through OCI rather than profit or loss as these are strategic investments and the Group
considered this to be more relevant.

The Group has measured for its investment in subsidiaries at cost in its financial statements in accordance with Ind AS 27,
Separate Financial Statements. Profit/ loss on sale of investments is recognised on date of sale and is computed with reference to
the original cost of the investment sold. The investments are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of Assets’. If any such indication exists, policy for
impairment of non-financial assets is followed.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s balance sheet) when:

° The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

®  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement, In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) maodel for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected
credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.
If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment-loss allowance based on
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and al the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed,

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of
profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets
measured as at amortized cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.. as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in
the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not
reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and barrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, compulsorily convertible preference shares, lease liabilities. trade and other
payables.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (‘CCPS?)

The preference shares issued by the Parent is a financial instrument classified as a financial liability in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability. After initial recognition as a financial liability
at fair value through profit or loss, all subsequent changes in CCPS are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability

are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Derivative financial Instruments

The Group enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risks which are not designated as hedges. A derivative is a financial
instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:

- its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial
variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the “underlying”);

- it requires no initial net investment or an initial investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts
that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors: and

- it is settled at a future date.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously,

p-  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less. which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group's cash management.

q. Leases

The Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is classified
as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the

lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group to the
lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investiment in the leases.
Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment
outstanding in respect of the lease,

The Group as a |essee

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for coaching centres and office premises. The Group assesses whether
a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii) the
Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the Group has
the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU") and a corresponding lease liability
for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (shorisbemnalg
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low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the Jease before the end of the lease term, ROU assets and
lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives,
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable
amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless
the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates
in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right
of use asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the consolidated balance sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

r.  Business Combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any noncontrolling interests in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the noncontrolling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their acquisition date fair
values, For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are
measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not
probable.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’'s cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units,

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred. the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as on the acquisition date. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement
are recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the
items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement
period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new in formation,obtained about facts and cigasmatances that
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existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date, These adjustments are
called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period does not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against Goodwill/capital reserve. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one year
from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent
consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.

s.  Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on
conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

t. Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker,
The Group operates in a single operating segment,

u.  Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Group to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Group bases its estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in current and future periods, There are no assumptions and estimation
uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment within the next financial year.

v. Exceptional ltems

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the Group
is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Group. Such income or expense is classified as
an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the financial statements. Significant impact on the financial statements arising
from impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates, gain/ loss on disposal of subsidiaries and associates (other than
major lines of business that meet the definition of a discontinued operation) and provision for advances are considered and
reported as exceptional items.

w. New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31

March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Group
has applied these amendments for the first-time.
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(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies and the
correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for
entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and
adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Group’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement, recognition
or presentation of any items in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions
that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases. The Group recognised for deferred tax on
leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Group has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its
lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the
requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet.

(iv) Deferred Tax related to leases and decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities - Amendments to Ind AS 101
The amendment removes the exemption provided under Ind AS 12, Income Taxes that exempt an entity from recognising a
deferred tax asset or liability in particular circumstances. As per the amendment this exception is now not available to first time
adopter, as the at the date of transition to Ind ASs. a first-time adopter is now required to recognise a deferred tax asset—to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised—
and a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with: (a) right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities; and (b) decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities and the corresponding amounts recognised as part of the
cost of the related asset,

Apart from these, consequential amendments and editorials have been made to other Ind AS like Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind
AS 107, Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 34. However, these do not have any material impact on the financial statements of
the Group.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assum ptions

The preparation of the Group’s requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods

Other disclosures relating to the Group’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
* Capital management Note 39
* Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 37

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods

covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies
Jjudgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease,
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination,
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After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the
economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue
from contracts with customers;

* Identifying performance obligations in a bundled sale of coaching classes and books and study material

The Group sold books and study material that are either sold separately or bundled together with the sale of coaching to a
customer. The books and study material are a promise to transfer services in the future and are part of the negotiated exchange
between the Group and the customer.

The Group determined that both the books and study material and coaching are capable of being distinct. The fact that the
Group regularly sells both on a stand-alone basis indicates that the customer can benefit from both products on their own, The
Group also determined that the promises to transfer the coaching and to provide books and study material are distinct within
the context of the contract. In addition, the study material and coaching services are not highly interdependent or highly
interrelated, because the Group would be able to impart the coaching even if the customer declined purchase of study material
and would be able to provide study material in relation to coaching received from other sources.

Consequently, the Group allocated a portion of the transaction price to the coaching services and the study material based on
relative stand-alone selling prices.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, future tax planning
strategies and recent business performances and developments.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a Black Scholes Options Pricing model to
determine the fair value of the liability incurred, Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires
determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This
estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of the
share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for
estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 41,

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)
The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the gratuity
obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may
differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed-at each.reporting date. '
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The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the
management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the defined benefit
obligation,

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the country. Those mortality tables tend to change only
at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates for the country. Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 36,

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility,
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group's historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the service sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s
actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed
in Note 38.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on
available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived
from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is
sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for
extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives
recognised by the Group. The key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for the different CGUs, including a
sensitivity analysis, are disclosed and further explained in Note 5(b).

Intangible asset under development

The Group capitalises intangible asset under development for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed, usually
when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an established project management model,
In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation
of the project, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits,

Leases - estimating the incremental borrowing rate
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The [BR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no
observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates. ; - :
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4. Recent pronouncements and standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified
any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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S(u) Property, plant and equipment#

(> " Lens I i x e -] . - _ 1
Freehold Leasehold Building Computerand  Furniture and Vehicles Office Total Capital work

land Improvements peripherals Mxtures equipments in progress

Gross earrying amount
Asat April 01, 2022 (deemed cost)® - 172 - 638 BO 83 248 1,220 -
Additions on aecount of acquisition/business combination

(refer note 44(d)) 2,231 - 263 857 1,204 164 I 160 5.879
Additions = 3047 - 5775 1411 40 3229 13,502 476
Adjustmentreclnssifications - - - (010 (55) - 665 - -
Disposals - - - (38) - - (5) (43) -
Foretn currency iranslation of foreimn aperation - - 5 | 4 G - 11 -
As at March 31, 2023 2,231 3219 263 6,623 2,644 293 5,297 20,570 476
Additions on account of acquisition/business combination -
(refer note 44(d)) a - - I8 131 425 177 550 1,601
Additions 152 1.127 B61 5,080 3.957 36l 6,187 23931 476)
Disposals** 2,383} - (322) {15) - (1) (o (2.724) 4
Adjushment/reclassifications . - |76 587 77 - (] 1 4dd %
Foreipn currency translation of fareign aperation - - - 2 4 4 - |0 -
As at March 31, 2024 - 10,546 1,296 12,414 7,107 832 12,637 44,831 -
Accumulated depreciation
Asat April 01, 2022 E - - - - - - - -
Charge for the year - 565 - 1,797 151 37 565 3115 £
Adjustment'reclassifications - - - {197) 13 - 201 | -
Disposals £ - - (20) - & (2) (22} ~
Foreign currency translation of foreign operation - - - | 4 f - 11 -
As at March 31, 2023 - 565 - 1,581 152 43 764 3,108 -
Charge for the year - 2,747 133 4,881 1,263 221 1316 12,572 -
Disposals - - (34) (14 & - th (49) =
Adjustment/reclassifications - - 19 586 283 - 336 1444 -
Fareigm currency franslation of foreim operation - - - 3 | 4 - 8 -
As at March 31, 2024 - 32 118 7,037 1,699 168 4,640 [?!IIHI'} -
Net crrying amount
Asat April 01,2022 (deemed cos)* - 172 - 638 B0 83 248 1,220 -
Asar March 31, 2023 2231 2,654 63 5.043 2492 250 4,333 17465 476
As at March 31. 2024 - 7233 1,178 5377 5409 564 7.991 27,751 -
*Cost as ar April 01, 2022 is caleulated as shown before |

Frechold Leasehold Buitding (.‘um!mlur and  Furniture and Vehicles Qﬁ'{ce Total (‘“npital waork

land Improvements peripherals fixtures equipments in progress

Gross carrying amount as per previons GAAP - 183 - 975 90 96 220 1.570 -
Acewnulated depreciation - [AAR] - (287) {7} (13) (32) (350} -
Adj ‘reclassifications - = i (50} (3 - 53 - ¥
Deemed cost - 172 - (38 80 83 248 1,220 -

*The Group has elected 1o carmy the vilue of its Property. Plant and Equipiments ag recognised i its previous GAAP financials i.e. their carrying value, as deemed cost at e transition date i.e, April
(1. 2022 as per the option permitted under Para DTAA oF Ind AS 101 for the first time adoption

** Reler note 35 for transaction with related parties

Ageing of capital work in progress Amount in eapital work in progress for s period of Tatul
Less than | year 1-2 years 1-3 yeurs

Asat April 01, 2022

Projects in progress 476 5 i 476

Projects temporarily suspended = 4 & -

Asat March 31, 2023 . & R 476

Projects in propress “ a < B

Projects temporarily suspended - = 4 i)

Asat March 31, 2024 - - = 3

Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2023 includes assels under construction al various offices and head office which are pending installation. There are no projects which have enlier exceeds
their budpet or whose timelines have boen deferred

# The long term borrowing includes a loan from HEDC bank is secured by hypothecation of fumiture & fixtures and other fixed assets and second charge on fixed deposits
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S(h)

Goodwill
Goodwill
_Amount
Cast or valuntion
Asat April 01,2022 [
Adidhtion pursuant to business combination {refer note 44 (d)) 27,140
Disposals -
As at March 31,2023 28,504
Addition pursuant 1o business combination (refer note 44 (d}) 1423
Disposals E
Asat March 31,2024 30,927
T
Accumulated Impairment -
Asat April 01,2022 -
Impairment 106
Dhsposals -
As at March 31,2023 106
Impmrment 5441
Disposals -
Asat March 31,2024 5.547
ESea——
Net book value
Asat April 01, 2022 1,364
As it March 31, 2023 28,398
As at March 31, 2024 15,380

Fmpairment reviews

Goodwill acquired through business combinations having mdef: lives are all Ito the CGUs Far the purpase of imparment testing, poodwill is allocited 16 & CGLI representing the lowest level within
the Group at which goodwill is mennored for internal management purposes and which is not tugher than the Group's operatung séument Carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to the respective
acejred subsidianes level as follows

March31, March3t, March 31,

2024 2023 2022
Utkarsh Classes and Edutech Private Linited 16,070 6,070 -
Preponlme Futunst Private Linited 359 359 -
Penpeneil Edu Services Private Limited |34 1,304 1364
iNeuron Intelliwence Private Limned - 5422 -
Nylem Learming Private Limited 2,404 “ =
Knowledge Planet Holdings Lunited 1,212 1,212 =
Top Tak Edueation = - -
ONLYIAS Mothing Else 2.400 2400 -
Bothra Classes 1445 [ =
ETOOS Education Private Linnted 126 126 -
25,380 15.398 1,364

The recoverable amount of the CGU as at balance sheet date, has been determined based on n value h use caleulation using cash Now prejections from finanesal budgets approved by sentor management
covening a five-year penod. The pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections 1s March 31, 2024 20.32% (March 31,2023 21-29%) and cash flows bevand the live-year period are extrnpolated using
a growth rate (March 31, 2024- 2-5%, March 31, 2023 2-5%) that 1s the same as the long-term avernge growth rate for the education mdustey

The summary of key assumptions used in value n use caleulations

As at Asat
Mairch 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
Pre -Tax Discount rate 21-20%
Ternmnal Valie growth rate 2.5 250
Revenue growth rate 8-04% 8-55%

Management has determined the values assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows.

Discount Rate: The above diseount rte represent the current market assessment of the risks specific to each CGL, takmg into consideration the time value of money and individual risks of the underlying assets
that have not been incorporated 10 the cash flow estimates The discount rate caleulation is based on the specilic circumstances of the Company and its operating segments and is derived from its weiglited
avernge cost of capitnl (WACT),

Terminal Value growth rate: This 15 the wewhted average growth rite used ta extrapolate cash fows beyond the budget period The rates nre consistent with forecasts maluded in mdustry reports.

Revenue growth rate: Revenue urowth was projected taking mto account the average growth levels experienced in past, management’s growth plans and mnatives and mdustry reponts

The estimation of value in use reflects assumptions that are subject to various risks and uncertaimties. mcluding key assumptions regarding revenue growth rate, terminal value growth rate and pre-tax discount
rate It requires siznificant judgments and estimates. and actual results could be materally different than the yudgments and estimates used to estimate value in use

Sensitivity chiunge in dssumptions
The caleulation of value in use for nbove mentioned CGLs 15 most sensitive 1o revenue growth, discount rate and long-term growth rate assumptions.

For the year ended March 31, 2024, an analysis of the caleulation's sersiiviey to a change m the key parameters (revenue growth, discount rate and long-term yrowth rate) based on reasonably probable
assumptions and basis manag, plansT tans. for "iNeuron Intelligence Private Limued" resulted in CGU recoveralile amaount falling helow their cartying amount, accordmgly, imparment of INR
5.427 15 recorded in the statement of profit and loss. For the remmning CGUs, the Company did not identify any probable scenarios where the CGUs recoverable amaunt would fall ‘helow thew carying amount

For the year ended March 31, 2023, an analysts of the caleulation’s sensitivity 1o o change m the key parameters (revenue growth, discount rate and long-lerm growth rate) based on rensonably probable
assumptions an "Top Tak" resulted in CGU recoverable amoung falling below their camryving amount, aceordingly, impairment of INR 106 15 recorded m the statement of profit and loss For the remaining CGUs,
the Company did not identify any probable seenaros where the CGUs recoverable amount would fall helow their CATTYIE amount
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S{e)  Other intangible assets

Assembled  Nom-compete  Bistribiition A Froemium — Customer . 5

Wiirkfaree foe P P Content  IPR Project Relutionships Brand  Trademark Software Tatal
Gross carrying amount
Asat April 01, 2022 (deemed cost)* = - - Il - 3 - - - 28 147
Addition on acqusition ot businesses (refer note dd [dy) 137 431 126 4,658 - - 158 1541 BE4 1,323 19,437
Additions - - - 297 434 - . 5 : 8 7309
Disposals - - - - - - - - - (37) (37
As at March 31, 2023 137 430 126 5051 434 3 154 11,541 LLE] 1522 20,286
Addinon on acqusition of husmesses (refer note 44 (4)) - R - 1.210 - - - 5,690 - - 7,740
Additions - - 1,724 63 - - - 48 481 2316
Disposals - - - - - - - E %
Transfer - - - - - - - - = = ~
As at Mngh 31, 1024 137 1270 126 7.085 497 3 158 17,231 932 1,003 30,342
Accumulated amortisation
Asat Aprilot, 2022 - - - - - - . - & & =
Charue for the year - 4 - 190 1o 2 12 kil Rl 16 RN
Iinpaioment - - - - - - - 174 . . 174
Disposals . - . - = u - . - (t2) (12)
Asat March 31,2023 - M - 190 16 1 12 205 3 4 466
Charge for the period 46 163 42 |.819 45 | 80 1.582 298 420 4606
Impairment - 270 - - = z = kN T L 713 4.67|
Dhsposals - = - 3 = - - - -
As at March 31, 2024 A6 667 42 2,009 (3] 3 92 5,475 RI 1,137 9,833
Net enrrying amount
Asat April 01,2022 (leemed cost) - - - 1o = 3 - - - 28 147
Asat Murch 31,2023 137 396 126 4861 418 1 146 11,336 881 1,518 19,820
As at March 31, 2024 a1 603 L] 5976 436 - i 11,756 63l 866 20,509
*Cost as at Apnl 01, 2022 15 caleulated as shown before

Assembled  Non-compete  Distribution Content IPR Frecminm Cusltomur Brand  Teademark  Software Total

workforee fee network Project  Relationships
Gross carrymg amount as per previous GAAP - - . 19 . - - - 43 162
Accumulated amartisation - - - () - - - (15} (18)
Deeined cost - - - 116 - = - » 28 144

There are no restrictions over the title of the Group's miangible assets, nor are any intangible assers ple
“The Group has elected to earry the value of its Intangble

permitied under Para DTAA of Ind AS 101 for the first time aduption

S(d)  Intangible nssets under development
P

Assets as recognised m s previous GAAP financ:

dged as securiry for habilinjes
als e their carrving value, as deemed cost at the transiion date e Aprl 01, 202

2 as per the aption

Software  Content  Trademark Taotal

Cost or valuation
Asat April 01, 2022 - S61 - 36l
Additions - - 48 48
Written off during the vear - (467) - (467)
Capitahsed during the vear = (94 - (04
Asat Maurch 31,2023 - = 48 48
Additions 32 - - 32
Capatahised during the year - - [48) {48)
Asot March 31, 2024 32 - - 32
Apgeing of intangible asset under develnpment

Amount in intangible assets under devel T for i period of Tatal

Less than | year I-2years  2-3 years More than 3 years

Asat April 1, 2022
Projects in progress - - - - -
Projects tempornnily suspended 48 - - - 48
Asat March 31, 2023 44 - - - 45
Projects in progress 32 - - - 32
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Asal Mareh 31, 2024 n - - - 32

There are no overdie or cost overrun prajeets compared 1o 1ts oriwnal plan and no Intangible assets under development which

The Group has neither revalued nor impaired 115 mtaniible assets except TopTak Education and

internally generated content duning the vear ended March 31, 2024

are temporanly suspended, an the above mentioned reporting dates
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6 Flmanclil dsyets

Mt cibrrent Current
As Anat As ot As i Azt Avul
Mwreh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 April 81, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Investments 1 Queted Equity ai far valie eough profit amd 1038 {raler (1) belon) - - - - | 1148
Investment i Cooted Mutal Fusds Fair valie ihrongh profitcand loss crefier () below) - - - | 12 2549 L
i i Chioted N eriilile det throtgh profic and loss (ecler (m) below) - - 151 - -
Invesiment un Nop convertible debentires a1 G value theouph Otlier Comprenshive Incame (reler fiv) helo 2.4 - 2. -
14t - 14,763 20546 1J=NL
fifu) nein equiny nsteiments: quoted
shiares al fair value through peofit or loss
Mo of Untits Amuunt
At Asat Asal Asat Asal Asm
Narch 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023 Apeil 00, 2023 March 31, 2024 Mureh AL 2023 April (1L, 2022
BEML Limied - 420 IE3 - | 3
Aantt Drugs Limited - H 23400 - = 1
Ahholt [nda Lid - - 44 - "
Adani Wilmar Limnuted - - 355 - - 1K
Apanta Pharmp Lid - ki - - 3
Asati Songwon Colors Limited - - 364 - - 1
Asiral Limited # . (1] - » 14
Aurolundo Pharni Lipited - - 1,550 - - I
Bhagena Indugiries Linied - - 4u78 - - 1
Bharu Airel Linnited 2102 - I
Caneade Tech Limited . Ekk} - 1
CESC Lumijed . - 16,090 - B 12
Cholamandalam livestment And Finnnee Compane Lid . . 227 - 1]
Capla Limited - - 2732 - - %
Coaztal Cornetation Linied - - 4419 & - It
Colarge Ll - Im - K
Dalnn Blvarat Sugar And tncstrics Limited ERILTS - - 15
Dici Metwarks Limeyd 17060 - - 1]
Thivon Technologes India Ll - 177 - #
Dl Darr Linsitod - - A3y - 2
Dr Lal Pathlatss Luat - - 1 - - .
Escler Motars Limizd - Tan - - K]
Force Mators Lunined 1311 - = 13
F5N E-Commerce Ventures Limited . JHd 3
Garware Techneal Filires Lid - - b2 - %
Cerasin Industeses Linsiled - - K1 - 13
HOL Technologies Lunited - 1357 - Ity
HIFC Bank Limited Jsn - 1
HDFC Life Insurance Company Linied - 1,755 - 0
HIL Limed - - Y ~ - 13
Hinelabess [nehustries Limted - ER 1Y} % 2
Housing Develepment Fmnce Corporation Lenied - 641 - - 15
ICHC] Bank Lanied - Hns7 54
IC1CT Lonshard General lnswance Conpans Lid - s B x|
India Nippan Electricals Limited - 335 13
Indigo Paints Lid - - 497 - - #
Info Edie lidi Led 1 - = i
Tilnsss Limterd K3 - - I
Iimeelieet Design Arci Lid = 470 4
| Ksamar Infrnpropeets Limited - - 1530 13
JSW Sieel Lisied - - Ll - - 15
Jubslant fngrevea Lid [ - - L]
Rirloskor Ferrous Indunnies Limited - - 7.2 In
KNR Constructions Lid - Rk - k]
Kotak Mabindea Bank Lonied i - - It
KEB Limited . 1Lat - - 17
Lincoln Plamiscenticals Linuted - - +.020 - - 2
L&T Technology Services Lig - - KS - - 4
Mahindra & Makindra Limited - - EILITY 17
Manal Petrachemicals Lintied - - 14572 Ity
Maruy Swanki Indi Ly - 1a3 - - 13
Metropolis Healheare Ligl - - | ®3 - Z 4
Mavin Fluonine International Ll - - 154 - - [
NCL Tnduistries Lintied - - 0,877 - - 12
Mestle fndia Lid - - 132 - - 3
Newpen Software Technologics Lid - - w7 L . 3
Tage Industrics Lid - - 12 - - i
Tersisient Svsieins Lud 202 12
Fhoeny Mills Lid - - 23 - - 3
Polv Medieyre Lid - - a7 - - 3
Fonjapatavam Mills Limped (NI = - 1
Rallis India Limned LA FE |15
Rama Phasphates Linuted, - - 3315 - 14
Relianes Indwetnes Linuted o4 - - 16
Fubiils Iniernauaal Limied = - (ER ] - 1
5 P Apparels Limited - - 2820 - - 10
Salser Electronies Limited A . - 15
Sequent Stienufic Lid - 2251 3
Tata Consultancy Services Linited - - 41K -+ 1o
Tatn Consumer Praduets Linited - - 1134 - - 17
Tato Steel Limited - 1,858 ]
Tech Malumdra Limitod - - Lol I
Time Technoplast Linvred - - 1] §1% - - 14
Wallant Orpanies Limiied - - |2t - = ]
Vedant Fashions Lid - - Fih 4
Wipro Limned - - 1631 - - 13
IMINDIA LTD B k1 - i
Asian Pams Lud - - 16 - 1%
Axis Basik Lid - 2.3 - - 17
Bajay Finance Lid - 142 - - [
Bajay Finsery Lid 7 - - 12
Bharal Petralovm Comporntion Limjted - A4 - - I
Coampuier Ape Manageovem Scrvices Lid - a5y "
Crompion Greaves Conswmer Fleetronl Lid - 1,327 - = L]
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M of Units Amoumt
Fine Orjanic Industries Lig = - 156 - - [
Himatsingka Sewde Limuied - - An - = [
Infosvs Lud - - 2300 - - 44
Jubilant Pharmova Linied - - 4353 - - 3
Mphasis Lul - - 3T - - Iz
Orient Elecisic Lud - - L . - 3
Suven Pharmaceyticals Lid E B LTE] - 4
Titan Compamwy Led . - Hke - e 1
[} (AL
(i) nvestment in Quated Mutsal Fands Fiir valiee theowgh prafi ami foss
Nov of Units Amoiint
s at As i Ay at Asat Asat Asar
Muareh 31, 2024 Mureh 31,2023 April 00, 2022 Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2032
Tata Moaney Murker Fund Growth Direct Plan FTanl - - 1504 - -
HOFC Low Duration Fund Crowil Direet Plan 87627 - - 1143 -
IEICT Proclentinl Savings Fund Growih Direet Plan 14E.A9) - - I . .
UTI Ligued Fund Growth Direct Plan 25378 - - [RIGR . -
Axes Ulin Shon Teri Funad Cirowth Direst Plan 143024 - . 78 - -
1CIC1 PRU Equity Athitrope Dimeci-Cirowth RHTLRRA T} . - 417 - -
Additya Birln Sww Lafe Liuendd Fund Growth Direet Plan G438, 250 w4347 . 2.2 1518 -
id Fund Growth Direct Plan - 241277 - - 5034 -
uidity Fund Groswil Direct Plan - 168,157 - - RE S -
Fotak Laquid Fund Growih Direet Blan - 55334 - - 2507
SBI L Fund Growil Dereet Plan - 142800 - -
SBI Arhinge Opportunitics Fund Regolar Plan Grond +A4H0 4440 - 1 -
IC1CT Prsdenionl Qvernipht Fund Direet Pl Growth - 43020 - - A0
Motifal Oswnl MOST Shares NASDAQ-100 ETF - i RRIERT = - pxl
Tnie beneon ALF - 134,504 - - 4
SBI Lequid Fund Growth (Erstwhile SBI Peemier Luguid ) 1413 - - bk} - 2
IEIET Proclzntial Uiiea Short Term Fund Growih Direct Plan IHEANL - . 14 - -
Aditva Burla Sun Lile Savings Fumd Growth Direes Man 203 G % (1173 = b
Axis Money Maskel Fund Growth Dieecr Blnn THEG - - 113 . .
1.z 20,545 1,131
—— =
(1) Crustedd nsn-canvertiabile debentures amil commercial paper
Non-comvertiable debentures and eommercial piger i faie value thrmgh profit or loss Mo of Units Anigunt
Asat Asat As a1 As al Axal As it
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 24

j21

360 One Panfolia Managers |KM MO T Apr 2025-INE1HPOTI2N Lthoiy B . (IS =
Manipal Education aml Medical Graup lnilia Private-INE4HTNOTi | 1 . = 1300 & =
Piraninl Enterprise Lid 3000 C1 M0-SER-24-FNE40A 14 LR 1o - = 47 . -
Shrienm Finance Lumied SR 0 00" SFLNCDSI024 9 NUD-INET21AI7RIS i - - fn2 -

RS - -
fivy Nun eomvertilile debontires
Tnvestment in Nun canvertible debentures at fale value through Other Comprenshive nenme Na afl Units Amioint

Asal At Aval A al As ot As
Mareh 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 00, 2022 Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023 Apdl 01, 2002

Manspal Education Ned | TNy 2T (Centiltin] 39+ 138 - - 2.4 - -

14M -
“lnvesinients ot M value thyoneh OC1 refloot investien in d diehy These debt T are d d an FVTOC as they are not held for trading purpose. The debi seeuritics meet Salels Payments

of Prncipal and Inerest (SPEL test and are held i a busmess niodgl whose objective is mel botl by calleeting contractunl cash ows and selling the asset. Accardingly other comprelensive income of INE 43 [aos hay
been recopmsed durmy e financial vear ended March 31 20624

Nales

a) Refer nate 37 for fai vatie diselosure of [ value m respeet ol linaneial ssscls

6 () Launy

Non-current Cuorrent

Asat Asat Asat A at Asar As
Mirch 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 Apeil 01, 2022 Mareh 35, 202 Mareh 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

Uinseedred, considered goml

Loan to education s ® 724 - - - - -
Loans to employees s 12 - 21K X} ¥
Totul leans 1,329 12 - 118 1] H5

 —— ]
*Dwrng the vear e Group has given loag lenm Lumis 10 Crisirhulan Ely Trust Rate of wterest on loan 5 Y% per abaun

Mo taans or advanices liave beet iranted 10 promoters, direstors or B MEs.




Phvsicswilinh Private Limited

CIN: USnoiauPz2zeprT eIz

Nates i Colsaliduted Financiil Statements fur (he vewe enided March 31, 2024
(AN amoints nre in INR Bac, pnlesy ntherwise stiel)

i ie} Trmle receivilites

Asit Asal As i
Mareh 31, 2024 Muarch 31, 2003 April 01, 3022
Unsecured, considered poml
Trade recewvabies - illed conssdered good R e L 2%
Trade recetvables - unbiljed considered pood 44 M7 13
3,932 1456 43
Ly - Allowance for credit lugs
Trade recervahles - credit impared 330 (44} -
Toral trathe receivalilex 2601 1.31] 43
Breakup of Trade Reecivable
Trade receivables (Unseeured - considesed pooid) 1l L3l 43
Trade receivables which have signifieant incrense o ceedit risk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired o | 145 -
Total 3naz 1456 43
Tmpiiement allowanee (allowanee far bl and donlifl delsis)
Trode sceervables - credil impayed [REIN) (145} -
Tatal traile receivihiles J4nl 13 43
Moves in allywance for redit bosses of revei
Anal Asal Asal
Mareh 38, 2024 Maurch 31,2023 April i1, 2022
Openmp Balanee 148 . =
Provision [or expected credit losses 33 145 .
Reversaly Ad)nsiments (145} - C
Clising Balance 331 145 -

Mites:
{0} No teade or odher recervable are due from direciare or other officers of the group esther severally o joimtly watl any aihar persan. Nar any trade or other recevalle are duc fram firms of privae companics
reapeetively m which any diresios (s partner. o directon or 3 nicnber ather than mentoned m noje 35

) For 1emms and conditions relnting (o relined pay recervables, Reler soe 34

(111 Trawde recesvahles are non-imerest bearine il are tencralls on eins of 30l dave

(v} There re o non-current Irade receivables as on March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023, mnd Agn| 01, 2022

{4 The receivabic s "unbilled” hecmsse the Company bas swon ver issied an s oice: however, the halance has heen mehed under trnde receivables fux opposed to contract assets) Becanse he Company has an
| L rghil 4o consid

Trinle recelvables ageing sehedule
As ot Mareh 41, 2i2d

Current Custanding for following peciutls from dite of invoice
Unhdlled  liie e i fomonthy = | {1 Eyenrs 1.3 venrs Maore than 3 Taral
e stnr L yenrs

Undisputed Trode Reconvahles - conssdered good ([} - 3. 16T iy - - R
Ulndtispined Trade Recavables - wlich e signilicant merense m credit risk . s i & 2 :
Undwped Temle Recervables - credil impoired - - =] (ki) 47 - - 3l
Dusputed Trade Reseivables - considered jond . - . . . % 5
Disputed Trade Rezelvables « which have sigmificant morease i eeedin nisk - - - - . - -

Disputed Trade Recervables - credit impaired - . - - - 4 2 =
Tatal [11E] - 3,341 247 [ ER - = a2
Lesst allowance for doubitful receivabiles {331
g;l 3001
Truile receivabies aseing schedibe

As at March 31, 2023

Current ] ling foe follmwing perimds Triom die of i lee
Uabited e nat O G i anintls - | |- 2 yenrs 1.3 years Muore than 3 Total
due rear Vedrs

Undisputed Trade Recewvables - congidered gond 47 - Jud 70 = = . 1311
Linel | Trade R bles - which have neronse in srodit nsk . £ 2 % 5 :
Unddisputed Teade Recoryables - credit impaired - - - - [ES . Z 45
Dispuied Trade Receivables - considered pond z N 3 - - = . :
Duspuicd Trade Receivables - which have snouficant ierease i crodil msk - - = = s - =

Disputed Traue Becravahles - eradin tnipaied - - = - 2 = % _
Total p il - 404 5T 145 - - 1 A5G
Less: allowinee fur doubfol recelvahles (145}

Tutal 1311

Trade receivaliles ageine sehedule

Anar April 01, 2032
Current Oum:ndlng Tur Tollwwing periods from dote of invelee
Unlitled — tunt l:‘rl Boannihy = | S - 23 years Maore than ) Tl
e sear yeary
Ll | Trade R biles - d gond . - H 1 E 2 = 33
Undispied Teade Receivahles - s hich have signifieant incrense in eredif risk - a 5 = = = = =
Undispuited Trade Recervables - credit impaired s - . 5 = = = E:
Duspured Teade Recervables - considered pood - i F: - . o ‘ P
Dusputeed Trade Receivables - which have stanifeant merease i eredin resh B =3 % i - . - -
Dusprinted Trade Recenables - credit npaired - - - % “ . »

THIEJ . - 11 1 - 2 i 43




swillah Private Limited

CIN: URIMITPINZ0PTCI29223

Notes tn Coleali Financial § for the vear ended March 31, 2024
(AL dmounts are n INR Lics, unless atherwlse stated)

A Gy Casheaml cosh equivalents

As at At Asar
March 3, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 Apeil i1, 2022

Balances with hanks

o Currens accoumnts R Lid3 iy
1 Deposits with orteinal matrin of less (han three monthe I 1083 -
Cagh on hand 432 162 7
Chegue in hand 33 o
Cash n transn [ 43 -
Totak cashy anil cash equivalints 5,314 4,003 613

Fur the pur,

Aval As Ax il
Balances with bapks
1 Cwrrent pccounts ERI) 143 L]
it Depnsits with ormal mamnts of fess i 1hree manths 16 2,053 -
Cash on hand m 1Al 7
Cash iy Trane 2 45 .
5174 4,903 671
el Other hank balunees
Asal Asat Asal
March 31, 2024 Mprch 31, 2023 Aprilng, 2021
Depasiis Wil emainiig matunity of more than 3 months bt fess than 12 manihs 2581 HT KT 348
Imicrest ocerued bt nor due deposits Wit maerty more than 3 months but less than 12 memths :3 7 12
2.583 48078 3471
A0f Other linpneinl assets
MNini-curront Crrrent
Asul At As i Asal Asat Ay at
March 31. 2024 Mirch 31, 2023 Apritdil, 2022 March 31,2022 Mirich L2023 April0f, 2022
Unseeurel, cansitered gond
Bank Depositst (IR 5.558 5498 MLz .
Imarest ocerued bin nor due oo deposins 14 k) +H 244 - -
Secunty deposis H.olis 24941 129 30| 168 -
NCL PuvForward assets for sequisition of son contralling aterest {refer noe | 44c)) - B - - i .
Other receivahles frefer note () below ) - - - 2603 [Rip L) 3ns
14414 R.5HR 5,760 26,685 2.0%7 i

Mirte
al Other recesvabiles (eurrentl mehides TNR 3 446 [acs. INK 952 1nes and INR 229 lacs receivabile from payment gateway comapumies a5 44 March 30 2024, March 31, 2023 and April 1L, 2022 sespeetively

= Aank deposis melwdes depasits Amounta INR 4001 Taes (Nlarcl 512023 IMR 4000 kies. Aprl 1. 2022 Ml ) and TNR 4,500 Jacs (March 31, 2023 INR 1500 Jacs, Aprl 12022 Ml ) Hen markesd i gams werm
fom e averdrall facilin respoctively

Breald up of finpmckal assers eareied o amuietisei cost

Notcurrent
Avan Asm As al

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Trade receivablis [refer noke 4(c | 3 131 43
Loni [refer note il | 1.329 [ -
Olier linaneial assels (refer note /0 [ERIE] H_5HE 5768
Tanal Anancin assets carded at amartived cost 19,744 ERIN] SHT|

T Uher assety
Current

Axa As Asal As Ay al

Asat
el . 2024 i

Unsecured, consiiered ol

Capital mibvances Lz LAtk 2 - - -

Prepard Expenges 1 S8 | 1120 ity 1ng
Bitlances with sianinon govesiment nillonies - an = L) 87 -

Advance 10 suppliers - - - 1.2 H34 m
Addvance to cmplovecs - - - Hu 54 |
Other Advances = - . [ 143 Gl
Tatal nther assets 1,318 1,503 4 Jan 1904 454

K Inventorics

- Ax At Asal
Mireh 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April i1, 2022
Stock in trade
I hand 3300 26z RH
In transil 31 17 -
Frinished pocds i -
Row materials (a1 cost)
In hand 14498 407 §
5,742 G su
Less. Allowance for nventon ohsolescence iy (Raf) =

Tatil inventaries 534 1270 511




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: USDO00UP2020PTC 129223

Naotes to Colsolidated Financial Stat for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs except for numiber of shares, unless otherwise stated)

9 Share capital

Asat As at As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01,2022

Authorised shares

7.00.00,000 equity shares of INR | each 700 700 700
(March 31, 2024, Mareh 31, 2023 and April 01, 2022 7,00.00,000 equity shares of INR | cach)
70.00,0000 0601% Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("COPS") of INR 10 each 0o 700 -

(March 31,2024, Mareh 31, 2023 700,00,000 CCPS of INR 10 each and Apnl 01, 2022 Nil)

1400 1401 lLl1]

Lssued shares, subscribed and fully paid-up shares

600,001,000 equity shares of INR | each 600 600 604
(March 31, 2024 - ,00,00,000 equity shares of INR | each)

(March 31, 2023 6,00,00,000 equity shares of INR | each)

(Apnl 01, 2022 6,00,00,000 equity shisres of INR 1 each)

13 equity shares of INR | each* -+ . o
(Mareh 31, 2024 13 equity shares of INR | ench)

(Mareh 31, 2027 13 equuty shares of INR 1 eaeh)

(Apnl 01,2022 Nil equuty shares of INR 1 each)

600 600 600

* During the year ended March 31, 2023. the holdmg company 1ssued |3 equity shares of INR | each, fully pasd-up at a premm of INR 1,124 per share Ench holder of equity share 15 entutled 1o one vote far every
share held i the meeting of equity shareholders The dividend proposed by the board of directors 15 subject to the approval of the shareholders m the ensuing annual general meeting Holder of these equity shares
hvas the right to require the parent compiny to undertake 4 buvback of Investor shares ar any portion thereol at the fir market value ol the shures) 1f the parent company will not be abile 10 provide an Exit Option
(IPO ar Third-Party Sale)

Eruity Shares
A, Reconciliation of number of equity shares

For the vear ended For the year ended
Particnlars March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Numbers Amount Numbers Ampunt
Al the begmning of the year G000 600 00 6,00,00.000 GO0 00
Change during the year - - K] .
Al the end of the period 6,00,00,013 H00.00 0,00,00,0113 600.00

B. Terms/Rights attached to equity shares

As on March 31, 2024, the parent company has issued equity shares having a par value of INR |- per share Each holder of equity share 15 entitled to one vote for every share held m the meeung of equity
shareholders The Company declares and pays divadends in Indian Rupees The dividend proposed ty the hoard af directors 15 subject to the approval of the sharsholders i the enswny annugl general meeting

In the event of hqwidatton of the parent company, the lolders of equity shires will be enttled 1o recenve remaming assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferental amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

C, Details of sharehalders holdings more than 5% shares

As at Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Percentnge of Percentage of Percentage of
Number Halding Number Holding Number Holding
Equity shares of INR | each fully paid
Alnkh Pandey 3,000.040,000 0% 3.00,00,000 50 3.00,00,000 508
Prateek Bool 3,000, 00,000 0% 301000000 50% 3,00, 061,000 50%
.00, 00,000 100, 0,010, 00,001 1005 G, 00,0000 1 00%%

As per records of the parent company. including its rewsster of shareholders members and other declarations recerved from sharehalders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents hoth legal and
beneticial ownerships of shares

D, Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shapes issued for considerntion other thin eush und shives bought back during the peried of five yvears immedintely preceding the reporting date:

March 31,2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2022 March 31,2021 March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Equuny shares allotted as fully pmd bonus shares by capitalization of surplus m the statement af

o 5,99 00,000
profit and loss

= i 5.99.00.000 - - .

The parent company has allotted 3.99.00.000 fully pard up equity shares of INR 1/~ cach pursuant to 599 1 bonus share issue approved by the hoard reselution passed on March 21, 2022, by ¢apitalising the amount
of INR 599 00 lacs of surplus i the statemant of profit and loss of the Group

E. Shares reserved for issue under options

For detanls of shares reserved for issue under the emplovee stock aption (ESOP) plan of the Group, refer note 41
For details of shares reserved for issue on conversion of CCPS, refer note | 5(a) regarding terms of conversion/ redemption o preference shares

F. Details of shareholding of Promoters in the Group

Name As at 31 March 2024 Asnt 31 March 2023 Change during % change
Number of shares % Holding ~ Number of shares % Holding the yenr during the yvear
Alnkly Patdey 1.00,00,000 50% 3.00,00,000 50% - [
Priteek Boob 3.00.00,000 50% 1,00,00,000 0% - [0
e M . Asat 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 Change during % change
AN umber of shares % Holding  Number of shares % Holding the year during the year
Alakh Pandey o= f \e1 ) 300 000 S0% 300,000,000 50% - (115

Prateck Bool 2| [ 3,000,00,000 s0% 3.00.00,000 s0% i 0%




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: USH9000P2020PTC129223

Notes to Colsolidated Financinl Statements for the vear ended Mareh 31, 2024
(All nmounts are in INR lacs except for pumber of shares, unless stherwise stated)

10 Other equity

Asnt

Asat

Mprch 31,2024 March 31,2023

Ag it
April 01,2022

Retamed earnings (1.01,985) 1717 Q080
Emplovee stock options reserve 15,183 3,803 -
Stock opuon 2.963 2,963 -
NCT reserve (41.422) {27.4506) -
General reserve 10 - -
Exchimge differences on wanstatng the finaneial statements of o foreign operation (FCTR) (1) - =
(1,25,261) (18,863) 9,980
i} Retnined earnings
A Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Opening balances 1,836 9,080 754
Add (Loss)Profit for the year (104,5T) (8.144) 9,825
Less Bonus tssued/buyback of shares durmy the vear - - {599)
Closing bulnnces (102,221 1,836 9,980
B.Other comprehensive income
Balance at begmmng of the year (GL))] - -
Adid Gan/(Loss} of other comprehensive income during the vear 335 (999 -
Closing balances 136 (99) -
Closing balynees of retained earnings {1,01,985) 1,737 9,980
i) Employee stock options reserve (refer note 41)
Balance nt the beginning of the year 3,803 . .
Add Compensation options granted during the year 12,266 3,893 -
Add Options granted to employees of subsidiary eompanies E
Less transferred to general reserve (Liy - -
Less Cancellation/adyustment 1n stock options {065) - :
Clasing balance 15,184 3,893 -
iii) Stock aption
Binlance at the begmnmg of the yem 2063 -
Add Issted dunng the vear - 2963 -
Closing balance 2,963 2,963 -
i) General resenve
Balance at beginnmg of the vear = 3 i
Add - Transfer from emplovee stock option reserve 1 -
Closing balance m u -
v} NCI reserve
Balance o bewmning ol the year (27.450) - -
Add Recognition of NCI Put / Forward liabality for aeq of non-controlling nterest (net) (refier note 44} (13.,966) {27.456) -
Closing balance (41,422) (27,456) -
vi) Exchunge differences on translating the Minancial statements of o foreign operation
Balanee at begmnimy of the year = = A
Add Changes during the period {10} - -
Closing balance (10} - -

al Retnined earnings

Retamed earmngs are the profits{loss) thal the sroup has earmed/meurred Ul date. less any transfers to general reserve. dividends or other distnbutions pad to shareholders Retamed earmungs include re-

measurement fossfumn) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will nnr be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss

h) Genernl reserve
General Reserve represents amount transferted fappartioned from employee stock option reserve on account of cancellanon of unvested options

<

ther comprehensive income

Other Camprebensive Income Reserve represent the balance m equity for item 1o be aceounted in Other Comprehensive Income, OC] 15 clasmified o

1) Items that will not be reclassified 1o profit & loss

1) atem that will be reclassified w profit & loss

Actusrial Gam and losses for defined plans are recogmzed through OCT in the period i which they oceur Re-measurement are not reclassified to profit or loss m subsequent peniods:

d) Employee stock options reserve
Emplovee stock options reserve s used to recogmse the value of equiry settled share hased pavtients provided to emplovees as a part of their remunerntion

e) Stock Options

Durmg the year ended March 31, 2023, the group has acquired "OnlyIAS Nathmg Else™ Pursuant to business purchase agreement. proprietor ef entity shall he given certain stock options of the wroup amounting to

INR 2444 Jnes on the date of the wansaction. Every 10 stock options shall he converted iinto one equity share upon payment of exercise price of INR | per option

The group acquired 51% shareholding 1n "Utkarsh” and pursuant to share purchase agreement, the erstwhile promoters of entity, have been issued certan share options exercisable at any time alter the acqiisition
date Every | stock option shall e converted into one equity share upon payment of exercise price of INR | per option. The group has recogmised the fan value of such options on the nequisition date amewnting to

) NCI reserve

NCT reserve 1s used 1o recognise NCIPut / Forward labiliey pursisant (o acquisitien of iNedron Intelligence Private Limted, Xylem Learnmg Private Lumted, Utkarsh Classes and Edutech Privite Linted, Fenpencil

Edu Services Private Linuted

-

Exchange differences on translating the financinl statements of a foreign opeention '
Exchange differences ansmg on translanon of the forewn operations are recoumsed in other comprehensive income as deserited i accounting pdlieyiand accumulgted
cumulative amount 15 reclassified to profit or loss whien the net mvestment 18 disposed-olT |

B

equity. The




Phiyvsicswallah Private Limited

CIN: USH900UP20ZOPTC 29223

Notes to Colsolidated Financinl S ts for the year ended Murch 31, 2024
{All amounts are in INR ties, unless otherwise stated)

15
150}

Compainy a5 3 lessee

a) The Group has lease contracts for office premises, coaching centers and hostels, Leases generally have lease term between | 10 9 yenrs Genenally the group 5 restricted from pssipning and
subleasing the leased asset There are several lease contracts that includes extension and termination options which are further diseissed helaw

I} The Group also has certain leases of INR 4,515 53 with lease term of 12 months or less or fow vilie The Group applies the"Short term lease” recoghition exemption for the leases

Right-of-use ussels

Building
Gross Carrying value
Asat April 01,2022 = 3B70
Addition 42,845
Adduion pursuant to business combination (refer note 44(d)) 3822
Disposal a7
As ol March 31, 2023 50,520
Gross Carreying vilie
Asat April 01, 2023 50,520
Addition d40,209
Addition f 1o busi I an (refer note 44(d )1 1,220
Muodifieation 75
Cancellation (2m
Disposal (3,707)
Fuoregn eurreney translation of Toreign operation G
As ot March 31, 2024 85,303
Accumnlated depreciation
Asat April 01, 2022 = 7
Depreciation 4,091
Addition | 1o | 1 on (refer note 44(d ) -
Disposal ()
Asat March 31, 2023 4,094
Accumulated depreciation
Asat April 01, 2023 4,094
Deprecianon 12,563
Addition ta b 55 coml in {refier note d4(d)) =
_Disposal (1,079)
Asal March 31, 2024 15,578
Net Balance at April 01, 2022 3,863
Net Balance at March 31, 2023 46,424
Net Balunce at March 31, 2024 72,724

" The Company has adopted moditied rerospective approach for aceountng of lenses is per nd=AS 1In

Leases
Lease linbilities movements during the year:

For the yeur ended  For the year ended
Murel 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Opening balance 47,206 3,763
Adidition 38,605 -
Addition on secount of business combination I, 767 45,515
Interest for the year 5.582 1,776
Pavments (13,028) (3.861)
Adjustment on account of modification of leases (190 14
Derecogmzed during the year {2,612y -
Foreign eorrency translation of fureiun operstion 5 -
77,395 -I?!}llﬁ
Now=current Current
Asal Asal Asat Asat Asat As ot
Muarch 31, 2024 March 30, 2023 April (11, 2022 March 31, 2024 Blarch 31, 2023 April il 2022
Lense hiabilities 65,0626 40,199 1,196 11,768 7,108 36T
65,626 40,099 3,196 11,768 T.IEE 567

The effective interest rate for lease linhilities § 5% pa with maturity il @ VENTS,

Non-Controlling Interests

Asat As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the yenr 13,247 - =
Add Addition persunnt to business combination (refer note 44(h) 3,237 13,510 4
Add Profit for the vear (9,070} (263) -
Add Onther comprehensive ieome 11 - -
Balance at the end of the year 7,428 13,247 -
Financial linbilities
Borrowings
Non-current Current
Asat Asal As ot Asat As al Asal
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Term Lonn
Fram hank (secured)® (refer note (a) below) 3,177 (.07 £ 1834 3,077
Compnlsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS")
Series A 0.001% CCPS (refer nole (b below) 6,230 33,540 - - - -
Series A1 DO01% COPS {refer note (] below) 07,238 52282 - - . =
Chher lorns 13 . - 2
Bank overdraf - - -

L.64.883 92,500 - 3857




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN UE0900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to Colsolidated Financinl § for the yeir ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in INR loes, unless otherwise stated)

() Nature of Security and terms of repayment Tor secured borrowing and bank overdeaft;

Term foan rom HDFC bank was taken during the vear ended Munch 31, 2623 and carries interest @ 8 50% p o The loan is repavable 16 35 monthly mstaliments of INR 315 67 fucs each along with
interest from the year ended March 31, 2023 The loan is seeored by hypothecation of fymitire & fixtures and other fixed assets and second charge an fixed deposits held with HDFC hank
amounting to INR 4,000 00 lacs During the yeqr, the rte of imterest has been mereased 10 @ 8 96% pa and the balanee is how repavable in 24 monthly instalments of INR 315 67 laes ench along
with the interest from the year ended March 11, 2024

Bank overdraft facility hos been taken from ICICL HDFC and Kowk bank for an amount of INR 1,425 lacs, INR 1,500 lacs and INR 2,500 lacs respectively at an interest rate mnging from 6%-8%
Refer note 6(f) for detnils of lien agamst deposits. The facilives remains undrawn as at March 31, 2024

(b} Terms of conversion/redemption of Series A CCPS

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the parent comapny tssued 26,660,054 compulsorily converible cumulative preference (COPE) of INR |0 each fully paid-up at a premium of INR 1,115 per
share These COPS earry cumulative dividend @ 0.001% pa The proup declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of
the shareholders in the ¢nsuing annual peneral meeting The holders of the Series A CCPS shall be entitled (o receive notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted 1o the vote of the
Shareholders {including the hnlders of Equity Sharesy Each Senes A COPS shall entitle the holder to the number of votes equal to the mmber of whole or fractional equity shares mie which such
Senes A CCPS could then be converted

Opnional Conversion: On the conversion date, the Seties A CCPS shall be converted intw equity shares at the conversion price determined as provided in agreement The Senes & Conversion Price
wnitially shall be INR 1,125 (Rupees One Thousand One Hundred Twenty Five only) and each Series A COPS converting into | (one) equity Share, and shall be subject to adjustment from time to
time as provided in the agreement

Mandatory conversion All of the Series A CCPS shall mandatwnly be converted in such manner and into such sumber of fully paid Equity Shares ns is determined pursiant to the relevant clauses of
the agreement upon the expiry of o period of 20 (weniy) years from the date of issuance of such Series A CCPS ar such other penod as may he permissible under applicable Law. The Series A
Conversion Price initially shall be [NR 1,125 (Rupees One Thousand One Hundred Twenty Five only) and each Series A CCPS canverting into | (one) Equity Share, and shall be subject 1o
adpustment from time to time as provided in the agreement

In the event of liquidation of the Group before conversion! redemptinn of CCPS, the halders of COPS will have priority aver equity shres in the payment of dividend and repayment of capital
Holder of CCPS has the right to require the parent company to undertake a buyback of Investor shares or any portion thereaf at the fair market value (of the shares) if the parent company will not be
able o provide an Exit Option ([P or Third-Pary Sale)

(¢) Terms of conversion/redemption of Series AL CCPS

During the year ended Mareh 31, 2023 the parent company issned 40,00.000 COPS of INR 10 euch fully paid-up ata premiwn of INR 1,218 per share CCPS earry cumulative dividend @ 0.001%
na The group declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees The dividend proposed by the board of directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual genernl meeting
The holders of the Series Al CCPS shall be entitled to recerve notice of and vote on all matters that are submitted to the vote of the shareholders {meluding the holders of Equity Shares) Each Series
Al CCPS shall entitle the holder 1o the number ol votes equal to the number of whole or fractianal squity shares meo which such Series A1 CCPS could then be canverted

Optional Conversion' On the Conversion Date, the Series A1 CCPS shall be canverted into equity shares a1 the conversion price detenmined as provided in sgreement The Seres Al conversion
price initially shall be subscription price 1 ¢ INR 1,228 and each Series Al COPS converting into | (one) equity share, and shall be sitbject to adjustment from time to time as provided in the
ngreement.

Mandatory conversion: Allof the Series A CCPS shall mandatorily be converted in such manner and into such number of fully paid equity shares as is determined pursuant o the relevant clauses of
the agreement upon the expiry of a penod of 20 {twenty) vears from the date of issuance of such Series Al CCPS or such ather period as may he permissible under applicable Law. The Series AL
conversion price (nitially shall be subseription price e INR 1,228.00 and each Series A| CCPS converting into | (one} equity Share, and shall be subject to ndjustment from time to time as provided
in the agreement.

In the event of liquidation of the Group before conversion/ redemption of CCPS, the holders of COPS will have pricrity aver equity shares in the payment ol dividend and repayment of capital
Holder of CCPS has the right 1o require the parent company to undertake a huvbaek of [nvestor shares or any potion thereof at the fair market value (of the sharest if the parent company will net be
able 1o provide an Exi Optien (120 or Third-Party Sale)

15{h) Trade payables

Current
Asat Asal As at
March 31.2024  March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

Trnde payables
i total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 2,917 1,833 [
40 for details of dues to micro and small enterprises)

i total cutstanding dues of creditors other than miero enterprises and small 9,434 1,353 185
enterprises

12,351 5,186 191
Note:

i For explanutions on the Company’s credit nsk management processes, refer 1o Note 18

Trade payables ngeing schedule
As il March 31, 2024

Outstanding fram date of invoice

Unbilled Dues Not due Total
b ' Less than | year 1-2 yenrs 2-3 yenrs Mare than 3 yenrs g
enterprises 431 - 2411 73 | - 2917
Toral u.mslnndln‘l_; dues af crediars ather than micro 2314 ) 5882 710 9 B 9,434
enterprises and small enlerprses
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises - . - - - . -
Dhsputed dues of creditors uther than micro enterprses and
small enterprises - - - % - . -
Total 3,245 - 8,203 803 ] - 12,351
As at Mareh 31, 2023
Outstanding from date of inveice
Unbilled Dues Not lue = Total
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years Maore than 3 yeirs

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 2l - 1,622 - - - 1.831
Total o.uislnmlmg dues af creditors other than micro 570 N 2376 g . . 1,353
enterprises and small enterprises
Dhisputed dues of micro enterpnises and small enterprises - = - - - - -
Dispured dues of creditors other thin micrs enterprises and . "
small enterprises

Totul 1,181 - 3,998 [ ]
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15(c}

Asat April i1, 2022

Outstunding from date of invaice

AraTrifEd Buy Houw Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 yeors Mare than 3 years T
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - G - - - o
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro % = 67 R R h 185
enterprises and small enterprses
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - - - =
DHsputed dues of creditars other than micro enterprises and ) ) h N
smill enterprises -
Total 18 - 173 - - - 191

Terms tnd conditions of trade puyililes

i} Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally setled on terms ol 30 days

) For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Nowe 15

i) The group has recerved information from Creditors regarding theit status under the Miero, Small and Medum Enterprises Develonment Act, 2006 and hence disclosure relating to amounts
unpaid together with interest paid / payable have been disclosed in note 40

Other financinl Habilities

Non-current Current
Asat Asat As i Asal Asat Asal
Murch 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Drferred eonsideration (refer note (a) helow) - 170 - 489 751 -
Employee benefits payable (refer note (1) below) 125 a5 - 4,974 |,395 36
Interest aceryed but not due on term loans - - - 39 54 -
Payable in respect of capital goods - - 3 2761 1,550 33
Franchisee deposit I 105 - - - -
NCI Put / F'orw:mJ liability for pequisition of nan contralling 35055 28,146 J 5150 3 i
interest (refer nute () helow)
Secunty deposits 2 (] - 154 - -
Other Pavabile - - - 171 52 -
Payable i Faculty - - = 518 - -
25,293 28,652 - 14,266 3,801 (1]

(n) During the yeat ended March 31, 2023, the Company had acquired Entity "OnlylAS Nathing Else”, for an aggregate eansideration af INR 3,90 [acs. Parsuant 1o the business purchase apreement,
out of the above mentioned deferred purchase consideration, an amount of INR 187 baes (March 31, 2023 INR 93 lacs (including acerved interest)) payable on December 31, 2024 representing
current portion and an amount of INR Nil (March 31, 2023 INR 169 Incs (including accrued interest)) representing son-current portion of the agurepate lability, to the proprietor of entity. The
Company has recagmised such deferred consideration at its far value as on the date of acquisition using the effective interest rate method

During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Company acquired 32 68% shares in “iNeuron" [or an aguregate consideration of INR 7.948 lacs Pursuant to the share acquisition erm ngreement, the
C v paid deferred purchase consid of INR 400 laes (ineluding scenied miérest) on January (1, 2024 During the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has made the complele
f P I . £ Y ¥ pany |

payment and no amownt s payable in respect of afuresad transaction

Dunng the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company acquired 100% shares m "Knowledge Planet” for an ageregnte consideration of INR 2,071 laes Pursunnt to the share acquisition term
agreement, out of the mentioned purchase consideration an amount of [NR 302 |acs (March 31, 2023 285 lacs), including acerued jmerest, 15 payable on March 31, 2024 representing current portion
of the habality to the founder of Knowledge Planet The Company hits recognised such deferred consideration on its fair value as on the date af acqusition using the effective (nterest rmte method

(h) The amuount of INR 125 laes is payable to the founders of OnlylAS agaimst the employment terms as per the employment agreement dated December 31, 2023, The current portion includes
amount of INR 402 lacs payable to the founders of Knowledge Planet agninst the emplovment terms as per the employment sgreement dated hareh 31, 2023

te) Details with respeet to NCIPut/ Forward liabihty 1o relation to putforward commen for actuiring eermninng interest in subsidinnes are as follows
Fair value of gross | Fair value of gross
. 5 i s ; No. of shures . % wi_lh Nature of liability atinitinl | linbility on March
Name of entity, nature of business pnid details of purchase consideration 1 o nequired minority i btk
acyuired Sutepsil instrument recognition 31,2024
{Asset)/Linbility (Asset)/Liahility

Neuren, engaged in the business of providing online skilling and upskilling Put option with
courses in a variety of technology domains imeluding data seience, atificial the  shareholders
intelligence, web development ete thiodgh the website and other channels of minarity|
mcluding mobile applications interest
The Group exercises contral over iNeuron as it has corrent ability o direct the, 25,611 311% L7 17,240 5
relevant activities and is also exposed to variable returns generated by iNeuron
and has ability 1o use s power o affeel (Neuron's retums fram s
involvement  Thus, investment In (Neuron is classified as investment in
subsidiary. Entity wis acquired on December 23, 2022
Prepontine, engaged in the business of (1) operating an online e-learning Call vption with
plattorm offering live as well as recorded classes for preparation of the group and pin
competiive exams a5 well as sale of course materials and (i) publishing and option with  the
selling magazines, hooks, soliwares, legal datalise, newspaper, periodicals, 1.6 (0% o shareholders i (§90) 2515
(Jowrnals, other literary works bouks: course matenialsiesam papers v interest -
The Company exercises control over Preponbine as i has current ability 1o
direct the relevant activities and is also exposed to variable retumns generated
by Prepontine and has an ability to use its power 1o affect Preponling's returns
Xylem, engaged in the business of providing cosching for competinve Forward contract
govermment examinations i India conducied by central poverment, vanous| G} purchase]
state governments and other competilive exammations such as NEE et 4,367 i A0% [ rempining stake 13,966 15,978
Entity is an ommi <l | exam prey [arfi Entity was nequired on
Lung 14 3093
Utkarsh, engaged in the business of providing coaching for compentive] Forward contret
wovernment examinations in India conducted by central government, varous 10 purchase
state governments and other competitive examinations such as NEETJEE, ete 2.08,975 51% 49% | remaining ske 1106 11,707
Entity Is an omni channel exam preparation platform Entiy was acquired an
Adareh 11 9031




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: US0900UP2020PTC129223

Nates ta Colsolidated Fintncinl St for the year ended Mureh 35, 2024
(Al nmounts are in INR laes, unless otherwise stated)

Non-ciirrent Current
As ol Asat Asal As at Asal Asal
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022 March 31, 2024 March 37, 2023 April 01, 2022
Borrowings |refer note 15(a)) |.64,8873 92,500 - 3,857 3,115 =
Lease liahility 05,620 40,099 3,190 11,768 7,108 67
Feanchise Deposit - - - 12,350 5,186 191
Other financial liabilites {refer note 15(c)) 25,293 28,652 - 14,266 1,30 ]
Total financinl linbilities carried it amortised cost 2,55 802 ]MI 3,196 42,241 19,210 8}._1
16 Provisions
Non-current Current
Asat Asat As i Asat Asal Asal
Murch 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Pravision for employee benefits
i Provision for gratuity (refer note 360d}) I 1ol 326 57 40 20 -
ii. Provision for compensated nhsepces - - 1,037 418 -
Total provisions 1,101 326 57 1.077 438 -
17 Other linbilities
Non-current Current
Asat Asat As at As Asat Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022 Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Contract liabilities (refer note (a) below) - 183 = 30.60) 28,527 4 464
Statutory dues Onctuding provident fund and tax deducted at source) - - - 5,212 2,620 snl
Payable to related parties (refer note 13) - - - - 1,365
Other pavables - 114 0 -
Total other liabilties - 183 - 65,077 3617 6,390
Note {a} Contreact linbilities
Current
Asal Asat Asal
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Advances from cusiomers 59,60 23,928 4 404
Total contract linbilties 59,691 28,918 4,404
Movement of coniruct linhilities
For the year ended  For the year ended
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening contract linhilities 28,928 4464
Acquired through bosiness combination {(refer note 441 6,736 2341
Amaount recognised i revenue (35,515} (463
Amount recerved in advance diring the year 50 542 26,586
Clasing contract liabilities 59,691 218,918
Conteaet Linhiliies represent the amount recerved against the group's fture perdommance ohligation tw teanster either poads or services
I8 Tax assetMinbility (net)
Non-current
Asal Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Unsecured, considered pood
Advance tax and tax deducted at source 3,707 3,605 172
Provision for Income Tax (1,431) (4510 (27
3156 2,154 146

Break wp of financinl linhilities carried st amortised cost

{ This spice has been lefi inentnonally blank)
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19

a)

a)

b)

c)

Revenue lrom operations

Revenue information

Set out below is the disageregation of the group’s revenue {rom contracts with customers-

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Revenue from operations

Sale of services 1.76,829 67,454
Sale of products 16,463 6.642
Other operating income
Advertisement income 752 336
Total revenue 1,94.0444 74,432
Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue fron contracts with customers:
Sale of services
Income from coaching services 1.70.936 67454
Hostel Income 5.803 S
1,76,829 67,454
Sale of products
Traded goods - Studerits 13.286 6,471
Traded goods - Distributors 3,177 171
16.463 6,642
Other operating income
Advertisement income 752 336
752 336
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,94,044 74,432
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transterred over the tine 1.75.151 67,790
Products/ Services transferred at point in time 18,893 6,642
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,94.044 74,432
Revenue by geography
India 1,91,859 74,432
Outside India 2,185 “
Total revenue from contracts with customers 194,044 74,432
Contract balances
As al Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Trade receivables 3.601 1301 43
Contract Liabilities 39,691 28,928 4,463

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 30 to 90 days. In March 2024 INR 330.83 lucs (March 2023 INR 144,84 lacs - April
2022; INR Nil ) was recognised as provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables,

The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables us either a receivable or as unbilled revenue, A receivables is right to consideration that
is unconditional upon passage of time. Revenue of ongoing services at the reporting date yet to be invoiced is recorded as unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenues are billed in a term of 30-60 days, A sum ol INR Nil (March 31, 2023: INR Nil) has been recognised as provision for expected credit losses on
unbilled revenue during the vear

Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received (rom customers and uneatned revenue relating to online and offling coaching services.

Reconciliation of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price:

Asat As at
Muarch 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Revenue as per contacted price |, 94,044 74,432
Adjustments
Discount® - -
Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and Loss 1,94,044 74,432

*As the Group's contracted price is the price net of discount. additional disclosure related to discount not given above
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d)  Performance obligation and remaining performance obligation

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount ol the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting period
and an explanation as to when the Company expeels o recognize these amounts in revenue. As al March 31,2024, the aggregate amount of transaction price
allocated to remaining performance obligation as per requirment of Ind As 115 was INR 59.690 lakhs ( March 31, 2023: INR 28.928 lakhs) out of which.
approximately 85% (March 31, 2023 98%) is expected to be recognised as revenues within one vear and the balance beyond one year

200 Other income

For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2024

For the year ended
Murch 31, 2023

Interest income on

Deposits with bank

Loan to employee

Loan w others

Income tax refund

Debt instruments

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Others
Net gain on sale ol investment in mutual funds
Net gain on FVTPL investments
Gain/(Loss) on Mutual Funds
Rental Income
License income (net ol cost)
Dividend income
Net gain on sale of investment in equity shares
Gain on sale of property
Gain on settlement of forward contract*
Support services
Liabilities written back
Miscellaneous income
Total other income

4.069 1,946
8§ 4
3 :
35 -
52 .
368 110
2,237 275
18 &
73 175
46 ;
- 233
- 14
- 3
2 1
# L6
18 s
- 9
513 34
7,464 2,822

* The Group had teken a forward contract for payment of consideration under acquisition agreement, which was subsequently settled by the company due to

cancellation of agreement with the countervailing party.

21 Direct expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Prolessional lees

Server expenses
Student test expenses
Hostel Rent

Kitchen expenses
Academic expenses
Student support services
Other expenses

Total direct expenses

22 Purchase of stock-in-trade

17.773 3,544
5229 1.433
3.852 455
3272 -
3,192 g
2243 y
1.535 1.049

195 88
37,293 6,569

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Study material
Merchandise

3,377 3,134
134 37
5,711 3.191
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23 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade and finished goods

For the year ended

For the year ended

Maurch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Stock:
Stock-in-trade 1.864 321
Finished goods - -
1,864 521
Closing stock
Stock-in-trade 3339 1.806
Fimished goods - -
3,339 1,806
Nel increase {1,475) (1,285)

24 Cost of raw materinl and components consumed

For the year ended
Muarch 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the vear
Cost of raw material and components consumed

25 Employee benefits expense

407 :
7.036 3,260
7,443 3,260

(1.995) (407)
5,449 2.853

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
Narch 31, 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 36)
Employee stock option scheme (refer note 41)

Gratuity expenses (refer note 36)

Staft welfare expenses

The Cade on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code") relating to emplovee benefits during employment and post employment benefits receiv

04 468 35,040
2631 897
13.091 3832
1.218 68
2489 1,420
115,897 41,257

ed Presidential assent in

September 2020. The Code hus been published in the Gazette of India, However. the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the

final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Group will assess the impact ol the Code
period the Code becomes eflective, Based on a preliminary assessment. the entity believes the impact of the change will not be significant,

26 Finance cosls

when it comes into effect and will record any related impact in the

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest expense on:
-Interest on debts and borrowings 721 124
-lease liability 5372 1,776
-MSME payables 36 -
Interest on delay in deposit of:
Income tax - 122
GST and others | 26
Interest on deferred consideration (refer note 44) Ged 16
Bank fees charges 91 b
6,505 2,072
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27

28

29

30

Depreciation and amortisation expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023

Depreciation on property. plant and equipment {refer note 3a) 12571 ERRE
Amortization of other intangible assets (refzr note 5b) 4,695 306
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets 12,563 4,091
Impairment on goodwill (reter note 5(h)) - 106
Impairment on other intangible assets (refer note 3(c)) - 174
Impairment/write off of intangible assets under development {refer note 5(d)) - 467

29,829 8,259

Net loss on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") (refer note 15(a)) 75.647 6,714
NCI Put / Forward lability (refer note 29) 6.017 5
81,664 6,714

Carrying amount of financial liability and gain/loss on subsequent measurement is set out below:

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

At the beginning of the year (refer note 13(c))

NCI Put/ Forward liability recognised on acquition of subsidiaries (refer note 13(c))

Net loss/(gain) on remeasurement of financial linbility designated at FVTPL (unrealised) (refer note 28)
Write back of Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) liability (refer note 31)

At the end of the year

Other expenses

27.456 B
13,966 27456

6.017 <

(17.235) =
30,205 27,456

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Advertisement and publicity expenses
Power and fuel expenses
Legal and professional charges
Housekeeping charge
Subscription and periodicals
Travelling and accommodation expenses
Rates and taxes
Security expenses
Courier expenses
Communication cost
Office expenses
Lense Expenses
Printing and stationery
Commission expenses
Technology expenses
Packaging materiul cost
Insurance charges
Repairs & maintenance;
Building
Plant and machinery
Others
Payment gateway charges
Payment to auditor
CSR expenditure
Loss on sale of plant. property and equipment (net)
Allowanee for doubtiul receivables
Miscellaneous expenses

19,565 6,710
3,631 761
2,586 1,474
2,867 723
1,679 614
2429 387
1,227 396
1,152 339
1,888 8035

§49 [45
1,495 345
1,243 170

433 -

3594 333

908 412

489 263

46 158
1,368 1,066

119 2

249 30

259 495

201 935

328 140

133 17

479 3

601 288

47,039 16,573




Physicswallah Private Limited

CIN: U80H900UP2020PTC129223

Notes to Colsolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise stated)

30.a

31

32

Payment to auditors:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
As auditors:
Audit lee 188 a5
Out of pocket expenses 13 -
201 95
Exceptional item
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment of Goodwill* 5,442 -
Impairment of ather Intangible assets* 4671 -
Write back of Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) liabilit* {17.235) -
':TIIB} =

*The performance and profitability of iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited was deteriorating with the business significantly underperforming vis-g-vis the business plan
during the vear ended March 31, 2024, Further the business synergies envisaged from the investment could nat be realised despite best efforts of the management,
Cansequently, the Company. subsequent to balance sheet date, entered into a settlement agreement dated July 1, 2024 with the selling shareholders ol iNeuron Intelligence
Private Limited to acquire remaining stake of 67.23% for a revised consideration of INR 9 lacs, Accordingly, the management has impaired the goodwill of INR 3,442 lacs,
other intangible assets of INR 4,671 lacs (net of amortisation), and write back of Non-Controlling Interest (NCI) liability of INR 17,235 lacs, the net effect of INR 7.122 lacs
has been disclosed as an exceptional item during the year ended March 31. 2024,

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the prolit {or the period attributable (o equityholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period. The Company has issued Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS") and employee stock options (ESOPs) that would
convert into equity shares,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit/{loss) attributable to equityholders af the parent (1,04,057) (8,144)
Net profit for calculation of basic EPS () (1,04,057) (8,144)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equitvholders of the parent (1.04,057) (8, 144)
Net profit for calculation of diluted EPS (b) (1,04,0587) (8, 144)
i T . - q For the year ended For the year ended
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing earning per March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Weighted average number of equity shares in culeulating basic EPS (c¢) f3,01,00.013 6,00,00.010
Weighted average number of equity shares in ealeulating diluted EPS (d) 6,00.00.013 6,00,00,010
Basic earnings per share (INR) (a/c) (173) (14)
Diluted earnings per share (INR) (b/d) (173) (14)

As at March 31, 2024 ordinary shares issuable against 169,825 stock options (March 31, 2023 : 22,583), 3,695,623 employee stock options plan (March 31, 2023 :1,132,776)
and 6,666,634 compulsorily convertible preference shares (March 31, 2023 - 2.385.379) were excluded from the diluted weighted average number of ordinary shares
calculation as their effect is anti-dilutive.

Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share;

Weighted average

number of shares
Equity shares of face value of INR | per share:
As at April 01, 2022 6.00,00,000
Changes in equity shares during the year 13
As at March 31, 2023 6,00,00,013
Changes in equity shares during the vear -
6,00,00,013

As at March 31, 2024
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33 Income tnx

A: Major components of income tax {expenses)/income are

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Recognised in profit and loss
Current 1nx

Deferved tax (eredit)charge
Taotal

Recognised in other comprehensive income

Tax impact on

-Re-measurement (loss)/gain on defined benefit plans
Total

- 1.452
(6.156) (1.993)
(6,156) (541)

(94) 12
94 32

B.Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Far the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 2023

Laoss before exceptional items and taxes (1,26,405) (8,948)
Tax using Group's domestic 1ax rale 2517% (31814 25.17% (2.252)
Lffect of exj rer ly disnllowed under the Income Tax Act, 1961
Net loss on remensurement of financial instewments at fair value 20,553 L6990
Impatrment of intangible assets and goadwill - [EL]
CSR expenditure iz s
Interest expense on MSMED pavables 17 -
Amortisation of seperately identified intangilile assets 936 -
Others 931 a1
Taxes on income at different rates/exempt income - (i
Unrecognised timing difference in subsidiaries within (he group 3395 -
Reversal of previously recognised deferred tax assets/liabilities (208) -
Tax exy fleredit) recogmised in st of profic and loss (6,156) (541)
As at Asat As at

C.Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Mareh 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Deferred tax relates to the following:

Deferved tax liabilities
Remeasurement of’ defined benefit linbility {asset)

Delerved tnx related 1o items recapnised in profit and loss:

Deferred tax assets (gross)

Lease liabilities

Fair valuation of financial nssets

Provision for dimunition in inventaries

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences
Fair valuation of financial linhilities

Property, plant and equipment

Deferved tax linbilities (gross)
Right of use assets

Property, plant and equipment
Others

Unabsorbed deprecintion and tax Tosses

Deferred tax assets (net)
Deferred tax liabilities (net)

D.Movement in temporary differences

As at March 31, 2024

(i)

(b)

(e)

{dy

e=pt+htehd

April 01, 2022

93 E ) S

93 32 z

17,879 10,904 E

207 266 :

116 208 -

369 131 .

241 241 6

410 165 s

19,222 12,615 6

(16,817) (10.731) 5

. (208) -

(32) . "

(16,849 (10,939) =
5483 111

5,483 111 -

7,049 2,027 [

- 208 =

Balance us at

Recognised pursunnt to

i PR Recognised in profit or
business combination .

Recognised in OCI Balunce as at

April 01, 2023 (refer note d4(d)) loss during FY 2023-24  during FY 2023-24 Murch 31, 2024
Deferred tax assets (net)
Lense liabilites 10.904 - 6,975 - 17.879
Fair valuation of financial assets 266 - (58) - 207
Provision [or dununition in inventories 208 - (92} - 16
Provision for gratuity and compensated alisences 131 - 425 (24) 462
Fair valuntion of financial liabilines 941 - (704 - 241
Property, plant and equipment 165 - 245 - 410
Unabsorbed depreciation nnd tax losses 1 67 5,305 - 5483
Total 12,726 67 12.099 194) 24,798
Less: Deferred tax linhilities (net)
Right of use assets (10.731) - (6.087) - (16.817)
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 3227 - (64) - (32)
Other (208) - 208 - -
Tutal (0906) - g —=Se, (5.943) : (16,849)

'S
Deferred tax assets (net) 1.820 2.\R6.156 (94) 7.94%
w
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As at March 31, 2023

Recognised pursuant to

Balance ng at h Ll
business combination

Reenpnised in profit or  Recognised in OCI

Balance as at

April 01, 2022 (refer note 44(d)) loss during FY 202223 during FY 2022-23  March 31,2023
Deferred tax assets (net)
Lease labilities - - 14,904 - 10,904
Fair valuation of financial assets - - 2066 . 266
Provision for dimunition in inventories - - 208 - 204
Provision for greatuity and compensated absences - - 131 - 131
Fair valuation of financial liabilities [ - 935 - 941
Property. plant and equipment - - 165 = 165
Unabsorbed deprecintion and ax losses - - 11 - i
Property. plant and equipment - - - - -
Total [ - 12,720 - 12,726
Less: Deferred tax linbilities (net)
Right of use assets - - (10.731) - (10.731)
Property, plant and equipment - (208) . - (208}
Provision for pratuity and compensated absences - - - 32 £
Deferred tax assets (net) [ (208) 1,990 32 1,820

E. Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of caried forward business losses w rt. subsidiaries within the Group, in view of uneertainty regarding future taxable profis,

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
Murch 31,2023

Asat
April 01, 2022

Tax losses earried forward
Gross mmount of tax losses cartied forward 13.199
Utirecognised tox effects 3

( This space has been left intentionally blank)
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34 Segment information
The Group's primary business segment is reflected based on principal business nctivities carried on by the Group. Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) has been identified as the
Chief Operating Decision Makers ('CODM) and evaluates the Group's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of the various performance indicators of the
Company as & single unit. Therefore, there are no separate reportable business segments as per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments. The Group operates in one reportable
business segment i.e. engaged in the business of education by providing online and offline coaching and study materials and is primarily operating in India and hence,
considered as single geographical segment,

35 Related party disclosures

A List of Related Parties
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS -24 'Related Party Disclosures', names of the related parties. nature of related party relationship, transactions and outstanding
balances where contral exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the period are;

Nature of relationship Name of the party

Entities where control exists
Others PW Foundation (w.e.f. February 25, 2022)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Director Alakh Pandey
Director Rajat Pandey
Director Gauray Choudhary
Director Prateek Boob

Relatives of KMP with whom transactions have tuken pace during the year
Relative of KMP Ekta Kabra
Relative of KMP Soenal Mundhra {Finance controller)

Non-controlling shareholder of subsidiary
Others Bhanwari Gehlot

B Disclosure of transactions between the Group and related parties are as under:
Transactions with related parties are made on lerms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's fength transactions. Outstanding balances al the vear end are unsecured and
interest free and settlement oceurs in cash. There have been no uuarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables. for the vear ended March 31,
2024 and year ended March 31, 2023, The Group has not recorded any impairment of reeeivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2022: Nil). This
assessment is undertaken each financial vear through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates. There are no
commitments with related parties.

Natuzeof trdsiatio For the year ended For the yvear ended
e ol fransaction March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Remuneration paid
Alakh Pandey 550 458
Rajat Pandey 3 31
Prateek Boab |80 180
Gaurav Choudhary 28 24
Sonal Mundhra 6l 61
Reimbursement of expenses
Alnkh Pandey 5 10
CSR expenditure
PW Foundation 107 140
Transfer of advertisement income
Alakh Pandey - 163
Sale of immovable property
Bhanwari Gehlot 2,523 -
C  The following table provides the closing balances of related parties for the relevant financial year:
As nt Asat As at
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Equity share capital
Prateek Boob - 9 682
Ekta Kabra - - 682

Other payables
Alakh Pandey = - I

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences has not been considered, since the provisions are based on actuarial valuations for the Group’s entities as a whole,
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36 Employce benefits expense
The disclosures required under IND AS 19 "Emplovee Renefits "as given below;

a, Defined contribution plans:
The group has classified the various benefits provided to employees’ as follows;
Defined Contribution Plans - Provident Fund
Employee State Insurance Plan

Contribution to Defined contribution plans, recognized as expense is as under

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Group's contribution to provident fund and other fund 2,631 897
2,631 897
b. Compensated absences:
The principal assumptions used in determining the compensated absences benefit obligation are as given below
As at Asat

Muarch 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Discounting rate (p.a.)
Future salary increase ( p.a)

7% -7.10%
% - 10.20%

7.25%-735%
8% - 10%

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market vield of Indian government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated terms of the obligation,

¢. Defined benefit plan:
The group operates the following post-employment defined benefit plans:-

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan in India governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, 1t entitles an emplovee who has rendered at least 5 years of continuous
service. to gratuity at the rate of 15 days wages for every completed vear of service or part thereol in excess of 6 months. based on the rate of wages last drawn by the employee

concerned.

The following table sets oul the status of the defined henefit nbligation

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Net defined benefit liability- gratuity 1,141 346
Total employee benefit linbilities 1,141 346
Non current 1,101 326
Current 40 20

(i) Reeanciliation of the net defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening bolances to the closing balanees for the net defined benelit liability and its components

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ented
Muarch 31, 2023

Balance at the beginning of the year 346 57
Benefits paid (26) -

Additions on account of business combination a an
Current service cost 1,118 60
Past service cost - -

Interest cost 100 8
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in other comprehensive income (397) 132
Balance at the end of the year 1141 347

ii) Expense recognised in profil or loss

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 Muarch 31,2023
Current service cost 1118 a0
Inlerest cost 100 8
1,218 68

iii) Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

For the vear ended
March 31, 2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

Actuarial (gain)loss on defined benefit obligation
Actuanal (gmn)/loss on Plan pssets

(397)

132

(397)

132
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i) Actugrial assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date ( expressed as weighted averages):

As at Asat

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial assumptions
Discount rate 7.05% -7, 10% 7.20% - 7.35%
Future salary growth 7% - 10% 10% - 15%
Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) Ut IALM (2012-14) Ul
Reltrement age 58-60 Years 58-60 Years
Withdrawal rate (%) 28%-50% 28%-30%

The principal assumptions are the discount rate & salary growth rate. The discount rate is generally based upon the market vields available on Government bonds, The
estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, taken into account inflation, senionity, promotion and other relevant factors including supply and
demand in the enployment market.

As at March 31, 2024, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 5,74 vear (March 31.2023: 13.47 yedr)

v) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit
obligation by the amounts shown below.

For the year ended March 31, 2024 For the year ended March 31, 2023
Increase Decrense Incrense Decrease
Discount rate (1%} (52) 6l {13) 19
Future salary growth (1%) 54 49) 17 (11}
Altrition rate (40} 44 i 16

Although the analysis does not take into account of the [ull distribution of cash Mows expected under the plan, it does not provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown

vi) Maturity profile
The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits 1o be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service of the emplaoyees as at the

Asat Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
I Year 2 ]
2.5 vears 549 126
6-9 vears 557 186
10 vears and above 301 104

{ This space has been left intentionally blank)
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37 Fair valuation measurement

(i) Fair values hierarchy
Financial assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows. based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 1 whole:

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This includes quoted financial instruments. government securities, borrowings and
mutual funds that have quoted price.

Level 2: [nputs are other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i,e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), This
includes derivanve financial instruments,

Level 3: Inputs are not based on observable market data (unohservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are

neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data. This includes unguoled equity shares,

(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value - recurring fir value measurements

The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of financial assets and [inancial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Carrying value Fair value
Matreh 31,2024 March 31, 2023 April 01,2022 | March 31, 2024| March 31,2023] April 01, 2022

Level

Financial assets

Financinl assets measured at fair value
through profit and loss

Investinents 14,783 20,546 2389 14,783 20,546 2,389 Level |
NCI Put / Forward liability for acquisition of

] = 8O0 5 - 290 - Level 3
non controlling interest

14,783 21.436 2,389 14,783 21,436 2,389

Financial linbilities measured at fair value
through profit and loss

CCPS 161,468 85 822 - 1.61.468 85822 - Level 3
NCI. Pt/ Forwatd liability for acquisition of 30205 28,346 s 30,205 28,346 : Level 3
non controlling interest

[91.673 1,14,168 - 1,91.673 114,168 =

A. Valuation process and technique used to determine fair value

Fair value ) . Significant Iuter-relnl?nnship bel\\'gen
o ) Valuation Technique unobservable  unobservable inputs and fair vale
hierarchy inputs measurement
Finuncial assets measured at fair value
Investment in mutual funds Market valuation technique: Investments traded in active
markets are determined by reference to quotes from the
Investment in exchange traded fund (ETF) Level | financial institutions; for example: Net asset value (NAV) .
; for investiments in mutual funds declared by mual fund Mot Applicable Not Applicable
Investment in equity shares s B 3 B
house, quoted price of equity shares in the stock exchange
elc.
NCI Put/ Forward liability at fair value
Fair value of NCI Put / Forward liability and call option far
Level 3 ncquisiltiun ol'_ rcm'.\ininglshares in sul?sidiaries Ihas heen‘ Appiitcalite Applicable
determined using appropriate methad with the assistance of
valuation expert,
Financial linbilities measured a1 FYTPL
Compulsorily convertible preference shares Fair value of Compulsorily convertible preference shares
Level 3 {"CCPS") has been determined using appropriate method Applicable Applicable

with the assistance of valuation expert

There have been no transfers in either direction for the vears ended March 31, 2024, March 31,2023 and April 01, 2022
The Group’s policy 15 to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period,

B. Significant unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value and sensitivity of the closing values nt March 31, 2024 to such inputs is as below:

Valuation Signifieant

d | 1 Range Sensitivity of the input to Fair vitlue
Technigue unobservable inpuls

Description

Any significant change in the inputs 1o [air value does not result in any

T v L [« L s
Yalatility AtV change in the fair value of the NCI Put / Forward linbility,

Option pricing
made| & Monte
Carlo Simulation

NCI Put / Forward liability [INR 30,205 lacs
(March 31. 2023 : INR 27 456 lacs)]

Any significant change in the inputs to fair value does not result in any

" ate 6.U% - 6,96 : S N S
Growth Rate A2 9026 change in the fair value of the NCI Put / Forward liaility.

Any significant change in the inputs to fair value does notl result in any

o I 0
Discounted WACC 23504 change in the fair value of the Compulsory convertible preference shares.

Compulsory Convertible Praference, Shares

(CCPS) [INR 1.61 468 Jaes(March 3 (/233 [£ash Flow &
I S 822 | KAy \ . |Option pricing - ) . L
INR 85.822 lacs))/ =/ Yoo [model (|Any significant change in the inputs to fair value does not result in any

*lchange in the fair value of the Compulsory convertible preference shares.
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(iii) Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Cirrving value Fair value
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01,2022 | March 31, 2024| March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022 kerdl

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5314 4,903 674 5314 4903 674 NA
Other bank balances 21583 48,078 1471 2583 48.078 3471 NA
Trade receivables 3601 1,311 43 3601 1311 43 NA
Other lnancial assets 15,748 30 951 7457 15,748 39951 7457
Security Deposit 6,906 3,159 229 6,906 3159 229 NA

34,152 97,402 11,874 34,152 97,402 11,874
Financial liabilities
Term loan from bank 7.211 9.755 - 7211 9,755 - NA
Other financial linbilities 8826 4,107 69 8,826 4,107 60 NA
Trade payables 12,350 3,186 19 12,330 5,186 191 NA
Payable (o emplovees 5,009 1,420 36 5,099 1,420 36 NA

33,486 20,468 206 33,486 20,468 296

The Group has disclosed fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost such as cash
value because their corrving amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value

The Group has disclosed fair value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost such as term loan from bank, trade payables,
carrying value becouse their carrving amounts are a rensonable approximation of fair value,

and cash equivalents. bank deposits, trade receivables, security deposits same as carrying

security deposits and other (inancial liabilities same as

38 Financial risk management objectives and palicies
The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Group's operations. The Group's principal financial assets include louns, trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, unbilled receivables and other financial assets that is
derived directly from its aperations,
The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks, The Group's senior management reviews the
Iinancial risks and the appropriate financal risk governance framework for the Group. The Group financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that
financial risks are identified. measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives.

38,1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices — will affect the Group's income or the value of its holdmgs of

finaneial instruments. Market risk is atributable 1o all market risk sensitive
comprises of three types of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and equnty price risk.

a) Interest rate risk

financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and payebles and long term debt. Market risk

Interest rate risk 15 the risk that the fair value of [uture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

(i} Assets

The Group's fixed deposits are carried at smortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind As 107, since either the carrying

amount nor the future cash Mows will Muctuate because of change in market interest tates,

(ii) Liabilities

The Group is not exposed 10 inlerest rate risk from the external borrowings that are used to finance their operations as the entire borrowings of the Group is at a fixed interest rate.

b) Foreign currency risk

Foreign Currency risk is the risk that the fuir value or future cash Mows of an exposure will fluctuate becuuse of changes in foreign exchange rates, The Group's unhedged foreign

currency tisk exposure in USD at the end of reporting period :

As at
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2024

As at
April 01, 2022

Amount in INR

Amount i YR Amount in USD

Amount in USD

Amountin usp “mountin INR

lacs lacs lnes
Trade Pavables 61297 51 39,403 32 - -
Trade Receivables 50,023 42 51412 42 - %
Advances to Foreign vendors 352 - 1,062 | - -

¢} Price Risk

The Group's exposure 10 securities price risk arises [fom investments held in mutual funds and equity instruments, classified in the balance sheet al fair value through profit or loss, To
manage its price risk arising {rom such investments, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Quoted (NAV) of these investments are available from the mutual fund houses and quoted price

of equity shares in the stock exchange.
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38.2 Credit risk
Credit risk 15 the risk that counterpany will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed Lo credit risk
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and [rom its other activities incl uding derivative contracts. The Group generally deals with parties which has good credit rating/
worthiness or based on Group internul assessment. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrving amount of following types of financial assets,
- Cash and cash equivalents,
- trade recejvables,
- Investments,
- loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, and
- deposits with banks

a) Credit risk management

The Group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal assessment. continuously monitoring defaults of customer and other counterparties, identified either individually or by
the Group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Internal credit assessment is performed for each class of financial instruments with different charactetistics, The
maximum exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date was:

As at As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023 April 01, 2022
Loans 218 83 B3
Invesiments 17,273 20 546 2.389
Cash and cash equivalents 5314 4,803 673
Other bank balances 2,583 48,078 3471
Trade receivables 3601 130 43
Security Deposit 6,906 3,159 229
Other Financial Assets 15,748 4 935 7457
Total 51,643 1,18,031 14,348

(1) Loans include loans given lo group companies or subsidiaries and management does not foresee any default in repavment of loans.
(i1) Credut risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversilying bank deposits and accounts in different banks.

(1ii} The Group closely monitors the credit-worthiness of debtors through internal systems that are designed to assess the credit limits of customers, thereby. limiting the credit risk. The
Group assesses (nerease in credit risk on an ongoing basis for amounts receivable that become past due,

(v} Other linancial assets measured at amortised cost mainly include loans and advances to employees, security deposits and others where the credit risk is envisaged to be minimal and
recoverability of such amounts is monitored at regular intervals. The Group has not acquired any credit impaired asset. There was no modification in any financial assets,

(v} Investments of funds are made only with approved counterparties . Investments are reviewed by the Group's treasury department on a periodic basis and the same is also monitored
by the board of directors.

b) Expected credit losses

The Group has used the expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gam on trade receivables and unbilled revenue, and has provided it wherever appropriate.

( This space has been lefl intentionally blank)
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38.3 Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sulticient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate amount committed eredit
due. Due to nature of the business, the Group maintains Nexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed facilitie
Group's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows, In addition, the
considering the level of liquid assets necessany (0 meel these. monitoring balance sheet liguidity

financial plans.

a) Financing arrangements

The Group had access o the follewing undrawn borrowing facilities at the end ol the reporting period:

ratios against internal and e

facilities to meet obligations when

s. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Group's liquidity management involves projecting cash flows and
sternal regulatory requirements and maintaining debt

As al

As at

March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Asal
April 01, 2022

Expiring within one vear (cash credit and other facilities)
Expiring bevond one year (bank loans)

The bank overdralt facilities may be drawn at any time and may be

b) Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below analyse the Group's financial liabililies into releva

terminated by the bank withowt notice.

significant,

5425

1,500

ni maturity based on their contractual maturities for al| non-derivative [inancial labilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrvin

& balances as the impact of discounting is not

As at March 31, 2024 Carpying less than [ year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years
amount
Lease linbility 77,394 11416 12,701 32365 20913
Trade payables 12,350 12,350 - - -
Borrowings* 1.68,740 3,857 3377 37 161,468
Other linancial linbilities 8.826 9.118 125 - 1
NCT Put / Forward liability 30,205 3,150 1 1.862 13.193 -
197,515 41,891 28,065 45,595 1,82,493
Carrying " : i ’
As at March 31, 2023 I less than | year 1-2 vears 2-5 years More than 5 years
Lease liability 47206 6,364 7.985 18.829 14,027
Trade payables 186 5,186 - - =
Borrowings* 95,615 305 2,800 3,788 B5.822
Other financial liabilities 4,107 3807 194 - 105
NCI Put/ Forward liability 28,346 - 26,519 1,827 -
1,80,460 18.473 37,589 24.444 99,954
As at April 01,2022 (i'l’:;‘::'tg less than 1 year -2 yeirs 2-5 years More than 5 vears
Lease liability 31,763 367 662 2,087 447
Trade pavables 191 191 - - -
3,954 758 662 2,087 447

* Refer note 15(a)(b) for details,

{ This space has been left intentionally blank)
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39

40

Capital management

The Group maintains a strong capital base so as to maintain investor. creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The
Board of Directors monitor the return on capilal employed as well as the level of dividend to shareholders.

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and other equity (refer note 10) attributable to the equity holders, The
primary objective of the Group's capital management is Lo maximise the shareholder value.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Group includes within net debt, interest bearing
loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents,

As at As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022
Borrowings 1.68,740 95,6135 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 5314 4.903 -
Net debts 1,63,426 90,712 -
Total Equity (1,24,660) (18,263) -
Total Capital and Net Debt 38,765 72,449 NA
Gearing ratio (%) 422% 125% NA

No changes were made in the obfectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 31, 2024, March 31, 2023 and April 01,
2022,

Details of dues to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

The Ministry of Micro. Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 28§ August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers, the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum
in accordance with the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (*the Act’), Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts
payable to such enterprises as a1 March 31, 2018 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Group,
Further. in view of the Management, the impact of interest. il any, that may he payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be
malerial. The Group has not received any claim lor interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date,

As at As at As at
March 31,2024  March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (lo be shown separately) remaining 3,750 1,833 6
unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting vear;
Principal amount due (o micro and small enterprises 3,680 1,735 19
Interest due on the above 69 13 -

Note: The principal amount due to micro and small enterprises includes trade payables &
payable in respect ol capital gonds to micro and small enterprises.

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro. Small and - - -
Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006, along with the amount of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting vear,

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) bul without adding the
interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year: 69 13 -
and

(e) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, - - =
until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the
purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
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41 Employee Stock Option Plan

The parent company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended March 31, 2024, an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence, The relevant
details of the scheme and the grant are as below:

Employee Share Option Plan 2022
The Group provides share-bnsed payment schemes to its employees. The relevant details ol the scheme and the grant are as below,

O Augusr 30, 2022, the board of divectors approved the equity settled "Employees Stock Oprion Plan 2022 for issue of stock aptions te various employees ol the Group. According to the
scheme, the employees will be entitled to options, subject to their continued employument with the Group, The other relevant terms of the grant are ns below:

Class of Share Equuy Shares
Vesting Pattern Four-year vesting term and vest al the rate of 25% in the first yoar and 6.25% each quarter from the first quarter of the
second year and become fully exercisable, subject to employvee being in the employment of the Group,

Three-year vestnig term and vest at the rare of 33% in the first vear and 8.3% each quarter from the first quarter of the
secomd year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Group.

Three and Half year vesting term and vest at the tate of 25% in the first year and 7.5% each quarter from the first
quarter of the second year and | fully exercisable, subject to employee being in the employment of the Group.

Twao year vesting tenmn and vest at the rate of 30% in the first year and 12.5% each quaiter from the first quarter of the
second year and become fully exercisable. subject to eimployee being in the employment of the Group,

Trwo and Hall year vesting term and vest at the rate of 40% in the first year and 10% each quarter from the first quirter
ol the second year and become fully exercisable, subject to employee being i the emplovment of the Growp.

One yenr vesting term and vest at the tate of 100% in the first year and become tully exercisable, subject to employee
Deing in the employment of e Group

Conversion ratin 10:1 (e 10 Options will convert into | Equity Share)

Vesting condition Optinns Granted under the ESOP Plan shall not vest until the expiry of | (one) vear from the Grant Date of such
Options. Unless otherwise decided by the Administrator (which shall not be detrimental to the interest of the Option
Grantee) or specified in the Grant Letter.

Notwithstanding anything 1o the comrry (i) the ESOP Plan shall be administered by the Board. or any person, duly
authorised by the Board, ench being referred to as (the “Administrator™), including in relation to issuing Shares or
otherwise making allocations and grants to any Employee (on such terms and conditions as imposed hy the
Administrator). and (ii) any delegation of pawer and/or autharity by the Administrator shall always remain subject to
the Board's power to amend. suspend, limit or revoke such powet and/ or authority.

Exercise perind 4 years
Exurcise Price INR 1

The Number of Share Options inder the share option plu are as follows

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Weighted
Number of Options “"eig.hlml AXEEREC E!il.!l‘i:ist' Number of Options Aw:-rugu Eadrelsn
price per share option price per share
aption

Opti ling at beginning of period 3,34.95.282 | - -
Adil: Options Granted 83,94.390 | 33524912 |
Less: Options Exercised - - - -
Less: Settled in cash* (3.61.565) |
Less: Lapsed duting tle year (35.79.396) | (29,630) |
Oyptions outstanding at the end of perind 3,79,48.711 I 3,34.95,282 1

*The parent company, during Apnl 2023, 1ssued letters 10 certain employees, which entitled them to encash their vested aptions 361,365 at INR 337.50 per option, and setiled these at a
consideration of INR 1250 lakhs, Subsequent to year end, the Compuny settled 1,140,016 stock options in cash at INR 225 per option for o consideration of INR 2.570 lakhs. The incremental
cost in tespect of hoth these cosh setilements hns been aceounted lor as ESOP cost in the Fnaneial vear ended March 31, 2024 nmounting to INR 230 lakhs and INR 730 Takhs. respectively, As
parent company will not settle any stock options in cash in the future, it has contimed (o account for the omstanding options as equity setlled aptions,

Range of weighted average remaining contractunl life, weighted average fir value and weighted avernge share price for the options are as follow

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Remaining conwactual life for the opions outstanding as of ( Years) 0.8 1.5
Fair value for the options granted during the yenr ended (INR) 1299 / 1867 620 / 640}
Share price for the options exeraised during the vear ended (INR) M. N.A
The fair value of options is measured using Black-Scholes valuation model, The key inputs used in the measurement of the
grant date fiir val of equity settled plans is given in the table below:
As at As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rask free interest rares 6.96% 6.30%
Expected life
Volatility < M 48.00% 56.50%
Exercise price (INR) Ve L.oo 1.00
Share price on the date of grant (INR) 1299 / 1867 620/ 640
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Commitments and contingencies:-

Capital Commitments:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

(1) Agreed amount against property, plant and equipment & other intangibles assets not procurred as

3,508 - -
at year end

3,508 - -

Event occurred after the Balance Sheet date

The Group evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the Balance sheet date but prior to the approval of the financial statements to determine
the necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in financial statements for the current tinancial year ended March 3,
2024. The parent company has entered into an amended Shareholders A greement dated July 01, 2024 10 acquire balance stake in Ineuron Intelligence Private
Limited at a revised consideration of INR 9 lacs. The timpact of reduction in financial liability has been recognised in the financial statements as exceptional
item under note 31 as been an adjusting event as per the Ind AS.

Also. the parent company & its founders have entered into Share Purchase Agreement with GSV Ventures Funds 111 LP on March 27, 2024 wr1 intent to sell
some equity shares in the future period. However, no shares have been sold subsequent to balance sheet date

( This space has been left intentionally blank)
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44 Granp mformation

{0} The consolidated financial information of the Gronp include subsidiaries listed in o table below:

Nume of the Group er:nn_:ual;l.p w Principal activities Country of incorporation Proportion of awversbip Interest (%)
Holiling Group : As ot March 31,2024 | As at March 31, 2023

Utkarsh Classes & Edujech Private Limited Suhsuliry Education services and stidy material India 51% 51%
Preponline Futarist Private Limited Subsidiary Eduscation services and study material India 1% L 0%y
Penpencil Edu Services Prvate Limited Subsidiary Edueation services and study material Lndlia 100%% 1002y
iNewron Intelligence Private Limited Subsidiary Educannn services and sty | Tndin 33% 334
Nylem Learning Private Limited Subsidiry Education services and study materal India 6% 60
Knowledge Planet Holdings Linyted Subsidury Education services and studly materal LIAE 100% 100%

{11 Subsidinries with material non-contralling interests:

Financial information of subsidiaries that have matenal nen-controlling interests 15 provided belaw

Proportion of equity interest held hy non-controlling interests

Name ConnteySEWRITRRCatn. | oo MaNNIEA0H | A¥ LN a1, 2023
and operation
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited India 6,169 8,127
Preponline Futurist Private Limited India 269 168
iMeron Intellipence Prvate Limited India 371 4,752
Svlem Learning Private Limited Indin 410 -
Tatal 7,425 13,247
Profit/{loss) allocated to material non-controlling interest: As ot March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited (1,958) -
Preponline Futdrist Private Limited 9%} =
iMeuran Intelligence Private Limited (4. 181) (263)
Nvlem Leamning Private Limited (2,821) -
Total (9.059) (263)
These amounts meludes impact of adjustnents m eansolidated Gnancil statements with tespect to the allocation to NC, e, fair value of intangibles, W, impal elo.
The summansed financial information of these subsidianes is provaded below This information s hased on amounts before inter-Group el iens and consalidati i] as included in the whle ab

(i) Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited;

Summarised balanee sheet

Utlarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited

Asat March 31, 2024 As ot March 31, 2023

Mon current assets 9.791 o, 108
Current assets 5,298 4,560
Non-current Habilities 1587 2560
Current linhilities 6,010 2,996
Total Assets 14,706 19,231
The abave amounis of assets and lishilities include the fallowing

Cash and cash equivalents anz 1,054
Current financial labilies (excluding trade payables and provisions) 1,684 885
Mon enrrent tinancial lishilites {excluding tmde payahles and provisions) 1,404 2,288
Totil Linhilities 5,690 4,227
Attributable to:

Equity holders of parent 12,847 0877
Non-controlling interest 6,169 8127

Summarised sta

of profit and Joss

Utknrsh Closses &

Edutech Private Limited

As al March 31, 2024
Revenue 14,607
Profit for the year (2,759)
Other comprehensive Qosst/ jncome for the year 52
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,707)
The shove profit for the vear include the following
Diepreciation and amortisation 2,462
Interest inconie 152
Interest expense 400
Income tax expense (N
Atteibutable to:
Equity bolders of parent (1381
Non-controlling interest (1,327

Summarised sintement of cash Mows

Utharsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited

As at March 31, 2024 As ol Mareh 31, 2023
Cash Nows fom aperating activities 1,853 380l
Casgh Nows (used in} / from investing activities (L214Yy [1,603)
Cash (used in) from i ¢ activities (| BB {2,064}
Net increase/{decrense) in cash amd ensh equivalents {450 119

(i} Preponline Futurist Private Limited:

Summunrised balance sheet

Preponline Futurist Private Limited

As at March 31, 2024 As ol March 31, 2023
Mon current assels 12 |
Current nsses 158 127
Non-current Habilities | -
Current linbilities 251 252
Total Assets P 422 396
The above amounts of assets and labillties include the fellowng - X
Cash and eash equivalents o 42 7
Current financial liabilives (excluding wade payables and provisions) 19 il
Total linbilities 81 Gl
Atiributable 1o:
Equuty halders of parent 14 34
Mon-controlling mterest in? 2
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Summarised statement of prol 1 loss

Preponline rist
Private Limited

As ut March 31, 2024
Revenue 457
Brafit fur the vear 5
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the vear (1}
Total comprehensive incowme for the vear 14
The above profit for the vear include the following
Depreciation and amortisetion 6
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent 3
Mon-controlling interest 22

Summarised statement of eash Mows

Preponline Futurist Private Limited

As ot March 31, 2024 As ot March 31, 2023
Cash Nows from aperating sctivities 49 3
Cash flows (used inl / from investing activities k| 117
Cash (used in) from finaneing activities - {21)
Net increase/{ilecrense) in cash and cash equivalents 52 (16)

(iii) iNeuran Intelligence Private Limited:

Summurised balnnce sheel

iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited

As al March 31, 2024 As at Murch 31, 2023
Mon current assels 1,054 1,990
Current assets 128 623
Nan-current lablities 136 6al
Current labilines 811 1,357
Total Assets 151 4,631
The above amounts of assets and liabihes melude the following
Cash and cash equivalents M 179
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade pavables and provisions ) 152 150
Non ewrrent financal lighilities {excluding trade pavables and provisions | 129 471
Total linhilities 315 00
Attributable to:
Equity halders of parent i) 1,252
Non-controlling interest 1.236 2579
Summarised statement of profit nnd loss

iNenvon Intelligence Privite Limited

As ot March 31, 2024 Asul March 31, 2023
Revenus 1,098 193
Prafit for the year (189 1390)
Other camprehensive (loss) / income for the vear 5 &
Tatnl comprehensive income for the year {384) (390)
The above profit for the yenr include the fallowing
Depreciation and amortisation M7 104
Interest ncome 14
Interest expense il 14
lheome tax expense 12
Attributable to:
Equity holders af parem (126} (128)
Nuon-controlling interest (259) [263)

Summirised stitenient of cush flows

iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited

As at Murch 31, 2024 As al March 31, 2023
Cash fows from operating nctivities {621 (1270}
Cash flaws {used in) / from investing aclivities 259 {1485
Cash {used in) from ﬁunn:mg achivities (342) 1,598
Nel increase/(decrense) in cash und cash equivalents {145) (1,157)

(iv} Xylem Learning Private Limited:

Summurised balance sheet

Xylem Learning Private
Limited

As at March 31, 2024
Nen current assels 6,140
Cugent assels 4,126
Non-current liahilities B, 585
Current habilites 7371
Total Assets 26,211
The above amounts of assets and labilines melude the lollowing
Cash and cash equivilents 1,140
Current financial linhilities {excluding trade payables and provisions) 1,160
Non current financial linbilities (excluding trade pavables and pravisions) 8,365
Totul linbilities 11,865
Attributable to:
Equity halders of parent 9,269
Mon-controlling interest 6,087
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Summarised stutement of profit and loss
Nylem Lenrning Private

Limited

As at March 31, 2024
Revenue 201,240
Profit for the year (6,221)
Other comprehensive {loss) / income for the vear 7
Total comprehensive income for the year {6,214)
The above profit for the yenr melude the following
Depreciation and amortisation 1,446
Interest income 10
Interest expense 232
Income tnx expense -
Attributable to:
Equity holders of parent (3,758}
Nan-controlling interest {2,463

(U} Business Combination
#, The Holding company has entered into certain business purchase sgreement (ie Slump sale}, details of which are as under:

(i) ONLYIAS Nothing Else Acquisition

The parent eampany had entered into Business purchase agreement with sl proprietor of ONLYIAS on December 31, 2022 1o nequive s coaching ¢lnss busi which consti a busi for 3 fair
value of cash consideration of INR 1,200 00 laes, fair value of deferred consideration of INR 256 20 [nes and fair value of share options amounting ta INR 2,444 44 lacs, The Groupy has accounted for the
business combination under the purchase method and recognized assets and lishilities acquired at fair value The excess of purchase consideration paid by the Group over the aggregate value of the net

assets acquired has beon trented as poodwill, to be amortized aver a period of 5 years from the date of b binatians
The fallowing table presents the puschase deration, fair value of asset acquired and goodwill recopnised on the date of acquisition (e Janwary 11, 2023)

Life Amount ai fair value
Assely
Brand 10 years |, 08D
Content 3 years 390
Propenty, Plant and Equig 3 yuars 0
Total A L300
Tatal net assets ad fair value 1,500
Calenlation of goodwill
Purck [ I m transferred 3,900
Less  Total net identified assets at fair vadue 1,500
Goodwill/{Capital reserve) 2,400
Purclase considerntion Ammml|
Cash consideranon |, 200
Deterred consideration® 256
Equity options 2444
Tatal purchase consideration 3.000

“During the year, the parent company has paid the deferred consideration amounting INR 100 00 laes including interest amount of INR 9 09 [ncs

ii) Top Tak Edueation Acquisition

The parent company had entered into Business purchase agreement of sole praprietor of TopTak on January 01, 2023 to acquire its coaching vlass busi which c n busi for a consideration of
TNR 30000 facs The Holding company has secoumed for the amalgamation under the purchase method and recognized assets and liabilites scquired at fair value The excess of purchase consideralion
paid by the company over the agpregate value of the net assets acquired has been trented as goodwill, to be nmortized over g period of § vears from the date of busi camt nfacquisiti
The following thle | the purchnse deration, far value of asset acquired and poodwill recognised on the date of acquisition (i e January 01, 2023)

Life Amount at fair value
Assets
Brand 10 years 178
Prapeny, Plant and Equipment 1 vears Il
Total A 189
Total net assets at fnir value 189
Caleulation of goodwill
Purchase consideration transfered 300
Less Total netidentified assets at fair vilue 189
Gnndwlll.’l(‘nuiml reserve) (NN
Purchase consideration
Cash consideration
Total purchase consideration

The pareni company had entered into & separation ngreement 1o terminate the smd ac I ant resultantly imy

recognised in the previous fnancial year
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b Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited bad entered into certain husiness purchase agreement (ice shuinp sale), details of which are as under:

(i) Bothen Classes Acquisition

The Group had entered into Business furchase agreement with Mr Rakesh Mangital Bothra HUF, of Coaching Classes Business an October |7, 2022 10 acquire its coaching class business under the brand
mme Bothra Classes which e al s for a ideration of Rs 210 00 lakhis The Group has accounted for the busi combination/acy under the purchnse method and recognized
assets and lisbalities aequired at fair value. The excess of purchase vonsideration paid by the group over the apurepnte value of the net assets acquired has been reated as goodwill, 10 be umortized aver &
period of § years from the date of busi bination/ isiion

The following table presents the purchase ¢ leration, fair value of asset acquired and yoodwill ¢ ised

Life Amount at fair value
Assets
Customer relationships 2 vears 158
Content 3 vears s
Trudemark 3 vears ta|
Fixed assels 1103 years 81
Tatal A 658
Totul net assets al Fair value 655
Calealation of gomlwill
Purchase consideration transferred 2,100
Less Total net identified pssets ot fair value 658
Gondwill {Capital reserve) [IKEH
Purchase consideration Amuount
Cash eonsiderntion 2,100]
Totnl purchase consideration 2,100/
{ii) ETOOS Education Private Limited Acquisition
The Group had entered into Business purchase apreement with ETOOS Education Private Limited. a private company on December 02, 2022 to aequire its hing cluss busi for competitive ent
exams of T-IEE and NEET under the brand name of ETOOS India whicl e al for a consideration of Rs 450 Iakhs. The group has accounted lor the amalgamation under the purchase

method and recognized assets and linhilities acquired al fur value The excess of purchase consideralion paid by the group over the agpregate value af the net assets acquired has been treated as goodwill, ta
he amortized over a period of $ years from the date of t hinationg i

Life Amount at fair value
Assels
Conent 2 years in2
Fixed assels 1 years 22
Total A 3
Total net assets at fair value 24
Caleulation of goodwill
Purchase consideration tmnsterred 450
Less Total net identified assels at fair value 324
Gnmlwilla’tCm al reserve) 126
Purchise considerition
Cash consideration
Tatal purchase cansideration

(C} The Halding company has entered into certain share prchase sgreement, details of which ure as under:

i) Preponline Futurist Private Limited

A, Summary of acquisition

The Holding company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Preponline Futunist Private Limited, an hareh 17, 2023 1o acquire 10% stake in its coaching husiness which constitutes live and
recorded classes for competitive exams alongwith publishing amd selling of literary wurks and course materls for 2 fir value of cash consideration of INR 400.00 kses Further, s pant af the Share purchase
agreement, the remaining sharehalders possess swap option that allows exchanpe of their shares at 1 predetermined ratio of 1] 921 @ anytime after the closing date

The purchase consideration and fair values of the identifiable assets and linbilites of Preponline Futurist Private Limited ns a1 the date of acg Were
Amount
Purchase cansideration 400
Purchase consideration (A) 400
The assets and linbilities recognised ns u result of the acquisition are os follows:
Non-current nssels
Property, plant and equipment 14
Other intanuible assets 2
Inventaries 38
Financinl assets [
Other current nssets G
Tatnl Assets (B) 44
Non-current linbilities
Financial linhilities 174
Oither current labilines 78
Total Linbilities (C) Jrived
Separately identifiable intangible nssets recognised
Brand 45
Content Ehd |
Distribution network 126
Nan-compete fees 4
Total sepacately identifinhle intangible assets (1) 517
Indetilinble net assets (E = B+C+D) 409
Non-conirolling interest measured at proportienate share in identifinble net assets (F) ’ - 308
Gondwill® (A+F-D) o o kL]
AT~ 2 TS
*Goodwill here represents residual nsset value ateributable (o onidentified i ible nssets ncquiced hy the acquirer. Goodwill will not be deductible for tax pur, t@?- “1106
- !, i ug,(f ‘).) T_
NV *L.L\.ouu 6\*
5 Suryge?
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B. Consideration iransferred

Purchnse consideration

Amount

Cash considerntian

Total purchnse considerution

400

400

C. Mensurement of Diir value of identifinhle net pssets

The valuation model for fair valuation of property, plant and equipment considers quoted market prices for simalar items when avail
replacement cost reflects adjustments for physical deterioration as well a5 functionnl and economic ohsolescence. Intan
period excess enmnings method considers total expected income streams for 1 busi and d

These contributory charges are a fair estimation af rates of return a comprny's assets are

D Revenue and profit contribution

The acquired b L

(i) Knowledge Planel Holding Limited

A Summury of acquisition

The Holiding company had entered into Share purchase agreement with Knowledue Planet Holding Limited, on December 2§, 2022
services 1o students which c a husi for a fur value of cash consideration of INR 1,786 44 laes and Fiir value of deferred ¢
accounted for the share acquisition and recognized assets and Habilives acuired al o value

ahle, and depreciated replacement cost when appropnate Deprecinted

{revenue of INR 457 lqes (March 31, 2023 INR NIL ) and profit INR 25 laes 10 the Group for the period March 31, 2024 (March 31, 20230 INR NIL).

The purchase consideration and fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilitics of Knowledge Planet Holding Limited as at the date of acquisition were:

gible assets are fair valued based on the multi-period excess earmings method  hulti-
v charges for all ather assets used 1o generate income with the intapgsble asser under review,
te 1o ther relative nsks.

1o acquire 100% stake in its husiness of providing test preparmtion
onsideration amounting to INK 285 Jacs The Holding company has

Amouni

Purchase consideration 2,071
Purchase consideration (A) 2,071
The assets and linbilities recognised a5 a result of the nequisition are a5 follaws:

Non-current assels

Praperty, plant and equipment 12
Right-af-use pssets 448
Current nssets

Financial nssets 183
Other current assels 201
Tutnl Assets (B) | 050
Non-current linbilities

Financial Habilities 245
Current lighilities

Financial liabilities 304
Other current liabilities Shd
Total Liabilities (C) L
Separately identifiable intangible nssets recognised

Trademark TR3
Assembled workforce 137
Total separately identifinble intangible assets (D) 920
Indetilfinble net assets (E = B+C+D) 859
Nan-controlling interest mensured nt proportionate share in identilfinble nel assets (F) =
Goodwill {A+F-1) 1.212
B. Consideration transferred

Purchase consideration Amount
Cash consideration |, 786
Frr value of deferred consideratian 235
Total purchase consuleration 24171

C, Measurement of fair value of identifinhle net nssets

The valuation mode! for fair valuation of property, plant and equipment considers
replacement cost reflects adjustments for physicsl deterioration as well as

D. Revenue and prafit contrilintivn

The acquired business contributed revenue of INR 2185 Iaes (March 11, 2023 INR NIL) and loss of INR 2426 lacs 1o the Group for the period Narch 31, 2024 (Mareh 31, 2023 INR NIL)

quoted market prices for similar items when pvailable, and depreciated replacement cost when appropriate Depreciatud
functional and economic obsolescence Intangible assets are fair valued based on the multi-percd excess earmings method Mult-
penod excess earnings method considers toml expected income streams for a husiness and deducts contributory charges for all other assets used to generate

income with the mtangible asset under review,
These contributory charges are a fair esumation of rates of return a company's assets are expected 10 eam commensurale (o their relative risks.
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(it} Uikarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited

v of nenuisition

mg‘cn:npa“ny had entered into Share purchase agreement with Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited. on February 18, 2022 1o scquite $1% stake in its conching clisses business which
cansti l of providing coaching for petitive exams having swong digitial presence for @ faic value of cash consideration of INR 24,000 lacs and far value of share options amounting to INR
S19Iaes Further, As part of the Share purchase agreement, the group bas entered into a forwind ¢ontract to acquire the remaining shares over 3 period of 4 yenrs, consideration of swhich would be based an
the performance (profit after tax) of Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private L| d

The purchase consideration and fair values of the identifisble assers and liabilities of Ukarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited as at the date of acquisition were

- Amonnt
Purchase considerntion 24319
Purchage congideration (A) 24,510
The assets and liahilities recognised as a resnlt of he acquisition sre s follows:
Non-current nssels
Propenty, plant and equipment 5,368
Other intangible assets 32
Right-of-use nssets 2,746
Finaneinl assets 156
MNon-current (nx assel (pet) 183
Current assels
Financial assets 4,346
Dther current assets LED]
Tutal Assets (B) 13,675
Nai-current linbilities
Finaneial lisbilities 2,288
Provisions [
Current labiliti
Financial liabilines 1,644
Provisions 14
Cither current linhihities 1,320
Deferred fax labilities (net) 208
Total Liabilities (C) 5,567
Separately identifiable intungible assets recogmised
Brand 6,139
Content 1.741
Soltware S84
Total separately identifisble intangible assets (D) 8,468
Lndetifinble net assets (E = B+C+ D) 16,576
Naon-controlling interest (F) 8,127
Goodwill (A+F-D) 16,070
B. Considerution transferred
Purelse consideration Amduni,
Cish consideration 24,000
Eair value of share options 519
Total purchise considerntion 24,519

C. Measurement of fair vilue of identifiahle net assets

The valuation model for fur valuation of praperty, plant and equipment considers quoted market prces for similar ftlems when nvniluble, and depreciated replacement cost when appropnate. Deprecinted
replicement cost reflécts adiustments For physical deteriomtion as well 55 functional and ec ahsal e Imangible assels are fair valued based on the multi-pedod excess earmings method, Multi-
petiod excess enrnings method considers tatal expected income strenms for @ business and deducts cantribmtory charges for all other assets used o genernte income with the intangible asset under review
These conwribitory charges are o falr estination of rates of reteen 1 company’s assets are expected to earn communsurate to their relative risks

D. Revenue and profit contribution
The sequired business contributed revenue of INR 14,571 laes (March 31, 2023 INR NILY and |oss of INR 2,707 Ines to the Group for the penoid March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023 INR MIL Y.

(iv) iNeuron Intelhigence Private Limited

A Swmmary of pequisition

The Holding company had eptered into Share purchase agreement with iNetron Intelligence Private Limited, on December 23, 2022 1o actuire 312 68% stnke in jig hing ¢lasses busi to stud
which canstitutes s business of providing online upskilling classes through their website and mobile channels for a fair value af cash eansideration of INR 7,054 lacs and fair value of defirted considerntion
amounting to INR 364 |nes Further, ps part of the Share purchise agreement, the remaining sharehellers passess swap aption that allows exchange of their shares at & predetermined ratio of 4 98 | at
anytime after the closing date

The purehse consideration wnd farr values of the identilliable assets and labilities of iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited as at the date of acquisition were

Amaount
Purchase consideration 7417
Purclinse cansideration {A) 7417
The assets and linbilities recognised as a resnlt of the nequisition are s follows:
Property, plant and equipment 40
Other intangible assets slo
Gondwill 441
Other Met Assels and Liabilities (322)
Total Net Assets (C) 271
Separately identifinble intangible assets recognised
Brand 4,098
Content 1,569
Soltware 386
Non compete 406
Totul separately identifiable intungible nssets (D) 6,462
Indetifinble net assets (E = B+C+D) 7,433
Non-controlling interest measured at proportionate share in identifinhle nel assels (F) 5015
Goodwill® (A+F-1) 4,999

Refer note 31 for details on impairment
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Notes to Colsolitdated Finpneinl § Tor the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounis are in INR Incs, unless otherwise stated)

B. Considerntion 1rinsferred

Purchase considerition Amount,
Cash consideration 7.054
Fair value of deferred consideration® 64
Totul purchise considerntion 7417

*The patent company has paid the deferred consideration of amaunt INR 400 00 Jacs including interest amount of INR 36.00 |nes during the year

C., Measurement of fir value of identifiable net assets

The valustion model for far valuation of propeny, plant and equipment consitders quoted market prices for sunilar items when lable, and de I repl cost when appropriate. Deprectated
nl cost reflects adj tor physical dewriomuon as well as funcional and sconomie ohsplescence Intangible assets are far valied hased on the multi-period excess eamings method Muli-

perind excess earmings method considers 101l expected meoine streams for a husiness and deducts contribiitony charges for all ather assets used 1o generate income with the intangible asset under review

These cantributory eharges are a fair estimation of rates of retum a COMPANY s assels are expected o earn commensurate te their relative nsks

D, Revenue and profit contribution
The aequired | [ t | revenne of INRUEO98 [aes (Marel 31, 2023 INR 1193 Laes) and loss of INR 384 lacs to the Group for the period March 31, 2024 (March ¥, 2023 INR 390 lnes)

{v) Xylem Learning Privite Limited

AL Summinry of nequisition i
During the year, the parent company has acquired 60 33% of equity shares of Nylem Learning Private Limied (Xylem an Jine 16, 2023, al & cash consuderatian of INR 6,851 lacs and non compete fees of

INR 500 lacs 10 founders of Nylem  Nylem s engaged in the business of providing elassroom and online lenrning programs aimed at students between classes 8-12 for preparation of NEET and JEE
entrance exanunations to medical and eng ing undergrad tuad Further, as part of the share purchase agreement, the parent company has an obligaton to acquire the remaining stake based on the
nehievement of performance parameters as defined in the agreement Accordingly, the said obligation is recognised s 4 NCT Put linbality in the consalidated fi ial st The purchase cansideration
15 as follows

The purchuse consideration and fair values of the Wentifinble assets and habilit of Nvlem ag ar the date of acquisition were

Amonnt
Purchase consideration 7351
Purchase consideration (A) 7,351
The assets and liabilitics recognised as a result of he acquisition are as follows:
Propenty, plant and equipment 1,601
Other Net Assers 1,157}
Total Net Assets (C) 444
Separately identifiable intangible nssets recognised
Brand 5,690
Content 1,210
Non-compete 240
Total separately identifliable intangible nssets (D) 7.740
Indetifiibile net assets (E= B+C+0) 8,184
Non-controlling interest measured at proportionnte share in tdentifinhle nel assets {F) 3.237
Goodwill [A+F-D) 1404
B. Considerntion transferred
Purchase considerniion z\mnlml]
Cash consideration 0,851
Add Adjustment on aceount ol non-compele fees 300
Total purchise consideration 7,351

C. Analnysis of cash Now on acquisition

Particulars

Net cash acquired with the subsidian
Less: Cash pmd

Net cash low on acquisition

D, Meagurement of fair vilne of identifinble net assets

The valuntion madel for fair valuation of property, plant and equipinent considers guuned market prices for similar ivems when available, and dey I cost when approprinte. Dey
replacement cost reflects adjustments for physical detenaration as well as funeuonal and economic obsoleseenve Intangible assets are fair valued based on (he multi-period excess earnings method, Muli-
period excess earnings method considers total expected jneome streams for @ business and deducts comtiibutory charges for all ather assets used 10 generate income with the intanible asset under review
These contributory charges sre a fair estimation of rates of retura a company’s n5ses are expected o earn comumensurate o their relative nsks

E. Revenue and profit contribution
The acquired business cantributed revenue of INR 20,240 laes and Joss of INR 6,050 laes 10 the Goup for the peniod March 31, 2024

| This space has heen left intentionally blank)
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44 Group information (contd)

)

Additional information pursuant to paragraph 12.3 of Division 11 of Schedule 11 1o the Compani

statements of Division 11 of Schedule 111

March 31, 2024

Acty 2003 - *General instructions for the preparation of consolidated financial

Net Assets (Loti] Assets minus

total liabilities)

Share in Profit or (loss)

Share in other comprehensive

income

Share in total comprehensive

income

Name of the entity in the Group Asa % of . , As 1 % of consolidated Asa % of consalidated

consolidated Mividi |49 2ol eannolitiled Amount | other comprehensive | Amount | total comprehensive Amount

i net profit or (loss) i |
net assets income income

Parent Company
Physicswallah Private Limited Ti% (B6.016) 95%| (107,007 B0%: 276 95%)| (1.06.832)
Subsidiaries 0%
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited (%% 6,699 1% (1.532) 5% 52 1% (1.480)
Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited (1% (31) 0% (164) 2% 7 0% (157)
iNeuron Intelligence Private Limited (1% 211 0% (414) % 5 0% (409)
Preponline Futirist Private Limited 0% (B3) 0% 25 Ya h 0% 25
Knowledge Planet Holdings Limited 1% (60} 2% (2,775) 0% & 2% {2.775)
Nylemn Learning Private Limited 3% (3.522) 4% [(4.053) 2% 7 4% (4.046)
Total (82,802) (116,011} 100%, 346 (1,15.665)
Inter-company elimination 29% (34,435) 3% 2,884 - - -3 2884
Total 10 (1,17,237) %] (1.13,127) 100" 346 100%]  (1,12,781)

Net Assets (lotal Assets minus

total liabilities)

Share in Profit or (loss)

Share in other comprehensive

income

Share in total comprehensive

income

Name of the entity in the Group As i % of i . As a % of consalidated As a Y of consolidated
As a % of consolidated 4 i
consolidated Amount Amount other comprehensive | Amount totul comprehensive Amount
net profit or (loss) - i
net assets income income

Parent Company
Physicswallah Private Limited =100% 9.514 91% (7.679) Y9% (98) 91% (7.777)
Subsidinries
Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private Limited -162% 8118 0% - 0% - 1% -
Penpencil Edu Services Private Linted 3% (139 4% 13n2) 1% il 4% (303}
INeuron [ntelligence Private Limited <12% il 5% {390 o - 5% (390)
Preponline Futurist Private Limited 2%, LI08) 0% - 0% - 0%, -
Xylem Learnimg Private Limited 1% - )% - 1% - 0% -
Total 17,982 (8,371) 99) (8,470}
Inter-coinpany elimination 459% (22,997) (1% (3 0% - (% (34
Total 100% (5.016) 100 %, (8,406) 100% 99) 100% {B,504)

{ This space has been left imtentionally blank)
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Nautes to Colsolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are in INR lacs, unless otherwise Stuted)

45 Principal differences between Ind AS and Indian GAAP

These financial statements, for the year ended March, 31 2024, have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS, for the purposes of transition to Ind AS, the Group followed the puidance
preseribed in Ind AS 101- First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 01, 2022 as the wansition date, Accordingly. the Group has prepared financial statements which comply
with Ind AS applicable for year ended March, 31 2024, together with the comparative period data as at and for the vem' ended March, 31 2023, as described in the summary of sipnificant
accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the Group opening balance sheet was prepared as a1 April, 01 2022, the date of transition to Ind AS.

The transition 1o Ind AS has resulted in the changes m the financial statements, disclosures in the notes thereto and accounting policies and principles. This nate explaing the principal
adjustments made by the Group in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, ineluding the balance sheet s at April. 01 2022 and (e financial statements as al and for the vear ended
March, 31 2023,

The following reconciliations provide a quantification of the effect of significant differences arising [ram the transition from Previous GAAP {0 Ind AS in accordince with Ind AS 101

- Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2022

- Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

- Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2023
- Cosh Now statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Reconciliation of « lidated Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2022

As per IGAAP as Ind AS As per Ind AS as

References at April 01, 2022 Kilfushmenity Reclassification® at April 01, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment Naote | 1,220 = i 1,220
Intangible assets Note | Ldo - - 147
Intangible assets under development Note | 561 - - 561
Goodwill 1,364 - - |, 364
Right-of-use nssets Note 2 - 3,863 - 3,803
Financial assets
1. lmvestments 927 - (927) -
. Other financial assets Note 2 5,869 (10 - 5,768
Deterred tax assets (ner) [ " - o
Non-current tax asset (net) 146 - - [t
Other non-current assets 5 - - 4
Tutal non current assets 10,244 3,762 (927) 13,079
Current assets
Inventories 521 - - 521
Finincinl assets
i, lyvestiment Note 3 1,495 (33) 927 2,389
it. Lonns 85 - - 83
. Trade receivables 43 - - 43
v, Cash and cash equivalents 674 - - 673
v, Bank balances ather than above 3471 e = 1471
vi. Other financial assets 305 - - 305
Other current assets 482 - - 484
Tuotal current assets 7.077 (33) 917 7,971
Tatal nssets 17,321 3,729 - 21,050
Equity and linbilities
Equity
Equity share capital 600 - - 600
Onlier equity Nole 3 10,014 (33) - 9,980
Total equity 10,614 (33) - 10,580
Mon controlling Interest - - -
Linbilities
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
1. Lease Liabilities Mote 2 - 3,195 - 1,196
Provisions 57 - - 37
Total non current linbilities 57 3,195 - 3,153
Current linbilities
Financial habilities
1. Lease liabilities MNate 2 - 367 - 367
i. Trade pavables
- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises: and 6 - - 6
- Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 186 - - 185
i, Other financial liabilities 69 - = 69
Other current liabilities 6,389 - - 65.390
Total current linbilities = 6,650 567 - 7,217
Total equity and liabilities ’ | 17,321 3,729 21,050

*Reclassifications as per the requirements of Schedule 111 division [1,
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Notes to Colsolidated Financial Stat

Reconcilintion of ¢

for the year ended March 31, 2024

lidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

o As per IGAAP as Ind AS I As per Ind AS as
Relenentes at Muareh 31, 2023 Adjustments Reelusifiontion! at I\I;arch 31, 2023
Assets
Non-current nssets
Property, plant and equipment Mote | 19,749 - (2.284) 17463
Caputal work in progress Nate | 476 - = 476
Goodwill Note $a and Note 8b 15,820 7161 5416 28,3198
Intangible assets under development MNote | 48 - - 47
Other intangible assets Nate | 23,988 73 (4,243) 19,820
Right-of-use nssets Nate 2 - 46,423 - 46,424
Financial assets = - 4
i, lovestments o a & i
ii. Loans 12 = Z 12
. Other financial nssets Note 2 10,210 (8,733) 7,132 8,588
Deferred lax assets (net) Note 2 1,098 931 - 2028
Non-current tax asset {net) [,131 - 1,023 2,154
Other non-current assels 1,524 (47) 86 1,563
Total non current assets 74,055 45,790 7,130 1,26,975
Current assets
Inventories 2270 - - 2270
Financial assets
i, Loans 17 - (3d}) 83
1. Trade receivables 1,322 - [HRD] 1311
1 fnvestment Note 3 20,404 142 - 20,546
iv. Cash and cash equivalents - - 4,903 4,903
v. Bank balances other than (i) above 53.012 - {4,934y | 48,078
vi. Other finnneial assets Naote 8b 7,347 1,030 (6,290) 2,087
Other current assets 4,000 (2.037) 1,964
Total current assets 88,473 1,172 (8,402) 81,242
Total nssets 1,62,528 46,962 (1,272) 2,08,217
Equity and liabilities
LEquity
Equity share capital Note 4 1,267 (667) 5 600
Other equity Naote 4/7/8 96,199 {1.15.061) . (18.863)
_Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 97,465 {1,15,729) - (18,263)
MNon Controlling Interest 14,440 (743 (.19 13,247
Taotal Equity 14,440 (74) (1,119) 13,247
Liabilities
Non-current linbilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings Note 4 6,678 85,822 - 92,500
i, Lease habilities Naote 2 - 40,564 (4635) 40,009
tii. Otler financial linbilities Naote 8b 306 26,752 1.594 28,652
Provisions Note 6 492 (165) - 26
Deferred tax habilities {ner) 216 - (8) 208
Other non-current liabilitics Note 2 1,790 (13 (1,5%4) 183
Total non carrent liabilities 9,482 1,52,960 (473) 161,968
Current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
| Borrowings 3115 - - KRR
i. Lease Note 2 - 0,013 463 7,108
it. Trade payables - - -
- Tolal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises: and 1,835 - 2) 1.833
- Total outstanding dues of ereditors atlier than micro and small enlerprises 3087 - 266 3,353
it Other financial liabilities Mote 8b 2,752 (432) 1.480 3,801
Provisions Note 6 442 19 (23) 438
Other current liabilities Mote 5 29,910 3,574 (1.867) 31617
Total current linhilities 41,141 9,804 320 51,265
Total equity and liabilities 1.62,528 46,962 (1,.272) 208217

*Reclassifications as per the requirements of Schedule 11 division 11,
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Reconcilintion Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31,2023

For the year ended

For the year ended

03 H q a1 1 #
Notes Nlu(r}nz({: :A.:)UZJ Intl AS Adjustmeni Reclassification March 31, 2023 (Ind AS)
Revenue
Revenue from operations Note 5 77.929 (3.496) - 74,432
Other incame Note 2/3 2,336 286 - 2,822
Total income 80,465 {3,210) - 77,254
Expenses
Direct expenses 6,569 - - 6,569
Purchase of stock-in-trade 6,451 - (3,239) 3,191
Change in Inventories of FG, Stock in trade (2,318) - 1,232 {1,285)
Cost of taw material and components consunied - - 2,853 2,853
Employee benefits expense MNote 6 41,389 (131) - 41,257
Finance costs Note 2 295 1,763 13 2072
Depreciation and amortization expense Note 278 3,597 3,882 780 8.259
Net loss on remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value Note 4/8b - 6,714 - 6,714
Impairment of intangible assets 47 - (747) -
Other expenses Nuote 2 22,925 (5.484) (872) 16,572
Totil expenses 79,455 6,744 - 86,202
Loss before exceptional items and taxes 1,010 (9,954) - (8,948)
Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture. net of 1ax
Profit!{loss) before tax 1,010 (%,954) - {8.948)
Tax expense:
1. Current tax 1,452 - - 14152
i Deferred 1ax Note 7 (1.066) (926 - (1,993)
Total tax expenses 386 (926) - (541)
Profit/(loss) for the year 624 tQ,UEEE] - {E.JDTE

Other comprehensive income

A Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement (loss) gain on defined beneti plans Note 0 - (13 - (1313
Financial mstruments designated through other comprehiensive
meome - net change in fair value
Income tax effect of defined MNaote 7 - 32 - 32
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income not to be reclassified to prodin or 99 4
loss in subsequent periods - 99 5 i
Tutal Other Comprehensive Income for the year - 99 - {99)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 624 (9,127) - {8,506)
*Recinssifications as per the requirements of Schedule 111 division 1],
MNote |
The Group has elected to earmy the value of its Property. Plant and Equiy as recopnised in its previous GAAP financials i.e. their carrying value, as deemed cost at the transition date j.e.

April 01, 2022 as per the option permitted under Parm DTAA of Ind AS 101 for the first time adoption.

Note 2

Under Indian GAAP, lessee classified a lease as an opernting or a finance lease based on whether or not the Jease transferred substantially all visk and rewards incident 1o the ownership of an
assel. Operating lease were expensed in the statement of profit and loss. Under Ind AS 116, all arrangement that falls under the definition of lease excepl those for which short-term lease
exemption or low value exemption is applied, the entity will recognise a nght-of-use nssets and a lease liability on the leuse commencement date. Right-of-use assets is amortised over the lease

term on a straight line basis and lease liability ts measured at amortised cost at the present value of future lease payments, Further interest is accrued on such lease linbility,

Naote 3

a) Under the Previous GAAP, long term inv were ed at cost less diminution in valug which is other than temporary. Under the Ind AS, investments in equily instruments of

campinies other than Subsidiaries are mensured at fir value. As at the transition date, the Group has accounted for these invesiments at fair vatue through Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

b) Under the Previous GAAP. the Group accounted for investments in mutual funds as current mvestments measured at lower of cost or fair value. Under Ind AS. the Group has designated such
investments at fair value through profit and loss which are to be menasured at fir value at cach reporting date. The difference between the fair value of these instruments and Indian GAAP

carrying amount on transition date has been adjusted in the retained camings and the impact of subsequent measurement is recognised as [inance income,

Nate 4

Under Previous GAAP, Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (“CCPS") tssued by the parent company was classified as share capital with (he amount received over the face value of its
shares recogmsed in securities premium, Under the Ind AS, the CCPS qre classified as fin wial liability m fair value through Profit or Loss. Accardingly. the share capital and securities premiun

have been adjusted and the liability for CCPS lias been shown as borrowmgs with subseq remensir ts through P&L, refer note | 3(a),
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Note 5

Under Previous GAAP, upfromt registration fees was booked al PO in time on e

nrolment of students for offline conching courses, and sale of materinl was deferred over the
Under Ind AS, the Company has recognised the registration fees aver the duration

period of course,
of the conrse. and sple of material is recapnised at a paint in fime on enrolment.

Note 6

Under previous GAAP actuarial gain or loss is charged directly to profit and loss aceount, under Ind AS |9, Employee Benefits, actuarial gamns and losse:

S on remeasirement of delined benefit
obligations are recopgnised in other comprehensive income and not reclassitied (o profit and loss in a stbsequent period.

Note 7

Deferred tax has been recognized an the account of adjustments made due to application of Ind AS. These

adjustments have resulted in an increase in other cquity by INR 959.24 lacs and INR
Nil as at March 31, 2023 and April 01, 2022 respectively

Note §

i) Under previous GAAP goodwill was amortised over the duration of 3 i

ers, however in IND AS, poodwill amortisation is not pemiitted, hence poodwill amortisation recognised in previous
GAAP is reversed under Ind AS.

b) Under previous GAAP, derivative libility/asset was recognised with related tnpact on goodwill on acquisition with respect to NCI Pt # Farward liability. Under Ind AS, gross NCI Put /
Forward liability is to be recognised through debit to equity, and derivative linbility recopnised under previous GAAP is accordingly reversed and coresponding impact is taken (o goodwill,

Reconciliation of Cash flow stitement
Cash Mow statement Lor the vear ended March 31, 2023

As perInd AS for  As per IGAAP
the year ended  for the year ended Ind AS Adjustments
March 31,2023 March 31, 2023

Casl Nlow from operating 27.005 22,975 4.030
Cash Flow from Investing (1,07,552) (1.07,539) (1)
Cash flow from financing 84,776 88,793 {,016)

Cash flow from the operating activities get increased with the correspanding decrease in eash flow from financing activities, since the rent expense 1s treated as operating expense as there is no
provisions regarding lease payiment in previous GAAP but the payiment of lease liability is treated as financing activity under [nd AS 7.
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46 The Group has maintained proper books of aceount as required by law except that in parent company, the backup of the books of aceount and ofher books and papers for certain applications

47

used for the purpose of maintenance of online ‘offline sales records, in electronic mode las not been maintained on servers physically loeated in India on daily basis and the parent company does
not have server physically located in India for the daily backup of the books of aceount and other books and papers maintained in electronic mode in respect of one of the application,

Except for the parent company, the other Group companies wiich are incorporated i India and whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have complied with the requirement
ol audit trail.

Other Statutory Information
(i) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the eronp for holding any Benami property,
(ii) The Group has balance with the below-mentioned companies siruck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956,

Balance tanding (INR in lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 April 01, 2022

Name of struck off group Nature of tr:m::::l::::]:ywalh struck-off

Relationship with the Struck off
company, if any, to be disclosed

A.m I.m'v Excellenss Private Student suppont service A 0.19 Vendor

Limited

(i) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is vet 1o be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(iv) The Group has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or finaneial institution ar other lender.

{v) The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto enrrency or Virtual Currency during the financial vear,

{vi) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ( Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intenmediary shail:
(a} directly or indirectly lend or fnvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalt of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any puarantee, security or the like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(Vi) The Group has not received any find from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whetler recorded in writing or otherwise) that the
Group shall

(a) divectly or indivectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar on belalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficinries) or
(b) provide mny guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaties

For 5.R. Batliboi & Assvciates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Dircnnrs of
Chartered Accountants Physicswillah Priwl}e"l-{injij'ml 1

Reg No. [01049W/EID0004

/@ [
9 { i
|\
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per \’ill'l!i"fl\(etr Prateek Baob Rahul Verma

Partner Director \ V. B r Company Secretary
Membership No. ; 212230 DIN: 07113666~ DIN 08755719 Membership No. Ad6710
Place: Gurugram Place: Noida Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date: Seprember 24, 2024 Date: September 24, 2024 Date: September 24, 2024 Date: September 24, 2024
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REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 315TMARCH 2024

Dear Members,

Your directors have pleasure in presenting this Annual report on the affairs of the Company
together with the Audited Statement of Accounts for the year ended on 31st March 2024.

1. State of Company’s Affairs

(Rs. in Lacs.)
Particulars 31st March, 2024 | 31st March, 2023
Revenue from operations 153647.63 73476.29
Other income 7872.39 2909.89
Total income 161520.02 76386.17
Total expenses 268288.32 84492.77
Loss before tax -106768.30 -8106.60
Tax expense:
(a) Current tax - 1452.00
(b) Deferred tax -6009.60 -1879.98
Profit/Loss for the Year -107097.28 -7678.62

During the year under review, the Company has earned total Income of Rs. 161520.02 /-Lacs as
compared to Rs. 76386.17/- Lacs earned in the previous year. Company has incurred a loss after
tax of Rs. -107097.28/-Lacs in the current year as compared to loss after Tax of Rs -7678.62/-
Lacs in the previous year.

2. Change in the nature of business

There is no change in the nature of the business of the company.

3. Transfer to reserves
The company has not transferred any amount from profit to general reserve.

General Reserve amount is Rs. 10.10 lakh

4. Dividend

No dividend is recommended during the financial period 2023-24.

5. Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, the extract of the Annual Return for FY 2023-24 will be
available on Company’s website i.e. https://www.pw.live/ having URL
https://www.pw.live/investor-relations.
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@

(ii)

Meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company

During the year 2023-24, the Board of Directors met 07 times as mentioned in Annexure [ (PART
A) attached below.

During the year 2023-24, the members of the CSR Committee met 02 times as mentioned in
Annexure I (PART B) attached below.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect
to Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2024, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures and there is no material departures from the same;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the company
for that period;

(iif) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting

(iv)
)

10.

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration By Independent Directors

Particulars of Declaration by Independent Director as required U/s. 134 (3)(d) of the Companies
Act, 2013, is not applicable to your Company.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company

The provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder pertaining
to the Constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee don’t apply to our Company.
Statutory Auditor & Audit Report

Your company has appointed M/s S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants,
having firm registration no. 101049W/E300004 as Statutory Auditors of the Company, vide

ordinary resolution passed in Annual General Meeting held on 31st December, 2023 and shall
hold office till the conclusion of the AGM to be held in the financial year 2026-27.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Statutory Auditors have not given any qualified opinion on the Financial Statements of the
Company.

Internal Auditor:

During the financial year the Company has appointed M/s Grant Thornton Bharat LLP, as
Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2023-24, as per Section 138 and Rule 13
of the Companies ( Accounts) Rules, 2014 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Certain recommendations have been made by the Internal Auditors, and in response, the
management has outlined the action plans, which is detailed in the Internal Audit Report for FY
2023-24.

Comments/Qualifications If Any, in the Audit Report on Financial Statements

There were no material qualifications or adverse comments or reservations or disclaimers in
the audit report on the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.

Fraud reported by Auditor

No Fraud has been reported by auditors under sub-section (12) of section 143 other than those
which are notifiable to the Central government.

Audit Committee of the Company

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder pertaining
to the Constitution of the Audit Committee does not apply to our Company.

Cost Records and Cost Audit

The company has appointed M/s Bahadur Murao & Co. As the Cost Accountants of the Company
for the Financial Year 2023-24. The Company has maintained the Cost Records as per the

provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder .

The Cost Auditors have not given any qualified opinion on the Cost Records of the company.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186

Particulars of the loans given, investment made, or guarantee given or security provided and the
purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipient
of the loan or guarantee or security are provided in Notes to the Financial Statements. Further
details of the Loans and Investments at the end of the financial year are as below.

LOANS, GUA TEES INVESTMENTS GIVEN
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The Company has following Loans, Guarantee given, and Investments made under section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended 31st March 2024:

Amount of

Sr. Date of Transaction (in
No. Transaction Particular/Purpose/Nature of Transaction lacs)

1 Various Dates Investment in Unquoted Shares Instruments Rs.56273.57
) 09.11.2023 Loan to Xylem Learning Private Limited Rs.74,50.820
3 12.11.2022 Loan to Penpencil Edu Services Private Limited Rs.3475.553
4 VembLS Lates Others ( Loan to employees ) Rs. 576.60

Investment in quoted non-convertible
5 Various Dates debentures and commercial paper Rs. 3573.51

17. Related Party Contracts/ Transactions

The Company is required to enter into various Related Parties Transactions as defined under
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 with related parties as defined under Section 2 (76) of
the said Act. Further all the necessary details of the transaction entered with the related parties
in Form no. AOC-2 for your kind perusal and information and enclosed in Annexure II.

18. Material Changes between the date of the Board report and end of financial year

There were no material changes that have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report, which is affecting
the financial position of the company.

19. Additional Information -

A. Conservation of Energy: Particulars of energy Conservation required U/s. 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 is not applicable on
your Company.

B. Technology absorption: The Company has no R & D Dept. & no expenditure either capital
or on recurring A/c has been incurred during the year under review.

C. Foreign Exchange Earning & Outgo: As per Annexure III attached below.

20. Risk management policy

Risks are events, situations or circumstances which may lead to negative consequences on the
Company's businesses. Risk management is a structured approach to manage uncertainty. A
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21.

22,

23.

24.

formal enterprise-wide approach to Risk Management is being adopted by the Company and key
risks will now be managed within a unitary framework. As a formal roll-out, all business
divisions and corporate functions will embrace Risk Management Policy and Guidelines and
make use of these in their decision making. Identified Key business risks and their mitigation
are considered in the annual/strategic business plans and in periodic management reviews.

The risk management process, over the period of time will become embedded into the
Company’s business systems and processes, such that our responses to risks remain current and
dynamic.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies.
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules 2014; the Board has undertaken the CSR activities as
per Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The details of CSR
activities for the financial year 2023-24 forms part of this Board report in Annexure IV attached
below.

Subsidiary Company, Joint Venture or Associate Company

The Company does not have any Joint Venture and associate Company. However, the Company
has Seven (07) Subsidiary Companies i.e., PW Foundation (Section 8 Company), Penpencil Edu
Services Private Limited, Preponline Futurist Private Limited, Utkarsh Classes & Edutech Private
Limited, Ineuron Intelligence Private Limited, Xylem Learning Private Limited and Knowledge
Planet Holding Limited. Further all the necessary details of the transaction with respect to
Subsidiary Company are attached herewith in Form no. AOC-1 for your kind perusal and
information in Annexure V attached below

Public Deposits
The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits from the public within the meaning of the

section 73 of Companies Act, 2013. The details of loan received from directors and their
relatives, not covered under definition of deposits as per rule 2(1)(c)(viii) mentioned below;

LOANS RECEIVED FROM DIRECTORS AND RELATIVES

Sr. DIRECTOR/ RELATIVE 0/S AMOUNT AS ON YEAR
No. NAME OF DIRECTOR END
NIL

Details of directors or key managerial personnel

During the year under review, there is no change in the composition of the board of directors.
Details of directors or key managerial personnel as mentioned in Annexure VI attached below.
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25.

26.

27.

28.

29,

30.

31.

Compliance With Secretarial Standards

The Board of Directors affirm that the Company has Complied with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries of India (SS-1 and SS-2) respectively
relating to the Board and the General Meeting.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting, commensurate with the nature of its business, size, scale and complexity of
the Company. The Statutory Auditor has also commented on the internal financial control on
financial reporting in their report.

Vigil Mechanism

Your Company has established a mechanism called Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for
the directors and employees to report to the appropriate authorities off unethical behavior,
actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy and
provides safeguards against victimization of employees who avail the mechanism.

During the year under review, no complaints were received under Vigil mechanism.

The Whistle Blower/ Vigil Mechanism policy of the company is available on the Company’s
website on the Link https://www.pw.live/investor-relations.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future.

Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investors’ Education & protection Fund

Since the Company has not declared any dividend during the year under review. Therefore, the
provision of Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 doesn’t apply to the Company.

Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013)

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees.
The company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Your director further state that during the year under review, there was no cases filed pursuant
to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
2013)

During the year under review, no complaints were received under POSH.

Change in Share Capital Structure

During the Financial Year 2023-24, there was no change in the capital structure.
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32.

33.

34.

Employee Stock Option’s Scheme

Details of Employee Stock Option Scheme under the provisions of section 62(1)(b) read with
rule 12 (9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 are set out in Note 38
of the Standalone Financial Statements of the company forming part of this report.

Change in Accounting Standards

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the company has changed the accounting standard from
Indian GAAP to Ind AS.

Acknowledgments

Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-
operation received from the financial institutions, Government Authorities, customers, vendors
and members during the year under review. Your directors also wish to place on record their
deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the Company’s executives, staff and
workers.

For Physicswallah Private Limited

Director Director

DIN: 07113666 DIN: 08755719

Address: 127, Mahaveer Ganj, Gali No. 3, Address: Tower Catania 2103, Mahagun
Beawar, Ajmer, Rajasthan - 305901, India Mezzaria, Sector 78, Noida, Gautam Buddha

Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201304

Date: 24.09.2024
Place: Noida
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ANNEXURE I (PART A)
NGS OF BOARD OF DIR

SN Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors
Present

1 30.05.2023 4 4

20.06.2023 4 4

3 4 4
24.07.2023

4 13.09.2023 4 4

5 09.11.2023 4 4

6 24.12.2023 4 4

7 29.03.2024 4 4

ANNEXURE I (PART B)
1 15.06.2023 3 3
2 27.03.2024 3 3
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ANNEXURE II
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third
proviso thereto.

1.
2.
| S. Names(s) of the related party Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms of | Dates(s) of | Amount paid
| No. | and nature of relationship contracts/arrange | contracts/ the contract or | approval as advances,
ment/transaction arrangement or | by the if any
arrangeme transaction board, if
nt/ including the | any
‘ transaction | value, ifany
1 Alakh Pandey-Director Reimbursement One time 5,11,250 29.03.2024 | NIL
‘ ) of Expenses
2. Remuneration of  Alakh | Remuneration to | annual 550.12 lakh 29.03.2024 | NIL
Pandey director
3 Remuneration  of  Rajat | Remuneration to | annual 31.12 lakh 29.03.2024 | NIL
" | Pandey director
4. Remuneration of Prateek | Remuneration to | annual 180.12 lakh 29.03.2024 | NIL
Boob director
5 Remuneration of Gaurav | Remuneration to | annual 27.55 lakh 29.03.2024 | NIL
Choudhary director
6. Remuneration of  Sonal | Remuneration to | annual 61.46 lakh 29.03.2024 | NIL
Mundhra relative of
director

Note: section 2(76)(viii) of the companies act, 2013 is not applicable on the Private companies vide
MCA notification dated 05.06.2015. Therefore, the transactions of PW with its subsidiaries and
associates will not be considered as Related party transactions u/s 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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ANNEXURE III
FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Details of Earning in Foreign

Exchange

Current Year Previous Year
Export of goods calculated on FOB basis 59,00,033 0
Interest and dividend 0 0
Royalty 0 0
Know- how 0 0
Professional & consultation fees 0 0
Other income 3,35,65,720.27

59,00,033

Total Earning in Foreign Exchange 3,35,65,720.27
Details of Expenditure in Foreign Exchange
Import of goods calculated on CIF basis
(i)raw material 0 0
(ii)component and spare parts 0 0
(iii)capital goods 0 0
Expenditure on account of 0 0
(i) Royalty 0 0
(ii) Know- HOW 0 0
Professional & consultation fees 0 0
Interest 0 0
Other matters 5,93,86,022 3,32,26,000
Dividend paid 0 0

5,93,86,022
Total Expenditure in foreign exchange 3,32,26,000
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ANNEXURE IV

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES AS PER SECTION 135 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Brief outline on CSR policy of the Company:

PHYSICSWALLAH PRIVATE LIMITED's CSR activities align with its Vision and Mission, to address community
needs. Following CSR guidelines, the focus areas include eradicating hunger, poverty, and malnutrition;
promotion healthcare and preventive measures; ensuring environmental sustainability; supporting education
and vocational skills; : :

The CSR Committee so constituted formulated Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR Policy) as on
15/09/2021 and the Board of Directors of the Company (‘Board’) has approved the same as per
recommendation of CSR Committee.

Composition of the CSR Committee:

Sr.No. | Name of Director | Designation/  Nature  of | Number of meetings | Number of meetings of
Directorship of CSR Committee | CSR Committee attended
held during the year | during the year
1. Alakh Pandey Chairman and Director 2 2
2. Rajat Pandey Member and Director 2 2
3. Prateek Boob Member and Director 2 2

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company: https://www.pw.live/

Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.: Not Applicable

a) Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year:-
Profit Calculated as per provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 for last three years:

*2020-21 : Rs. 925.54 lakhs
2021-22 : Rs. 13093.51 lakhs
2022-23 :Rs. 2103.17 lakhs

Average net profit  : Rs. 5374.072483 Lakhs
The company was incorporated on 06/06/2020

b) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 107.48 lakhs/-

c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmers or activities of the previous financial years: NIL

d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: NIL

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (b+c-d): Rs.107.48 lakhs/-

a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project): Company spent
on CSR Projects other than Ongoing Project

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Name of Item Loc | Locationof | Amoun | Amount | Amount Mode of | Mode of
Project fromthe | al the project |t spentin | transferred | impleme | implementation -
list of are allocat | the tounspent | ntation - | through
activities | a edfor | current | CSRaccount | Direct implementation
in yes the financial | for the (ves/No | agency
schedule | /no project | year project as )
VII of (inRs.) per Section
the act 135(6)
State | Dist Name | CSR
Registra
tion No.
Health (D), (i) No | PANIndia 10874 | 108744 | NIL No PW CSR000
Careand | and 445 45 Found | 36942
Education | schedule ation
vii
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Education | (iijjand | No | PAN | PA | 17,50,0 | 17,50,00 | NIL Yes NA NA
and skill schedule India | N 00 0

developm | viii Indi

ent a

b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NIL

c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NIL

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (a+b+d+e): Rs. 126.24 lakh

e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Amount unspent (in Rs.)

Total Amount Spent for | Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
the Financial Year (in | Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VII as per second proviso to Section 135(5)
Rs.) Section 135(6) '
Amount Date of Name of Fund Amount Date of
Transfer Transfer
Rs. 126.24 Lacs == & = e =
f) Excess amount for set-off, if any
Sr. No. Particular Amount in Rs.
(Lacs)
(€3] (2) (3)
1. Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5)* 107.48
2. Total amount spent for the Financial Year 126.24
3; Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 18.76
4. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 0
_previous financial years, if any
5. Amount available for set-off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv]] 18.766

Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable

Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility amount spent
in the Financial Year: No

Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section
135(5): Not Applicable

* for project wise details, please refer E-Form CSR-2
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ANNEXURE V
FORM NO. AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures

Part A : Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amount in Rs. Lacs)

concerned, if
different from the
holding company’s
reporting period
4. Reporting currency | NA NA NA NA NA AED NA
and Exchange rate
as on the last date of
the relevant
Financial year in the
case of foreign

Sl Particulars 1) (2) 3) @) (5) (6) (7
No.
1 Name of the Pen PW Ineuron Utkarsh Preponli | Knowle | Xylem Learning
subsidiary Pencil Foundat | Intelligence | Classes & | ne dge Private Limited
Edu ion Private Edutech | Futurist | Planet
Services Limited Private Private Holding
PvtLtd (32.68%) Limited Limited Limited
(51%) (10%) (100%)
2. Date since when 30.03.202 | 25.02.20 | 23.12.2022 18.02.202 | 17.03.20 | 28.12.20 | 17.06.2023
subsidiary was 2 22 3 23 22
acquired
3. Reporting period - -- -- - - = -
for the subsidiary
|
|
|

subsidiaries
5. Share capital 1.00 Compan | 14 21 100 10,000 8
y
Limited
by
Guarant
ee
6. Reserves & surplus | (164) 13.62 198 6670 (8256) 6445357 | (3531)
7% Total assets 5219 13.76 1196 16318 17058 7112617 | 12406
8. Total Liabilities 5101 0.14 984 9627 25214 667260 15929
9. Investments 368 = ., 2505 - 1
10. Turnover 6458 134.14 2750 14697 45584 88346 22398
11. Profit/loss before (202) 15.07 (401) (2983) 2485 (141532 | (8225)
taxation )
12. Provision for (50) - 12 (853) (637) (2096)
taxation
13. Profit/loss after (152) 15.07 (413) (2131) 1848 (141532 | (6129)
taxation )
14. Proposed Dividend | -- - - - -
15. % of shareholding 100% NIL 32.68% 51.00% 10% 100% 60.35%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
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2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
3. Point no. 2 (Date since when subsidiary was acquired) represents the date of agreement between
the Parent Company and respective Subsidiary Companies.

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

S.No. | Particulars (1)
1. Name of associates/Joint Ventures NIL
2. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date NIL
3. Date on which the Associate/Joint Venture was NIL
acquired
4, Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the NIL
company on the year end
(a) No. of Shares NIL
(b) Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint
Venture
(c) Extend of Holding% NIL
5. Description of how there is significant influence
6. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated
7 Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest NIL
audited Balance Sheet
8. Profit/Loss for the year NIL
i. Considered in Consolidation NIL
il Not Considered in Consolidation NIL

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.
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ANNEXURE VI
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

DIN NAME ADDRESS DESIGNATION DATE OF
APPOINTMENT
08755719 |ALAKH PANDEY RK-27, KALINDIPURAM, Director 06/06/2020
ALLAHABAD, UTTAR PRADESH,
211011, INDIA
09374578 |GAURAV 331 UIT PLAT, KESHAVPURA, |Director 18/10/2021
CHOUDHARY KOTA, RAJASTHAN, 324005,
INDIA
07113666 |PRATEEK BOOB 127 MAHAVEER GAN], GALI Director 01/07/2020
NO.3, BEAWER, AJMER
RAJASTHAN, 305901, INDIA
08755720 |RAJAT PANDEY FLAT NO. A-101, UG FLOOR Director 06/06/2020
BLOCK C-2 BUILDING SKANDA
APARTMENT LUKER,
ALLAHABAD, UTTAR PRADESH,
211011, INDIA
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Alakh Pandey

Director

DIN: 08755719
Address: Tower Catania 2103, Mahagun
Mezzaria, Sector 78, Noida, Gautam Buddha

Nagar, Uttar Pradesh - 201304

Director

DIN: 07113666

Address: 127, Mahaveer Ganj, Gali No. 3,
Beawar, Ajmer, Rajasthan - 305901, India

Date: 24.09.2024
Place: Noida
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